GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

AGENDA

Meeting GLA Oversight Committee
Date Thursday 1 March 2018
Time 2.00 pm

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's
Walk, London, SE1 2AA

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/oversight

Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly /webcasts where you can also view past
meetings.

Members of the Committee

Len Duvall AM (Chair) Dr Onkar Sahota AM
Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman) Navin Shah AM

Sian Berry AM Keith Prince AM
Tom Copley AM Peter Whittle AM

Steve O'Connell AM

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chair of the Committee to deal with the business
listed below.

Ed Williams, Executive Director of Secretariat

Wednesday 21 February 2018

Further Information
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities
please contact: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager; Telephone: 020 7983 4425; Email:
lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458

For media enquiries please contact Alison Bell; Telephone: 020 7983 5769;
Email: alison.bell@london.gov.uk. If you have any questions about individual items please contact the
author whose details are at the end of the report.

This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as
noted on the agenda. A quide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.

There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available. There is limited underground
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or
further information.

vl 2015


http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/oversight
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
mailto:alison.bell@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Si usted, o algiin conocido desea recibir una copia del order del dia, acta o informe en
Braille o en su propio idioma, y gratis, no dude en ponerse en contacto con nosotros
llamando al teléfano 020 7983 4100 o por correo electronico:
assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Se vocé, ou algliem que conheca precisa uma copia da ordem do dia, anotacées ou
relatorios em prensa grande ou Braille, ou em outra lingu, entao por favour nos
telephone em 020 7983 4100 ou e-mail assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Haddii ama ama qof aad tagaanid, uu ugu baahan yahay koobiga ajendhada, haddaladii
ama warbixinta in far waaweyn loogu qoro ama farta qofka indooclaha akhrin karo, amaba
luugad kale, fadlan naga soo wac telefoonkan 020 7983 4100 ama email
assembly.translations @london.gov.uk.

Ta ba ri enikeni ti o ba ni ife ni eda ewe nla ti ighimo awon asoju tahi papa julo ni ede ti
abinibi won, ki o kansiwa lori ero ibanisoro. Nomba wa ni 020 7983 4100 tabi ki e kan si

wa lori ero assembly translations@london.gov.uk.

A dHA Al AR Bl dl Al A ubld Ao (sdyBl), Mz (24 i) e
Buiza (eadl)-dl -sa Hiel 2ani ouddl 3 adaui 2aa oo 55 eumi Addl
sy, dl su s34 020 7983 4100 GuR st »al assembly translations @london.gov.uk
Gy wuA §-1da 53,

STl 9 WP AEoE (Fe A arersl, TG 91 [[remeeg aFh F# 92 g 91 @2+
SN ST (BT SRR CPCS Bl S0 W B0 SIS0 020 7983 4100 & HTF 10T (I Bs]
9l assembly.translations@london.gov.uk < Z-TI3¢e (AT Feee] |

# Zog 7 IoF T fan dv fowadt §, 803, HifZar &1 aoeet 7 fouget &t anft, €3 nugt
feg suel 7 59® € gu feu A far J9 89 feg odlet T 3t fagur s9a AS 020 7983 4100
'3 2WiIgs a9 At fER U ' FIH® J9 : assembly.translations@london.gov.uk

r'//al.-{?uruEﬂ:pﬁfug}dfﬂdgfuzkﬁggzuﬁ:gz&J’.f;{LéE’JII;EFU“I;G;;JLJ:L%&.?,TL = T/ﬁ
assembly.translations@london.gov.uk ﬁ,.iyu,; JSLU di@:}&ﬁﬂ?{(ﬂﬂ 79834100%°

I1SO
9001

Quality
Management

Certificate Number: FS 80233


mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk

Agenda
GLA Oversight Committee
Thursday 1 March 2018

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements

To receive any apologies for absence and any announcements from the Chair.

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4)

The Committee is recommended to:

(a) Note the offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at
Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests;

(b) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests
in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the
Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and

((3)] Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be
relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received
which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register
of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA's
Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary
action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s).

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 54)

The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the GLA
Oversight Committee held on 31 January 2018 to be signed by the Chair as a correct
record.

The appendix to the minutes set out on pages 11 to 54 is attached for Members and officers
only but is available from the following area of the GLA"s website:
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-committees/gla-
oversight-committee



https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-committees/gla-oversight-committee
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-committees/gla-oversight-committee

Summary List of Actions (Pages 55 - 64)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Lorena Alcorta; lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4425

The Committee is recommended to note the completed and outstanding actions
arising from previous meetings of the GLA Oversight Committee.

The Garden Bridge - Holding the Previous Mayor to Account (Pages 65 -
66)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Contact: Katie Smith; katie.smith@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4423

The Committee is recommended to note the report and the discussion with the Rt
Hon Boris Johnson MP.

Chief Officer-Recruitment Update (Pages 67 - 88)

Report of the Assistant Director, Human Resources and Organisational Development
Contact: Charmaine DeSouza, Charmaine.DeSouza@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4194

The Committee is recommended to:

(a) Note the process being followed to recruit a Chief Officer and progress
to date; and

(b) Establish, in accordance with the Protocol for the Appointment of
Statutory Officers, an advisory panel with the membership set out at
paragraph 4.8 of this report to undertake, concurrently with the
Mayor’s representative(s), shortlisting and interviews for the Chief
Officer role and make a recommendation to the Mayor and Assembly
regarding an appointment to that role.

Proposed Changes to the GLA Establishment - Finance and Governance
(Pages 89 - 104)

Report of the Executive Director of Resources.
Contact: Martin Clarke; martin.clarke@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4959

The Committee is recommended to respond to the Head of Paid Service’s
consultation on the proposed changes to the GLA Establishment relating to the
Authority’s Finance and Governance functions.


mailto:lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk
mailto:katie.smith@london.gov.uk
mailto:Charmaine.DeSouza@london.gov.uk
mailto:martin.clarke@london.gov.uk

10

11

Work Programme for the GLA Oversight Committee (Pages 105 - 108)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Lorena Alcorta; lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4425

The Committee is recommended to note its work programme for 2017-18 and
identify any additional issues it wishes to consider at future meetings.

Action Taken Under Delegated Authority (Pages 109 - 144)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Lorena Alcorta; lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

The Committee is recommended to:

()

(b)

Note the recent action taken by the Chair of the GLA Oversight Committee
under delegated authority, following consultation with the Education Panel,
Deputy Chairman and party Group Lead Members, namely to agree the
response to the Department of Education’s consultation on the devolution of
the Adult Education Budget, and note the letter attached at Appendix 1 to the
report; and

Note the action taken by the Chair of the GLA Oversight Committee, following
consultation with the Deputy Chairman and party Group Lead Members,
namely to send a letter to Sir Martin Moore-Bick, Chairman of the Grenfell
Tower Inquiry, setting out the findings from this Committee’s investigations
regarding the Grenfell Tower fire, and that the Committee note the letter,
attached at Appendix 2 to the report.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to be held on 20 March 2018 at T0am in
Committee Room 5.

Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent


mailto:lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk
mailto:lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Declarations of Interests

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 1 March 2018

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

Summary

This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary
interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and
gifts and hospitality to be made.

Recommendations

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted
as disclosable pecuniary interests’;

That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific
items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding
withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and

That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant
(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the
time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and
noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any
necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted.

Issues for Consideration

Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf:

' The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly,
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered” must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London
Borough X.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk v2/2017

Page 1




3.2

3.3

Member

Interest

Tony Arbour AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Richmond

Jennette Arnold OBE AM

Committee of the Regions

Gareth Bacon AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Bexley

Shaun Bailey AM

Sian Berry AM

Member, LB Camden

Andrew Boff AM

Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of
Europe)

Leonie Cooper AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Wandsworth

Tom Copley AM

Unmesh Desai AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Newham

Tony Devenish AM

Member, City of Westminster

Andrew Dismore AM

Member, LFEPA

Len Duvall AM

Florence Eshalomi AM

Member, LB Lambeth

Nicky Gavron AM

Susan Hall AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Harrow

David Kurten AM

Member, LFEPA

Joanne McCartney AM

Deputy Mayor

Steve O’Connell AM

Member, LB Croydon

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM

Keith Prince AM

Member, LB Redbridge

Caroline Russell AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Islington

Dr Onkar Sahota AM

Navin Shah AM

Fiona Twycross AM

Chair, LFEPA; Chair of the London Local Resilience Forum

Peter Whittle AM

[Note: LB - London Borough; LFEPA - London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority.
The appointments to LFEPA reflected above take effect as from 1 October 2017]

Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism
Act 2011, provides that:

where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered
or being considered or at

()  a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or

(i)  any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s
functions

they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and

must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting

UNLESS

they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality —
Appendix 5 to the Code).

Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is
knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading.

Page 2



34

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

5.

5.1

In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that
was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising -
namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it
would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.

Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and
the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or
decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to
make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also
that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence.

Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person
from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the
previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to
disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend
at which that business is considered.

The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set
out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-
line database may be viewed here:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.

If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of
the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from
whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members
are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when
the interest becomes apparent.

It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or
hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the
Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so
regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in
any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA.

Legal Implications

The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Local

Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager
Telephone: 020 7983 4425

E-mail:

lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

Page 3



http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 3

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

MINUTES

Meeting: GLA Oversight Committee

Date: Wednesday 31 January 2018

Time: 10.00 am

Place: The Chamber, City Hall, The
Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA

Copies of the minutes may be found at http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-
assembly/oversight

Present:

Len Duvall AM (Chair)

Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman)

Sian Berry AM

Andrew Boff AM

Tom Copley AM

Navin Shah AM

Dr Onkar Sahota AM

Keith Prince AM

Peter Whittle AM

Shaun Bailey AM (in attendance for Iltem 5)

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements (Item 1)

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Steve O’Connell AM for whom Andrew Boff AM
was attending as a substitute.

1.2 In accordance with Standing Order 8.2, Shaun Bailey AM attended the meeting and
participated in the question and answer session at Item 5, with the permission of the Chair.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 5


http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/oversight
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/oversight

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

Greater London Authority
GLA Oversight Committee
Wednesday 31 January 2018

Declarations of Interests (Item 2)
Resolved:

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at
Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests.

Minutes (Item 3)
Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting of the GLA Oversight Committee held on
14 December 2017 be signed by the Chair as a correct record.

Summary List of Actions (Item 4)
The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

(@) That the Chair would write to the Mayor of London regarding the Chair's
support for the Mayor’s suggestion that there be public debate regarding
the use of personal data by the GLA Group and how this might best be
achieved; and

(b) That the completed and outstanding actions arising from previous meetings
of the GLA Oversight Committee be noted.

The Charitable Response to the Grenfell Fire, Terror Attacks and other
events in London (Item 5)

The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat and put questions
to the following guests on the Charitable response to the Grenfell fire, terror attacks and
other events in London:

David Farnsworth, Director, City Bridge Trust;

Sarah Atkinson, Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission;

Mark Simms, Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust;

Susan Dolton, Director, Kensington and Chelsea Foundation;

Gerald Oppenheim, Chair, London Emergencies Trust;

Page 6



52

53

54

Greater London Authority
GLA Oversight Committee
Wednesday 31 January 2018

Rob Bell, Director, London Emergencies Trust;
Zoe Abrams, Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross;

Manny Hothi, Director of Programmes and Strategic Partnerships, London Community
Foundation; and

Emma Strain, Assistant Director, External Affairs, GLA.

A transcript of the discussion is attached as Appendix 1.

During the course of the question and answer session the Committee requested that:

The Director, Kensington and Chelsea Foundation, provide a profile of donations to victims
of the Grenfell Tower fire over time;

The Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross, provide
details of when the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea asked the Red Cross to
become involved in the relief effort. She also undertook to provide details regarding how
quickly donations came in to the Red Cross for people affected by the fire and when they
started to taper off;

The Director, City Bridge Trust, provide the date when the funds were made available to
those organisations working on the ground who responded to the immediate emergency in
addition to their other duties. The Director would provide details of conversations with
London Funders and the Department of Communities and Local Government, through Gold
Command, regarding the provision of funding for these organisations and other collaborative
funding for the wider community affected by the fire. Lastly the Director undertook to
provide a list of different foundations that worked on the ground in the aftermath of the fire;
and

The Assistant Director, External Affairs, GLA, provide data regarding when the button
directing the public to the Red Cross fundraising site through london.gov.uk was first
established and how many clicks the button had received.

In concluding the discussion, the Chair:

Thanked the guests for their participation in the session, and recognised the work they and
their organisations had done in the aftermath of the Grenfell Tower fire in difficult and
complex circumstances; and

Confirmed that the Committee would review the transcript of the session and then determine
what other issues it would want to explore further, as necessary.

Page 7



55

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

Greater London Authority
GLA Oversight Committee
Wednesday 31 January 2018

Resolved:

That the report and the discussion with the invited guests be noted, subject to the
additional information requested, as set out in paragraph 5.3.

Summons of The Rt Hon Boris Johnson MP (Iltem 6)
The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.

Resolved:

(@) That the GLA Oversight Committee meeting scheduled to take place at 2pm on
22 February 2018 would be rescheduled to 2pm on 1 March 2018;

(b) That the summons notice authorised on 14 December 2017 and issued to The
Rt. Hon. Boris Johnson MP, requiring his attendance, as former Mayor of
London, at the meeting of the GLA Oversight Committee at 2pm on 22
February 2018, under the provisions of Section 61(1), 61(5)(c) and Section 62
of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 (as amended) be rescinded; and

(c) That, under the provisions of Section 61(1), 61(5)(c) and Section 62 of the
Greater London Authority Act (as amended), the Committee require the
attendance of The Rt. Hon Boris Johnson MP, as former Mayor of London, at
the meeting of the GLA Oversight Committee meeting on 1 March 2018 at
2pm, for which notice will be given in accordance with Section 62 of the
Greater London Authority Act 1999 (as amended) in due course, to answer
questions in relation to the Garden Bridge project.

Proposed changes to the GLA Establishment Health Unit (Item 7)

The Committee received the report of the Head of Paid Service.

Resolved:

That the Committee confirms its agreement to the Head of Paid Service’s proposals

set out in the report in relation to changes in the establishment in the Greater
London Authority (GLA) Health Unit.

Page 8



Greater London Authority
GLA Oversight Committee
Wednesday 31 January 2018

8 Work Programme for the GLA Oversight Committee (Item 8)
8.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
8.2 Resolved:

That the work programme for the remainder of 2017-18 be noted.

9 Date of Next Meeting (Item 9)

9.1 The next meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held on 1 March 2018 at 2.00pm in
the Chamber.

10 Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent (Item 10)

10.1  There were no items of urgent business.

11  Close of Meeting

11.1  The meeting ended at 1.00pm.

Chair Date

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager; Telephone: 020 7983 4425;
Email: lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix 1
GLA Oversight Committee — Wednesday 31 January 2018

Transcript of Item 5 - The Charitable Response to the
Grenfell Tower Fire, Terror Attacks and other
Events in London

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Before | mention our guests by name, for those who are watching on the webcast, |
just want to mention what the main focus of the meeting is. It is to discuss how funds were distributed post
the Grenfell Tower tragedy. We have invited some of the fundraisers so that we can have a discussion about
the whole of the system and the processes. One of the issues in the aftermath of the fire was the cause of
some confusion: the number of fundraising and distribution bodies involved. There were lots more people
we could have invited today but we are not sure if that would have been very manageable. We have nine
guests before us today. Therefore, we focus on those organisations that raised and distributed the bulk of
the funds, and we must recognise the contribution of all other charities involved and other co-ordinating
groups, such as the Grenfell Muslim Response Unit, hosted by the National Zakat Foundation.

Just for the sake of anyone watching on the webcast or in our audience, this meeting will focus on monies
and gifts in kind raised from the public and distributed to survivors and victims” families. It will not examine
the monies raised by trusts, foundations, and the contributions of time by volunteers/members of the public
or the support for businesses. We are quite clearly focused around those issues.

Can | now welcome our guests? We have David Farnsworth, Director of City Bridge Trust; Sarah Atkinson,
Director of Policy, Planning and Communications of the Charity Commission (can | remind members again
that Sarah has to leave us at 11.00am, so we need to focus any questions towards her so that can happen);
Mark Simms, Chief Executive at the Rugby Portobello Trust (RPT); Susan Dolton, Director of the Kensington
and Chelsea Foundation (K&C); Gerald Oppenheim, Chair of the London Emergencies Trust (LET); Rob Bell,
Director of the LET; Zoe Abrams, Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross;
Manny Hothi, Director of Programmes and Strategic Partnerships, London Community Foundation; and
lastly, our very own Greater London Authority (GLA) officer, Emma Strain, Assistant Director of External
Affairs. Can | welcome you all?

Can | go straight into our questions, rather than take any opening statements? | think it would be best if we
go straight to some of the issues that we wish to explore with you. If we could cast our minds back to the
London Bombings Relief Charitable Fund (LBRCF), why was that approach, and those, processes considered
to be such a good model for distributing charitable funds following an emergency?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): Shall | take that? In 2005, when the LBRCF
came into being after the 7 July bombings that year, quite at that point an absolutely unprecedented event in
terms of its scale and immediacy and the number of people who were affected by it, LBRCF was set up to
distribute what came to be £12 million. When that job was done, it closed down, but the model was the only
one to respond to those sorts of incidents. Of course, in 2017 we know there were, in the end, four terrorist
incidents in London, so when the Westminster attack happened and then London Bridge, Finsbury Park and
Parsons Green, we were doing the job again as the LET, a new charity but a successor body with the same
overall objectives and aims. When the Grenfell fire happened, with the partnership we already had with the
British Red Cross as our fundraising partner - LET is the distribution end of that, with a particular specialism in
assisting those who are next of kin for those who lost their lives and those who were injured, whether that

Page 11



was just a short visit to A&E or something much longer - we were there doing the job. We had the experience
back from 2005 of working with families, with next of kin, in very, very difficult circumstances for them. The
rest of us can, | think, only imagine some of that. The model that we had was there and ready to go to help
people caught up in the Grenfell Tower fire.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Thank you. Do you wish to add anything, David?

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): Just briefly. The link from City Bridge Trust through to
that work was manifested in two individuals, one of whom was able to be seconded for 18 months to work
with Gerald and others, and he is still on my team and was seconded to inform this particular response and
also give some advice to the Manchester events. Through the trust, we also supported the learning piece
after ten years to make sure it was all gathered and not lost in terms of corporate memory, so that was there
ready to be activated, albeit in a very different context.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Is it fair to say that that is the model from the modern day, 2005, which we broadly
follow in subsequent tragedies that occur in terms of where there is general fundraising and others to
distribute to victims and associated families?

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): Indeed.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Sarah Atkinson, can | ask you a question? If that is the model, and we heard that
Manchester has adopted it in terms of the arena issues, how did the Grenfell Tower tragedy differ from other
emergencies such as terror attacks, and what has made it so challenging?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): Thank
you. Obviously, all emergencies are different because they happen in a different context and to a different
community. From our perspective, the particular features that we would say are distinctive about Grenfell:
firstly, it was the number of organisations that from the very beginning were involved, were asked to respond
or stepped up to respond. In most of the previous emergencies we have seen, a natural focus emerges, either
from an existing organisation that is ready to respond or a focus naturally falls around a single organisation
that steps forward. We did not have that in this case. We had a number of charities and organisations
involved from the very, very immediate aftermath.

We would also, from our perspective, identify the uncertainty and the confusion around the number of
individuals affected that pervaded for quite a long time. Uncertainty in the immediate aftermath is very
normal, but the length of time that that persisted was unusual in our experience and that really affected how
charities were able to respond and the nature of the response.

Then the third thing that it is very important to highlight, in the context of Grenfell, is the lack of trust in
state agencies and the way that that has spilled particularly into the larger charities working in an auxiliary
capacity but, more broadly, that the public uncertainty and lack of trust around how much money was being
raised and how it was distributed, and that context of lack of trust and uncertainty was much more acute than
we have experienced before around the public response.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): In various emergencies, would the legal considerations change, or would there be a

core legal partner, and there may well be fringe issues that would guide the distribution of funds or
fundraising activities? | know we are going to come on to crowdfunding and your pages and everything else

Page 12



later, and there are some issues around that, but can you just paint some pictures of some of those
complexities around some of the legal background in terms of approaching?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): In the
broadest sense, there are two kinds of funds that are raised in emergency situations. One is charitable funds,
donations to registered charities, or appeals organised on behalf of registered charities. There are charitable
funds. They are under the jurisdiction of the Charity Commission and the courts, as charitable funds with all
responsibilities that relate to that, and the trustees of those funds are responsible to us for managing those.
Gift Aid and other tax reliefs normally apply in the way that they do to charitable funds.

The other stream, broadly speaking, is what you would call person-to-person donations. These are the kinds
of individual responses - for example, for a particular family or a particular individual - that have been raised,
often online, but traditionally this has been happening for centuries, communities collecting in pubs,
informally around streets, for those individuals. Those are not charitable funds. Those are gifts given as
freely as if | gave you money today from me to you. There is no jurisdiction of the Charity Commission
usually, or the courts around those and the tax reliefs are not usually applicable. What can happen, however,
and this is where it blurs, is where an individual without realising it, because of the way that they have raised
those funds, may create a charitable trust. If | appeal to you today to give me money for the victims of the
Grenfell Fire, | may inadvertently be creating a charitable trust. | do not mean to do that. | do not want to be
the trustee of those funds with all the responsibilities that come, but | may inadvertently do that on the terms
of the fundraising. We saw appeals that were intended as a natural human response to support victims that
inadvertently became charitable trusts in these situations. That is where we have to get involved and help
those individuals who did not mean to create that trust but may have taken those responsibilities on and need
to fulfil them.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Sorry, Andrew, do you want to come in on that point?

Andrew Boff AM: Very quickly to Mr Oppenheim, if | may. Do you self-activate, or does somebody ask you
to do your role?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): Back in 2015, as we came up to the tenth
anniversary of the 7 July bombings, as well as working independently with Emma [Strain] and colleagues at
City Hall to organise a tenth anniversary event for that one, some of the former trustees of the 2005 fund
looked at the world around us and thought, “This might happen again, so what we ought to do is put some
infrastructure in place”, which became the LET, ready to activate if something happened, as in the end it did
in March 2017.

We also talked to the Head of Paid Service and senior staff here about the arrangements to do that, and that
if something happened, in part to help the fundraising, in part to help the profile and the knowledge that
there was a charitable organisation in existence that would channel money to those affected, we arranged
that there would be a statement by the Mayor to help launch that in the wake of, as | say, what happened on
22 March. It is a bit of both: self-activation and then formal activation.

Andrew Boff AM: Thank you for that. | suspect we are going to get a similar question a little later from
someone else.

Page 13



Len Duvall AM (Chair): Can we just continue with some of the context? Can | just go to Zoe? Red Cross:
an incredible international experience. How does that differ when you are doing a domestic-type emergency
situation, just to paint some pictures in terms of the issue of redistributing some of the monies that were
given to you? What are the challenges?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): The first
thing to say is it was quite an unusual situation because we had not raised money for domestic emergencies
since 7 July 2005, and our involvement in Grenfell came off the back of Manchester happening, and | was
working with the Mayor’s Office there to establish the We Love Manchester Emergency Fund, along the same
lines as the LET, during the London Bridge attack, in which we set up the Solidarity Fund with our partners
here as well at the GLA to be the beneficiaries of that. It is not a typical scenario.

What happens in an international emergency? Operationally, in the United Kingdom (UK) and internationally,
it is quite similar in the fact that we are volunteers who are on the ground straight away, and in the case of
Grenfell we were, as part of the resilience plan, immediately involved. We are in the Westway. We then set
up the friends and family centre, etc. Our operational involvement was continual throughout that. That
would be the same as in an international emergency. The key is whom we partner with. In an international
emergency, essentially our partner is the national society of the country. For example, when there was a
typhoon in Philippines, which had a huge storm surge wave, it was the Philippines Red Cross that we were
raising money on behalf of, and they would distribute the money appropriately. In the UK, we need to
partner with the authorities, so with the relevant local authority or with the national Government.

One of the situations here was that it was quite difficult to get hold of the local authority to have the
conversation on fundraising. Once we did, we made the offer, which was to launch a fund - | think that was
on Thursday morning, eventually - to distribute cash, which was turned down, to set up the friends and family
centre, which was accepted, and to set up a support line, which was also accepted. We already had a support
line running for Manchester and London Bridge, so that would be a way of ringing up and saying, “I need
some more information, including how | can access the funds that are being raised on my behalf”.

One of our lessons is that we would exercise a greater right to initiate ourselves in future. There was an
expectation among the public that we should be raising funds. Our supporter care line is sort of like a
customer care phone line that you ring up. Members of the public were calling us, saying, “We want to
donate money. Can we do it through you?” Partially because the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea
named a local charity in the initial days, but then also because of the lag in being able to get in touch with
the Chief Executive, there were other players that came into the field.

The other thing to note as well is that in the case of both Manchester and the UK Solidarity Fund, the local
paper got behind the British Red Cross fundraising. In Manchester, The Manchester Evening News
immediately set up using the crowdfunding platform, a form of raising money. Once the official We Love
Manchester Fund - which was between British Red Cross and the Mayor’s Office - was established, they then
channelled their funds into that. Equally, with the Solidarity Fund, the Evening Standard partnered with us.
That did not happen in the case of Grenfell, in part because of the time lag, | think.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): OK. Thank you for that. In terms of the techniques, we have background

information about the parity of funding for victim societies, and we are probably going to go into a bit more
detail about this later on, but just setting the scene, in different disasters, they are all tragedies and they are
all terrible in their nature, but they are slightly different. Is the parity of funding for victims and survivors in

Page 14



different disasters a desirable aim, or do some disasters mean that you adjust and have to adapt? What is the
thinking about that generally, rather than specifically if we are facing different emergencies?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): | will start. The challenge for any charitable
fund distributing money that is raised is that you never quite know how much you are going to get, so you
have to be very careful as a trustee, and indeed as an officer supporting the trustees, early on, not to
overcommit your funds and not to overpromise, because that would be the worst thing to do. “Well, we
promised you £10,000 but we can only give you £5,000 because it is not there.” That is just terrible. We do
not want to go there. Inevitably, you end up setting some tariffs, if you like, to use a really rather cold-
sounding words, which say, “We will pay a certain amount for injury, we will pay a certain amount for next of
kin”. We were very clear in 2005 and again in 2017 that, as more money became available and we had
greater certainty of what we could do, so we would increase the payments that were made. These are all
charitable gifts, as Sarah [Atkinson] was saying earlier on.

You also want to try to treat people in similar circumstances of loss or injury in a broadly similar way as best
you can, but with a caveat that Westminster had its own fund. As Zoe [Abrams] was saying, the Solidarity
Fund later came into being to support London Bridge, and indeed was used for Finsbury Park and Parsons
Green afterwards. Then, of course, Grenfell on top of that had a completely different fundraising stream
attached to it, and bringing Manchester into the reckoning as well. There was huge fundraising success in
Manchester on the back of that incident. Of course, all the funds end up with slightly different sums of
money in them. Your aim as a distributor, over time, is to try your best to equalise what you award, so that
someone who is next of kin from one incident is ending up with broadly the same amount of money as
someone in another incident where the funding was much higher. Certainly, we had to do some work both
with the Red Cross and colleagues at the Charity Commission to make sure that for Westminster, which had
the smallest pot of money in the end, we were able to do some transfers of funds, or the Red Cross was,
within the Solidarity Fund, to bring awards in Westminster up to the same level.

In the terror sites, we broadly achieved that. For those at Grenfell, we are a bit ahead of that, so it is a
balancing exercise. You are constantly on a tightrope to try to achieve that, but the aim is parity.

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): Yes. One of the consequences of that attempt to try to
get parity, with all the uncertainty about how much money is there, is that, when you add into the equation
uncertainty about the number of fatalities or injured where that is changing quickly, you then have a
complicated bit of financial management. You need to make sure that as you increase the pay-out to those
you know about, you set aside an amount of money so that, at any point in time when those numbers firm
up, you can make the same level of payments to them. That makes sense when you explain it to people, but
when we began sharing data through the Charity Commission about the distribution, of course, it appeared
that LET had a stubborn amount of money that seemed to just be sitting inactive, which we were having to
hold on to until at Grenfell the number of fatalities was clear. We had to explain that many times to people
who quite rightly asked, “Why is that money not going anywhere?”

Len Duvall AM (Chair): That is quite a crucial point, because the ascertaining of the final number takes
time in the nature of Grenfell-type situations?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): Yes. We had to sit down at the start with our board,

with the best available data from the police, from the media, from non-governmental organisations (NGOs)
on the ground, and model around a certain number of fatalities, to be blunt. We set aside money to pay in

Page 15



case of up to 100 fatalities. When the figures were clarified at the end of the year, then we could take that
money and distribute it accordingly.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Zoe, is there anything you want to add to that at this stage?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): The
other thing that | would add as well is, when we come to it, we have had a lot of conversations with the LET
as we release the funds, and we think British Red Cross has raised £7.2 million for Grenfell, ultimately, which
is something that we are very proud of. We were thinking as we were making decisions about how we could
make the best contribution in terms of distribution, what our key focus could be. For example, we have really
weighted distribution around people who have been bereaved because we are aware that potentially that is
one group that has not received as much money. When you look at the balancing out of how the different
pots of funding are being distributed, that was one group that we felt there would be a finite time when they
continued to receive support, whereas there might be more ongoing support for others. In a way, there are
some positives in terms of having a number of different pots with regards to that, and having a distribution
body that has been involved with various fundraising bodies has enabled LET to have a bit of that sight in
regards to how things will play out.

Sian Berry AM: You talked about a sum of money and having to parcel that money up because you did not
know how many victims there would be, but what effect does the actual tragedy have? If you compare the
Grenfell situation to Manchester, both are very tragic, but at Manchester there was no loss of homes, for
instance. There was no need to house people or contain them in that short period. How does that affect
how much you give or what you give for, or is it just emergency there and then, what you are given for that
five, ten, 24-hour period?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): As Gerald has said already, the specific focus and
expertise of LET is dealing with people who have lost loved ones or been injured. It became apparent very
quickly that there were people who did not necessarily fit into those categories or had also lost property and
possessions. We were aware that there were people able to get some money at that time, but, as people have
said already today, it was slightly disorganised. Other funders are maybe better than us to talk about the
money that was raised and how, over the weeks that ensued, it became clearer that there was a growing need
among survivors who were not bereaved or injured, who had lost everything and could not get access to
money. In other words, there were problems with the distribution of that, and it was beyond the capacity of
LET at that time to step into that area. | think it took a couple of weeks to get organised and work out a
strategy between us about how we distribute to all of those groups.

In the end, the picture simplified into LET distributing to the bereaved and the injured, and Mark [Simms] and
colleagues at RPT distributing to the survivor households. Behind that distribution (to households) was a
whole process of working out who fell into that group.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): For us, right from the get-go, the early hours,
our focus was on survivors. We opened our doors at 1.30am in the morning. Within eight hours, we were
able to put cash in people’s hands and clothes and things like that. We launched an appeal internally to our
donors, whom we knew, and we raised £118,000 in about five hours. We were able to make sure that people
were supported immediately with emergency cash to get taxis to hotels, and all that kind of stuff. Then
colleagues at K&C Foundation came in very quickly after and gave us £30,000 to distribute straight away.

Page 16



It has to be said, though, with a note of caution, we are not a grant-making or a distributing organisation.
We are a local youth charity that runs a youth club and various activities to support the community. The
people that were doing this distribution were our 20 staff onsite and we had 100 volunteers who turned up,
whom we knew. It was those people who set up a very crude system. We are embedded in the community,
so our idea was that we knew people and then we asked survivors to self-identify one another. It was
absolutely not perfect, but in those early hours it was the best we could do, and then it went on from there
into something a bit more sophisticated later on.

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): Can | just comment? There was something going on at
that time which was really critical. There was an absence of trusted data about the number of people who
had died and about people who had been displaced or injured. At that time, LET was working very intensively
with the police, so we felt that we were as confident as anybody in understanding what we knew about
fatalities and we were able to get going quite quickly because we worked very closely through the police in
exchanging information, finding out where there is a bereaved family, and so on.

There was a lack of information about who was in that building, who survived, and what counted as a
‘household’. In the absence of that, several organisations were piecing together the best available data and
triangulating, and | think it is fair to say that RPT was doing that and had as good a grip on that as anybody.
You had two organisations (LET and RPT) willing to distribute, with reasonably good data that we could be
confident in, and ready to get going quickly. There was no hard data at that time - it was changing every day
- but we knew we needed to get going quickly.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): That was very valuable context: very wide-ranging, but setting some of the scene
for our more in-depth questions.

Dr Onkar Sahota AM: | want to focus on the relationship between the London Resilience bodies and the
raising and distribution of the donations. We know that there are certain distinctions between the tragedy
that happened at Grenfell. It was a geographically isolated part of London. There was a delay in taking a
view that a London-wide response was required. Who makes that decision, and what are the criteria for
declaring that a London-wide response is required? Let us start with you, David. What are the criteria for
making a London-wide response, and who makes the decision?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): | think that is a civil response. It is for local
government to decide that, rather than charities.

Dr Onkar Sahota AM: Pardon?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): It is not charities that would make that call. It
is Government who would do that.

Dr Onkar Sahota AM: Who would make it, then?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): | can only speak as | was doing in answer to an
early question, that the discussions that we had before any of the incidents happened in 2017 with senior
staff here, both the Head of Paid Service and with Emma’s [Strain] team, were that in the event that
something happened, in order to support the fundraising effort and after that the distribution effort, a
statement by the Mayor or the Mayor’s Office to the effect that a terror incident - which is what we were
thinking of, rather than the fire - would prime all that. Indeed, after the Westminster attack, that is what

Page 17



happened so that we and the Red Cross as the fundraising partner could get going and the Red Cross could
approach donors, could respond to the public, and we could get the distribution mechanisms into place and
activated. We did it that way. We were not technically reliant on the declaration of the civil emergency or
anything like that. We recognised it when we saw it, in that sense.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): The
answer to your question is: it is the authorities that do it, essentially, so there is a --

Dr Onkar Sahota AM: The sense is that the charity bodies were looking towards the Mayor for the
declaration of the --

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): No. The
local authority will have a strategic co-ordinating group, and each local authority has a resilience plan. The
Red Cross is written into those resilience plans. The Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea did initiate the
Strategic Co-ordinating Group essentially as a phone call with all the authorities on there, the Red Cross is on
there, and they start to manage the actual incident straight away.

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): The London
Resilience team co-ordinates that piece initially. If a major incident is declared, it is normally police that will
chair that group. It involves all of the operational bodies that are involved and whoever is relevant.
Depending on the incident, it could involve the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS), it could involve the
National Health Service (NHS), it will involve the local authority’s police, fire, ambulance, everything, and that
is the co-ordinating body that gets to that incident piece that --

Dr Onkar Sahota AM: Did local authorities get this right? Did they think that a London-wide response was
required? We have heard on this Committee that there was a delay in that happening. What is the role of the
Local Authority Gold Command?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): | know there have
been other meetings that have covered some of this topic off, but the way that that process happens is
reasonably well controlled and everybody is clear on what their roles are with that. The local authority will
raise that initially. As it became clear that the Grenfell incident was becoming more serious and it was
declared as a major incident, the police then hand over on that piece, and that is where that machine comes
into operation.

Dr Onkar Sahota AM: | just want to pin it down here. Was there a delay with the local authority declaring
the London-wide response was required, or was there no delay there?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): It is a perception
point. For me, my personal view is that --

Dr Onkar Sahota AM: | am just looking back in history, rather than --

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): -- with the benefit
of hindsight and what we now know about the scale of the tragedy, the London Local Authority Gold solution
should perhaps have been brought in earlier, but that is with the benefit of hindsight. It is worth noting that
it felt like a long time in the process, but these meetings took place every three or four hours from the point
that it happened.

Page 18



Dr Onkar Sahota AM: When decisions are made, what are the criteria used for declaring the London-wide
response? What are the criteria that have been used?

Len Duvall AM (Chair): | think we need to clarify in terms of the London-wide response in the sense that,
bringing you all together, as you are developing a very fast-flowing, complex situation where organisations
have had to adapt to the needs on the ground and to others coming into play, if we have a model in 2005,
should the post-recovery plan - if we can call it that in the resilience models that we have in the Gold -
include you in a much clearer way than what | think is apparent? | think that is what the Member is saying.
One of the questions the Member will follow up on is the issue about the co-ordinating role of the Charity
Commission of bringing people together and setting some co-ordinating framework over your work. Sorry to
interrupt, but | just wanted to get some clarity into that.

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): Certainly back in 2005, again, the history here
is that the then-resilience plan that existed in this building had the capacity in it for a charitable response,
and when the 7 July event happened, very shortly afterwards the then-Mayor set up what was originally
called the Mayor’s Fund, which very quickly became the LBRCF. It worked very well, and LBRCF in those days
had direct access to Gold Command. The Chief Executive went on to it and that worked extremely well in a
whole range of situations that developed there. This time, the response was, as | have said, looking just
purely at the terror attacks first. We were activated in the way that | was saying earlier on, after the
Westminster attack, and then when London Bridge happened, when Finsbury Park happened, when Parsons
Green happened, we were already there and doing the work with the Red Cross, with others, so those events
one after the other followed a pattern from the original activation. Because through Rob [Bell] and the LET
team and the British Red Cross we had access at that point to the police, and all the NHS standing behind
that and local authorities and so on, that all worked. Grenfell was a bit different because of the nature and
scale of what happened, as colleagues have said, and it took a little time for that to get rolling. In answer to
your question, | think the experience we have all had is that if you are going to do contingency planning for a
future event, one of the big bits of learning is that because charities together have a key role in delivering
services in the ground, raising money, distributing it, having a presence on a Gold Command is going to be
really, really helpful and important.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Can |
add to that as well that British Red Cross was called in to Gold on the Saturday by John Barradell OBE [Chief
Executive, City of London Corporation] and we stayed in there for over a week? We did not have a formal co-
ordinating role with other voluntary sector organisations, although we tried to have as many conversations as
possible with everybody. There are mechanisms. It is about how effectively they are deployed in every case.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): Just from on the ground, | think it feels like we
are still waiting for it to happen, to be quite honest. In those early days, there was lots of talk of Gold and
things going on and all the rest of it. From where we were sitting, there was an absence of leadership; there
was an absence of response from Government, both locally, nationally and London-wide. There was a total
absence. There was a void. That is why organisations like us, like ClementJames, like the Harrow Club, like all
of those other local organisations, moved in to fill that void, and it was entirely unco-ordinated, entirely. | do
not want to get into an emperor’s new clothes kind of situation. We were just doing our thing, supporting
people on a human-to-human basis, and waiting for the civic response to catch up. In many ways, if you
speak to survivors, that is their absolute experience and it is ours.

Page 19



David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): My experience was | was asked by John Barradell on the
Sunday to go into the Gold Command structure, and that was by dint of my day job as Director of City Bridge
Trust, which is charitable. It works with 500 or 600 charities across the communities of London. There was
something very strong about the fact of the breakdown in some quarters in trust and confidence in the public
bodies, and coming from that constituency, the community voluntary sector rather than the statutory, was of
value.

What | found there, yes, the Red Cross was there with that hat on. In terms of the future, there are lessons in
terms of the connection between the local community voluntary sector and the national, which is key, and |
know there is already some work being done on that.

There is also something key in resilience response around the language. The way that the statutory sector
operates in resilience response is a very unfamiliar language to me, and | was suddenly in a world which was
unknown to me. In terms of future planning, the community voluntary sector could be better equipped,
rather than this language of Gold and Platinum, which does not mean much to us, although within the
emergency service and in first responders it is bread and butter. There is something about how the different
sectors can work together in advance of the next - heaven forbid - situation.

Sian Berry AM: Obviously we had a whole meeting where we discussed in some detail, and we had a very
steep learning curve in terms of Gold and what happened when and all of that, where we talked about how
long it took for the Gold management side of things to spring into action. Here today we are really trying to
get to the bottom of when the official fundraising appeals were set up, and | do not think we have yet.

Zoe [Abrams] from the Red Cross has said people were contacting you, trying to give money, wondering if
you had set up an appeal yet, and you needed the permission of the local authority for that, and obviously
the local authority took its time triggering the London-wide Gold response itself and so did not give you
permission for a number of days.

LET, | am not sure it is completely clear whether or not you were able to set up an official appeal until you
had got some permissions in that respect as well. Did it need to wait until there was the London-wide Gold
thing triggered, or is that a separate process? On what day were your official appeals actually set up?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): The partnership we have with the Red Cross is
already there. LET is not a fundraising body. We distribute, and that is where our expertise lies.

In terms of the fundraising that happened, as Zoe [Abrams] was saying, the Red Cross was on it pretty
instantly and was asked to get involved on that basis. Quite quickly, again, something we have not talked
about yet, but in concert with both the K&C Foundation and indeed the Dispossessed Fund through the
Evening Standard and the London Community Foundation, there was a very quick exchange of views and
information there, and some of the --

Sian Berry AM: Can you tell us what days those different appeals started? That is the crucial thing. There
seems to have been a delay on the ground of some days, during which people felt very abandoned, and just
to get clarity on the timeline would be great.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Susan [Dolton] may be able to help us?

Susan Dolton (Director, Kensington and Chelsea Foundation): We are a very small, locally based
charity, and we had a phone call. We were set up with our fundraising appeal at 11.00am that morning, and

Page 20



we went live on three platforms, and within one month we raised £5 million. We are now at £6.7 million. We

were the first. | know that because those first few hours ticked by very, very slowly indeed, and suddenly that
money started to flood in. With a team of four, it became a heavy responsibility of, “What are we going to do
with this money?” We felt there was nobody for us to talk to, apart from our local community partners.

We were quickly on the phone to Mark [Simms] at RPT, to ClementJames, to Westway Trust, to Al Manaar,
Notting Hill Methodist - | have probably missed one or two out - the Harrow Club, and we were able to get
cash out by the Saturday, when people were saying, “Where is the money? Why isn’t it getting out there?”
That was our first response. Of course, you cannot go on giving out cash like that. Pretty immediately - in
fact within days - we sat around the table with the Charity Commission, probably three or four days if | look
back in my diary, and they were fantastic in terms of co-ordinating the main funders. That included the
London Community Foundation, working with the Evening Standard Dispossessed Fund, and the Red Cross,
who had come in at that point. We came up with distribution methods fairly quickly.

The issue, as Rob [Bell] says, is pretty much around the data and how we were going to distribute the
funding. If we look back on the timeline, we promised money, and 17 June, we got £110,000 out. On

23 June, when the Prime Minister said that people would be offered housing within three weeks, we thought,
“We will respond to that and we will get £10,000 per former household out. Of course, that did not happen,
but | believe we responded as quickly as we could under the circumstances. Without the local element,
working with RPT to get the money out to the survivors, | still do not know where we would be now, frankly.

| think the money would still be sitting there. Having the LET set up and ready to go was absolutely fantastic.
Collaboratively, as charities, we worked as effectively as possible under the circumstances.

Sian Berry AM: | am trying to focus on the raising part; we have lots of questions about distribution to
come.

Susan Dolton (Director, Kensington and Chelsea Foundation): OK. We have raised £6.7 million. The
first month, we had raised £5 million. It is tailing off obviously now, but we are still getting donations of
about £2,000 to £3,000 per week.

Sian Berry AM: What about the Red Cross, then? You said a bit ago that you wanted to collect money
immediately but there was a delay. When did you manage to get your appeal out?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): We got
agreement to launch from the local authority on the Thursday and we launched on the Friday. That was
partially because we had a conversation with The Evening Standard, which had already launched at that point,
about how to co-ordinate in regard to that. We did ours on the Friday morning. We were trying to, again, at
that stage, already co-ordinate between ourselves so that there was clarity. Those were the three biggest
funds, am I right in saying that? There was the K&C Foundation- you went first because you were asked to
by the local authority, is that right?

Susan Dolton (Director, Kensington and Chelsea Foundation): No, we were asked by London Funders,
the umbrella side, and LET.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Right.

Then the Evening Standard sought to partner with the London Community Foundation, and then British Red
Cross came after that. Both the Evening Standard and the British Red Cross would need a distributing body

Page 21



as well. You need the fundraiser, ourselves, and the distributing body, which is London Community
Foundation, LET. Is that right?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Forgive
me, | have confused them.

Sian Berry AM: The Evening Standard appeal launched on the Thursday?

Manny Hothi (Director of Programmes and Strategic Partnerships, London Community
Foundation): We launched, yes, on the morning of the fire. There was a phone call from the Evening
Standard, which was the Wednesday. We have a longstanding relationship with The Evening Standard. We
run the Dispossessed Fund every year, picking a particular issue affecting London’s communities, raising and
distributing money to grassroots organisations.

On the morning of the fire, we received a phone call from the Evening Standard, which said, “We want to
launch a campaign. Do you want to partner with us?” As a senior management team, we got together and
then discussed with our trustees whether we did. We did, obviously, and the appeal was launched pretty
much straight away online. In that first day, we raised about £500,000. The second day, it was about
£850,000. The third day, about £700,000. It was very, very quick. We distributed our money via LET and
RBT as well. We are not a local actor; we are a pan-London organisation based in Brixton, so we had to have
those conversations. We had to go to sites to figure out what was going on on the ground and how we could
get that money out.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Can I just bring Sarah [Atkinson] in?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): Briefly on
the pace of fundraising. Looking back at some of our records, we chaired a conference call which many of
the groups here and the others that we talked about were on, on the Friday lunchtime at 2.00pm. Part of our
goal in doing that, as well as to convene the conversations that were already happening, was to make sure
that they were happening in as co-ordinated a way that we could support, but also to get our sense as a
regulator, a grip on the fundraising issues. In previous disaster situations, we have given advice on how the
public can give safely, but where there has been a single focus of appeal we have been able to give advice
that giving to that appeal will be the safest and best way to get funds.

It was clear already by 2.00pm on Friday that there were significant funds raised across several appeals. | am
looking at a briefing that we sent to Government on the Monday morning. By that point we estimated, from
the reports that we had had and from other reports on crowdfunding, that £10 million had already been
raised. The pace of funds raised was fast, but it was not around a single focus. There were already
considerable funds with several appeals. It was clear at that point that trying to direct and consolidate public
gifts into a single place was not going to be desirable; it was not going to be possible. We already had funds
in places that we would need support, and that is really from that point where the unusual role that we took,
the convening role which colleagues already described that we took, really started because of those separate
significant sums.

Andrew Boff AM: You originated that call?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): We did.
There were already conversations happening. In all honesty, | cannot remember whether someone said, “You

Page 22



call”, or “We then have a call. Can you chair it?” We called. We had information that we needed as the
regulator around giving safely. We were already giving individual bits of advice and support to charities on
the --

Andrew Boff AM: You were the body that concluded it would be a good idea to have such a call, and you
organised it. Is that correct?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): Yes. As |
say, other calls and conversations were happening, but that call at 2pm and then the subsequent meeting
that we held at our offices with many of these groups on Wednesday was really where the collaboration and
the co-ordination started to take shape. In our role as the regulator, we had to be extremely careful here
because we had a regulatory job to do, but we also wanted to convene and support the dialogue that was
happening and facilitate that collaboration. Clearly, as the --

Len Duvall AM (Chair): One of your primary motives for that must have been about trust and confidence in
institutions, what was happening with the money and the distribution of it?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission):
Absolutely. It was clear that we had charities that were managing significant sums of money that they were
not previously managing, that, as Mark [Simms] and Susan [Dolton] have said, was not what they were set up
or had expected to do, but had stepped up to do it. Cash was already being distributed. As a regulator, “Ask
for forgiveness, not permission” is not normally our watchword, but in this situation money had got out to
people who needed it and we needed to be part of helping those charities make sure they were OK about
doing that.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Just for clarity for this part of the table, that role, for those who are aware of the
Gold, Silver issues, was almost like a charity version of the Gold, Silver Command issues of trying to get to
grips with that. Would that be fair to say that role was your equivalent to that approach in terms of this
disaster?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): | am not sure how complimentary that necessarily is. |
would say it was a collaboration that came from people who instinctively wanted to work together, recognised
there were some gaps opening up. There were some issues around data, issues around how we co-operated,
and | think the Charity Commission’s instincts reflected those of the group who were distributing, which is: we
need to work this out and we need to, as much as we can, align what we are doing on the ground. It was not
a command and control; it was more of a collaboration, albeit with the regulator in the centre.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Collaboration, command and control. It all makes sense in times of emergency.

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): We were
very conscious that, while as the regulator there are requirements that we set down for charities, these were
also independent charities with their own responsibilities, and we in law cannot direct trustees. As the
regulator, you are both an authority and also you have to create space in which charities can do what charities
are supposed to do. It was both enabling and enforcing all in one go, and there an element to which we look
back and can make sense of it, but at the time everybody was doing what they thought needed to happen.

Navin Shah AM: It is about the process. Obviously, depending on the nature of the incident, Gold
Command practices can be different and are different. From my experience, when Gold Command becomes

Page 23



operational, led generally by police and a local authority, they will also incorporate local faith and community
groups to take their advice and have their input. | understand that there was no such role played by the
various organisations from charities and people who have expertise in this field. Is that true? Do you believe
that there should have been that role right from the outside, so that we do not lose vital time in coming
together?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): The faith
groups embedded in the community stepped up in exactly the same way that Mark [Simms] and

Susan [Dolton] have described their organisations doing, so they were absolutely in the mix from the
beginning. Again, there was a significant fundraising strand through the National Zakat Foundation.

Navin Shah AM: Were you at any stage invited to be party to Gold Command, or that never happened?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): | cannot
speak to whether they were invited directly. In terms of the Charity Commission and Gold Command, there
was informal contact and conversations through people we knew and through organisations we knew, London
Funders. We did seek to have a more formal engagement with Gold Command, particularly around the data
issues and some of the information needs, and also seeking to reflect to Gold Command, from our perspective
as the regulator, some of the trust issues and how that was hampering response on the ground and
distribution of money. It was difficult. David’s [Farnsworth] role was for the function in civil society, not for
the regulator. We should have had a better direct route as a statutory body, but we did not, so we worked
with David and through David, and again, that was not conventional but we had to work because we had to
get it done.

Eventually, about three weeks in, there was a more formal role for us in Gold Command. My colleague, our
Chief Operating Officer, attended meetings, and we put formal requests through. David is still involved post-
transition.

Navin Shah AM: How long did this take to happen?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): About
three weeks, | would say, until we had a modus operandi that was more formal than the informal. It took a
few days for us to be having conversations.

Navin Shah AM: Could it have been sooner? Should there be --

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): Yes, it
should have happened sooner. It would have been better.

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): There are a couple of points. Back to that local-
national point | made earlier. | am sure that, within the response of the Red Cross are giving to this and other
disasters and emergencies, there is room for improvement in terms of how the structural piece, the
community voluntary sector, is represented within that space at local level, and also through the independent
trust and foundation piece, which turned out to be not so much for today - it will come later - but in terms of
co-ordination of some of the organisation funding responses. In terms of how it happened in this instance in
Grenfell, there was a woman on secondment from the Department for Communities and Local Government
(DCLQ) called Hilary Patel [Team Leader, Faith Engagement, DCLG], whose day job was working with faith
and community organisations, and she was tasked with being the liaison between those groups on the

Page 24



ground. In terms of how effective that was, she was doing her best within difficult circumstances, but
structurally that could be improved.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Might |
add to that as well? One of our reflections at the Red Cross was, first of all, to recognise that we were already
under a huge amount of pressure. We only have so many emergency response volunteers and they had
already been deployed in both Manchester and the response to London Bridge. We called in people from
across the country to come and help with Grenfell.

In any emergency, what will always happen is that the local community mobilises first because they are
literally there on the site of the emergency, and you rush to help your neighbour or the person that you know
or you do not know but is physically close to you. The local organisations, including the faith groups, did a
fantastic job and were there day in, day out, from the moment the fire happened. One of our reflections as
the British Red Cross is that it did take us too long to reach out to the grassroots groups, and that is
something that we are working very hard to rectify and think about how we do things differently. We have
this extraordinarily well-recognised brand and this ability to convene people, and people look to us to be a
way of showing their kindness for people experiencing crisis, and there are other organisations who might
have different or better expertise in terms of the particular community that we need to proactively collaborate
with much earlier in order to genuinely reach the people in crisis more effectively.

Navin Shah AM: | think, Chair, they have answered the question, but my question was about the Grenfell
Muslim community which grew up from that community, and the Charity Commission played a greater role in
helping them become much more regulated. How do the big charitable organisations like the Red Cross
engage with this faith group?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): Locally, we are working very collaboratively
with not just local faith communities, but within two or three hours - we have a school onsite and we had
already decided to close the school - we had Humanity First, Muslim Aid, a whole raft of organisations from
all faiths across London who turned up and were hosted in our building and just joined the community effort.
We were liaising with the Al Manaar and other faith groups locally because we knew one another and we
knew each other’s phone numbers. We did not have to search for it, and we could have that conversation. In
the absence of anything else, we organised ourselves a bit, really.

Navin Shah AM: Thank you.

Andrew Boff AM: Ms Atkinson, can you update us on the total amount raised to support survivors of the
fire at Grenfell Tower and their families?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): | can. We
have been publishing reqular updates on funds raised, funds passed to distributing organisations by
fundraisers, and the total distributed that is in the hands of survivors and those in need. We have been doing
that since August, and again that is unusual. We would not normally do that. We have not done that in
previous emergency situations, but we did that because of the public concern about the amount raised and
the distribution and the pace of distribution, and the need as part of our co-ordinating role to step up and
give some information around that to reassure the public that money was held properly and moving at the
right pace. Colleagues have already described some of the reasons that money does not move as quickly as
you might expect it to in these situations. We have been publishing that on a regular basis since August, at
first weekly. We have now moved to fortnightly because the pace of change of figures is not so fast.

Page 25



In the last update, we issued on Thursday last week, it was £26,532,564 raised overall - and that is charitable
funds - so that does not include the funds | described earlier that are person-to-person gifts for individual
families or pupils at particular schools and so forth. That is charitable funds under our jurisdiction. Of that,
£22,349,470 has moved from fundraisers to distributing organisations so the vast majority is out in the hands
of the distributing organisations and, of that, £20,944,310 has been distributed, so the vast majority of those
funds have been distributed; they are with the individuals, the families, the survivors, and the next of kin.
There is still some money yet to be passed to distributing organisations and there is still some money with the
distributing organisations yet to be distributed, and colleagues can talk to any specifics but, broadly speaking,
the bulk of the money has now gone out. The pace of funds raised has slowed to a trickle but has not
stopped, so there are still funds coming in.

Andrew Boff AM: Between different releases of information the amount has declined, is that an
administrative error?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): As | say,
we do not normally publish these kinds of very reqular updates and one of the reasons that there is a
downside to doing that is that there can be occasional fluctuations because, for example, amounts are
pledged that do not come in. There can be estimates of gift aid that do not materialise because a donation
did not turn out to be eligible for gift aid that could be expected, and because we have tried to map all the
funds raised there has been the occasional inadvertent double counting. For example, Just Giving reporting a
sum to us that they passed to one of the organisations and the organisation reported the same sum. We have
tried, and the organisations have tried, to winnow those out, and we have been very accountable every time
there has been a fluctuation but there have been occasional fluctuations in those sums.

Andrew Boff AM: Which organisations raised the bulk of the funding?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): The
biggest fundraising appeals are the three we have talked about, donations to the K&C Foundation, and that
was largely direct appeals that were set up very quickly after the fire; the partnership between the London
Community Foundation and the Evening Standard has been very significant; and then the Red Cross is the big
fundraiser for the LET, and those are the three biggest. But there have also been other significant
fundraising strands, for example the Artists for Grenfell people may be familiar with, and the charity single;
significant donations that have gone directly to the National Zakat Foundation, donations directly to RBT,
which is not a fundraiser but appealed to donors and people gave. But those three are the big chunks, the
three big chunks.

Andrew Boff AM: You must have had experience of other such fundraising, emergency fundraising efforts.
Were you surprised by the community’s response to this emergency?

Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): No. As
colleagues have described, different emergencies raise different amounts and no one is ever in the business of
predicting what something will raise. But the nature of the disaster, the community’s reaction, the clear need,
both for the support for survivors to help them in the immediate aftermath and also the impact on the
families and all of this played out very, very publicly through the media. We were not surprised that it was
significant sums. As | have said, the difference really that we observed in this was that there was not one
single focus, as there might previously have been, there were several significant appeals and colleagues have
described the relationship that panned out with the focus for the LET on next of kin and the injured and the

Page 26



focus through RBT for support for survivors, that took shape over a lot of hard conversations and hard
thinking, but that is broadly how it panned out. But that was part of trying to make sense of a lot of money
that needed to go to people in need and the need to work out how to do that in an empathetic way.

Andrew Boff AM: See if | can broaden this to some of the other fundraisers here, so Red Cross, can you tell
us how quickly those donations came in and when did they peak and when did they start to peter out?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): | do not
have that information in front of me right now but we can get back to you with that.

Andrew Boff AM: Anybody else?

Manny Hothi (Director of Programmes and Strategic Partnerships, London Community
Foundation): | have some of that data. It’s important to clarify that, while we worked with the Evening
Standard Dispossessed Fund, we also received the money from Artists for Grenfell and donations that were
received through that appeal and also the money from the Game for Grenfell, well half the money from Game
for Grenfell. Our total amount was about £7.9 million, of which £6.7 million was the Evening Standard and
there were others. But in terms of the speed of donations, on the 14th, so the Wednesday, we received
£509,000, rounding up a little bit. The next day it was about £856,000, then it was £702,000 on 16 June,
then it drops dramatically to £189,000 and it dropped to about £100,000 for the next --

Andrew Boff AM: When did it drop to £189,000?

Manny Hothi (Director of Programmes and Strategic Partnerships, London Community
Foundation): £189,000 on 17 June. The day after, the 18 June, it was £93,000, which | think was a
Sunday, and then it bumped up again to £129,000 on the Monday and £177,000, £129,000, £141,000 on
22 June, and then it started really going down, £70,000, then it went right down to the 20 and 30 thousand
pounds. We can provide that data to you.

Andrew Boff AM: Yes, that is an unusual profile, is it not, it went up, down, and up again and then down.

Manny Hothi (Director of Programmes and Strategic Partnerships, London Community
Foundation): Yes, | think a lot of it is attached to the media profile, what is happening, how much news
coverage there is. The first day is for digesting the situation. The second day people understand the
magnitude of it and donated the highest amount that we received and the day after that as well. Then as
time goes on the donations are more from, not necessarily direct to us, but from other people who are
fundraising and giving their pot to us essentially.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): | think it is quite unusual because that was The
Evening Standard Dispossessed Fund, so what you would see is when The Evening Standard run a story in the
paper on a Tuesday night, on Wednesday donations would rise, so that explains the unusual aspect.

Andrew Boff AM: It is more about media activity.
Sarah Atkinson (Director of Policy, Planning and Communications, Charity Commission): It
absolutely is, so that is what we saw in Manchester, which was the first of these things, which only happened

over a three-week period, it was the first attack that children were affected and then an international pop star
decided to have a benefit. The amount of media coverage of that was huge. With the UK Solidarity Fund,

Page 27



the terrorist attack happened on the Saturday and then the Thursday was the general election, so the
coverage waned for that and we managed to raise a much smaller amount despite launching a public relations
effort called Saturday Night for London to try to raise funds. But with Grenfell the media coverage went on
for days and days and days and days, and that really does drive the donations. It is effectively free
advertising for the fundraising.

Susan Dolton (Director, Kensington and Chelsea Foundation): We do not have a day-by-day account
because we were not capable of producing one but, at the end of week one, we had raised £3.4 million, so
that was one week in, and the next time we looked was on 7 July and that was £4.5 million, 14 August

£5.75 million, 21 September £6 million and then 14 November £6.4 million, 15 January £6.7 million, and | do
not think our appeal was affected so much by the media because we were not partnered with a newspaper,
although the Metro did run, “Donate to the K&C Foundation”, for at least the first three weeks after Grenfell.

Andrew Boff AM: s that information you have shared with us or can share with us on the profile of
donations? Yes, thank you so much. Perhaps to Ms Abrams, you took on the role of co-ordinating the gifts
in kind. What challenges did you have in that?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): The role
that we were asked to take in terms of dealing with the tremendous outpouring of compassion, where people
had been moved to empty their cupboards and bring physical belongings to the site, was a considerable
challenge. It was something we were asked to do by the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea. We have
a retail outlet, so we have over 100 stores across the UK, so we have a kind of logistical operation and
capability to do this.

There were 211 tonnes of goods distributed. That is the equivalent of three football pitches worth of goods.
Part of it was sorting, so what we did was there was sort around 40 tonnes of goods that had come directly
from stores, brand new, they all went straight to Humanitarian Assistance Centre in Westway and they were
distributed by other organisations, by the local authority. Then we sorted through the rest into goods that
could be sold and, frankly, there was quite a lot of goods that were not of saleable quality at all. We sorted
through those goods in a warehouse, we had hundreds of volunteers come and help us to complete that task.
Those goods were then tagged to specifically for Grenfell and put into our stores and then sold and every
penny that was raised went into the London Fire Relief Fund. That raised around, | think, over £200,000 to
go into the London Fire Relief Fund. In addition, we had people come into our shops and we had around
£50,000 worth of cash donations that came via our shops as well.

That is the role that we played but one of the difficulties that we faced in that was understanding from media
and the local community about our role in dealing with those goods. One of the questions we were asked
was, “Who has given you the right to do this?” We were asked to by the local authority and the question is, if
we had not have done it, who else would have done it, in terms of distributing those goods. It was the right
thing to do and to a certain extent there was a little bit of opportunity cost for us because all those
volunteers that came in to sort the goods for Grenfell were not then working in our stores helping to raise
general funds for other British Red Cross work, both in the UK and across the world. It was absolutely the
right thing to do and we have the capability to do it, so we stepped up.

Andrew Boff AM: There did not appear to be any communication going out that more stuff was not going
to help; more physical goods were not going to help. Why was that?

Page 28



Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): That
would have been a requirement for the local authority to say that and in those first days, the majority of the
goods came in the first few days, or certainly there was a large volume of them anyway. We know the series
of events that happened and an additional Gold Command was brought in on the Saturday so the
communication with the community was the responsibility of the authorities. At that point in time the British
Red Cross had not been asked to help distribute the goods that were being donated; that did not come until
it was the week commencing the 19 June we started having the conversations, and then operationalised after
that.

Andrew Boff AM: From the 19 June you were --

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): No, that
there was a meeting with the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea to say, “We have all these donations.
We do not know what to do with them, could you help?”

Andrew Boff AM: You went to them or they came to you?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): There
was a meeting. | do not know who set it up.

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, GLA): There was a point in those early days
before the Red Cross were involved, where | remember Kensington trying to push out comms messages that
they did not need any more things. | cannot remember at what point that was, but it was definitely in that
first few days when it became clear they had a lot of donations.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): We were putting that out within 5 hours, we
could not move on Walmer Road. It was literally down the street. We were trying to get that message out in
5 hours.

Andrew Boff AM: Of donations?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): No more donations. We are talking thousands
and thousands of packets of nappies and things like that. It was literally down the street, and many London
mosques turned up to help us clear that. That was on day one, just people just turned up, sorted it, and took
it away in vans. You could not get up and down the street.

Andrew Boff AM: Some people who were clearly in need of clothing and other physical items could not
access them, because they did not live in Grenfell or had moved to a hotel and had no proof of address. Is
that a situation you recognise, and how did it happen if it is?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): We almost entirely worked with people from
the Tower. Our resources were focused on that and anyone from the Tower. We were very fortunate in that,
in terms of clothing and stuff like that. We had lots of retailers across London who sent lots of new stuff to
us and we had an army of volunteers who were helping people get that within hours. | know that was a
similar situation for other local organisations. But we were helped as well by Google, Apple, Dixons Stores
Group, who got everybody back online and gave everyone phones with free contracts. We set up a pop-up-
shop around the corner that was staffed by Apple and lots of volunteers who got people back online. There
was a whole kind of co-ordinated effort. The issue of ID is not one that we recognise because we kind of

Page 29



knew just about everyone in the Tower, but if anybody turned up for assistance with clothes to us or anyone
else, they would absolutely have been helped.

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): Following on from Zoe’s point in terms of distribution, |
think it is important to say that 165 households who received money from the Red Cross via RPT were told in
the late summer/early autumn that, of the money they were receiving, £1,000 came directly as a
consequence of the sales of those goods as well. That information was passed on as well.

Andrew Boff AM: What was the Mayor’s role on the ground in relation to these kinds of gifts, Ms Strain?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, GLA): One of the first things that we did
strategically in the morning, | made it clear to that group that we had Team London Volunteering, which
also --

Andrew Boff AM: Which morning?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, GLA): The Thursday, so the morning after. We
had Team London Volunteering resources that we were very happy to deploy and could be deployed very
quickly. As has been discussed in here already, we struggled to get Kensington to come back to us on
whether they wanted those resources and when and how we could help with that. The offer was made on the
15th and then, over the following couple of days, we also reached out directly to Kensington to see if we
could get them to engage on the topic of volunteering particularly. We also went to the London Local
Authority Gold and made the same offer. In the end, Kensington came back to us on Monday, the 19 June,
to say that they would like some support but that support is more for community liaison and communications
support as opposed to the donations, which obviously by that point the British Red Cross were looking after.

In the end, the Team London Volunteers provided community support and provided support from 20 June
until about the 30 June when we deployed 168 volunteers over that timeframe. For me, looking at learnings,
there needs to be quicker and better deployment of resources. Kensington were overrun with people wanting
to help but we had volunteers. You need them to co-ordinate that resource. Team London had that ability,
the Red Cross had that ability, and we are both working together with the London Resilience Team, and there
is a subgroup that deals with the voluntary sector for that place to kind of think about how we improve that
in the future.

Andrew Boff AM: Thank you. Ms Abrams, would you concur with that and is there anything else you want
to add as to what the Mayor could have done at the time? No? If there was no communication from the
Mayor to stop the flow, you were expecting the local authority to do that; is that correct? Why do you think
so many people opted for online crowd funding, and what were the issues with the crowd funding? Perhaps
Ms Abrams.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): | think
what we saw last summer was these horrific events, but also the amazing spirit of the British people, their
kindness, and it is a spontaneous response when you see somebody suffering to try to do something to help.
People could clearly imagine themselves in the situations that these people living in the Tower and around
there were in and, because of the nature of the fact that it was on television, it was on social media, the fire
went on for such a long time, it was unsurprising and in some ways one of the kind of positive things that you
can see about humanity rallying around. People will want to take action themselves; some people will want to
set up their own fundraising, other people will choose to donate via a well-known brand, other people will

Page 30



seek out a local organisation because they believe they will have the experience and know-how and trust of
the community, which was very clearly the case with RBT, to be able to be most effective. We live in a digital
world, so people are used to raising money and doing everything online and we need to be, as a charity
sector, as agile and responsive as people are in the rest of their lives.

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): | want to add to what Zoe was saying there, in
my day job, as Head of Policy at the Fundraising Regulator working with charities, we are engaging with the
Charity Commission with the fundraising platforms - because they have a variety of different forms, some of
them are commercial companies, some of them are registered charities, some are stages between - to try to
get some better requlation and better messaging in there, so that the public has good guidance about what
happens when you decide to donate through a fundraising platform. You have to be very sure where the
money is going. If you name a charity, if you name the British Red Cross or the K&C Foundation, as the end
recipient of the money that you collect, that is very straightforward because there is an entity there that can
be seen and the platform can transfer the money with the gift aid if appropriate.

If you are just saying, “I want to raise money because | want to help”, and you do not specify clearly where
the money goes that is very clearly going to cause problems. Some of the issues that came up in Manchester
and at Grenfell, and to a lesser extent at London Bridge and Westminster, meant that everybody had to work
very hard to decide where the money should go, so that the donors were getting what they wanted, clarity
about helping people affected by the fire at Grenfell, but making sure that the money went through a route
that would ensure it got there. There is a lot of work we have to do on the requlatory side, the Fundraising
Regulator and the Charity Commission, to make that a better reality so that people have greater assurance
about the safety of the donations that they make and that they encourage others to make. Zoe was saying it
is a new form of fundraising, it is getting bigger and bigger all the time, nobody wants to get in the way
though of the generosity that people are expressing when they do that.

Andrew Boff AM: Just go back a little bit of a stage about some of the timings, we kind of know that
everybody was working really hard, | am just trying to get an idea of the timeline and who activated this.
Ms Abrams, was it you that approached the local authority offering assistance, or did they come to
yourselves?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): We
approached them.

Andrew Boff AM: When did you do that?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): It took
us a while to get hold of them, the conversation ended up happening on the Thursday.

Andrew Boff AM: You had tried on the Wednesday to contact them?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Yes, and
so effectively, because we are part of the Resilience Forums, on an operational level we were already in
conversation. It was about having a conversation with the Chief Executive around our fundraising capability
as well and offering that as part of our capability. What we have said in the past is that we need to be asked
to launch a fundraising appeal, and as | mentioned earlier, in future, we may take a right to initiate without
being able to make that where things are failing, because it was a very complex situation and the local
authority was struggling to manage everything that was going on.

Page 31



Andrew Boff AM: You called the local authority; did you call the Mayor’s Office or the GLA as well?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Emma
[Strain] and | were already talking because we had been working together on the London Bridge, so we were
in constant communication, and ultimately Emma gave me John Barradell’s [Chief Executive, City of London
Corporation] phone number, which | passed to my chief executive, so that we could have the conversation.
That was a very helpful facilitative role that was played.

Andrew Boff AM: When was that?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): That
part of it was on the Friday.

Andrew Boff AM: But, prior to the Thursday, when you finally got communication with K&C, you are saying
you were trying to get communication with them. Did you try to get hold of the GLA as well prior to
Thursday?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): We were
already talking, yes.

Andrew Boff AM: Sorry, you were already talking?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): It is the
local authority that we would need to have the conversation with, on offering to raise funds and we offered
to distribute funds --

Andrew Boff AM: You were talking to the GLA on the Wednesday about the possibility of offering
assistance, is that correct?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Yes, but
we were talking, but the conversation that we needed to have was with the Royal Borough of Kensington and
Chelsea as the responsible body.

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, GLA): To be honest, we were the Strategic Co-
ordination Group and the discussions that happened afterwards, we were all, on a variety of different topics,
attempting to get Kensington to engage and give us some decisions on that piece.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): We have
a special status, so we are not an NGO; we are an auxiliary to Government established in Royal charter, so we
have a relationship with the authority. That is the same in any Red Cross/Red Crescent society around the
world, it has a specific relationship and we are guided by our fundamental principles of humanity, neutrality,
impartiality, so we exist in part to help serve when there are emergencies that are so big that the authorities
are struggling to meet the humanitarian need and that is where we can come in and provide assistance.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): OK, thank you.

Page 32



Andrew Boff AM: You were in communication with the GLA, you had tried to get hold of the London
Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, at any point did anyone from the Strategic Co-ordinating Group, which
was set up at 5.00 am on the morning of the tragedy, had they tried to contact you at all?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): We are
on the Strategic Co-ordinating Group in terms of operations, which is why on the Wednesday night, or on the
night the fire broke out, we had our volunteers at the site providing humanitarian support, and so that
includes emergency response volunteers and then very specifically we have psychosocial support volunteers
who are people with, for example, a clinical background who are able to help people who have been
traumatised. We were physically, in terms of operations, humanitarian operations - taking it by its strictest
definition - we were involved right from the outset.

Andrew Boff AM: You were part of the Strategic Co-ordinating Group, as per the London Resilience
Partnership Strategic Co-ordination Protocol, and that caused you no problem in there. It kind of infers that
it is the decision-maker, does it not, or were you told to wait for the permission of the local authority before
you did any work?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): We
generally deal with the operational side and the fundraising side separately. Our focus would be on the
people in crisis and what practical help we can give them, and then the conversation would generally be at a
leadership level. That is what happened in, for example, Manchester, we would seek a conversation with the
leadership of the authority to say, “We think that there is big public response and desire to give in relation to
this, can we work with you to fundraise?” Particularly one of the conversations we would be having there is,
“We have expertise in fundraising”. We do it as part of our humanitarian response and we can handle issues
like, for example, the fact that we understand there needs to be a distributing body, we understand how to
phrase the terminology when you launch a fund, all those kinds of conversations as well.

Andrew Boff AM: | do not expect you to remember right now, but you contacted the K&C Foundation on
the Thursday, then communications started, | would really appreciate if you can let us know what time that
was. | am not expecting you to remember straight away, unless you do. That would be great.

Mr Oppenheim, when was the first call that you got to seek assistance or did you make the call, and who
from?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): Again, we were already working with our
fundraising partners at the Red Cross and | cannot tell you the time or exactly when, but we certainly had a
very early conversation with the Chief Executive of the Red Cross about what was going on and the fact that
the Red Cross had been activated to fundraise, as Zoe [Abrams] has been saying.

Andrew Boff AM: Forgive me, would that have been on the Wednesday or the Thursday?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): | will have to check, to be honest, | cannot
remember off the top of my head, but it was very early on. If it was not Wednesday it was Thursday, so it was
24 hours or thereabouts, so that we could bring our expertise to bear. It was becoming very apparent very
quickly that there had been loss of life and that people had been injured, so we were, given what we were
doing at the other sites already in existence, an obvious place to go to distribute charitable funds in those
circumstances. But we will check the dates for you.

Page 33



Andrew Boff AM: Thank you very much. Mr Farnsworth, you were saying that people were speaking a
language you did not understand, to paraphrase, when you were talking to the local authority or authorities.
What kind of clarity would you have been seeking?

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): | think in terms of just the Gold Command structure,
which the Committee now has a deeper knowledge of - and some of you have particularly deep knowledge of
- that was not something that | was personally familiar with, so, in terms of understanding that, the side of A4
that says what that is, and a greater awareness in terms of the community voluntary sector in times when
there are not emergency situations, such that when they do happen it is not a great surprise the sort of
language used. Because it could take on a sort of mystique attached to language, which is unhelpful on the
ground, what is “Gold”? “What is Gold doing?” sort of thing. Therefore, it is an area where officials and first
responders and British Red Cross are very familiar with this language, but personally it was not something |
had encountered before. Although, by dint of the relationship between City Bridge Trust and the City of
London Corporation and the experience of the 7/7 bombings, | was familiar with the broader resilience piece.

Andrew Boff AM: Were you familiar with the London Resilience Partnership or the protocols?

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): By dint of different roles | have, | was familiar, because
in terms of by dint of the City Bridge Trust relationship with the 7/7 bombings and also the LET. | am a
trustee of that LET, so | was privy to that aspect of the conversations. Then by dint of my role as Chair of
London Funders, of which every London borough is a member of, again | was familiar with work in this area.
But | had not personally engaged in any of the resilience exercises or anything in terms of preparatory
response.

Andrew Boff AM: Finally, | wonder if there is a general awareness of strategic co-ordination protocols set
up by the Mayor of London, is there an awareness of that?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): In a general sense, yes, because that is what we
had always talked about from the time that we decided to put the LET into place as part of the response, so
that meant engagement with officials at City Hall to make sure roles were understood and what we could
deliver was understood. We have been doing that, had that general awareness, if not detailed involvement.

Andrew Boff AM: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Let us move on to our next set of questions, Assembly Member Berry.

Sian Berry AM: Yes, thank you very much. | think we wanted to talk now about the distribution of the aid
that was provided and who it went to and when, if that is OK. In terms of the money that was raised, if we
can start with the LET, who | think you said previously you had basically been set up to support bereaved
people and injured people because of your background of that in relation to terrorist attacks. Do you know
what proportion of the money that has been raised has gone out in those kinds of bereavement and

hospitalisation-type payments?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): | can give you a figure across all five incidents, if that is
helpful. Since March, we have worked in five incidents and we have made awards to 215 people --

Sian Berry AM: | am just asking about Grenfell.

Page 34



Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): About Grenfell, sorry, we have made awards to 71
fatality cases at Grenfell and 59 injury cases, so they are people who were injured and hospitalised for
different periods of time.

Sian Berry AM: You have given out £90,000 for every fatality, and that is more than usual because of the
higher level of donations.

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): So far, yes, and we are beginning now, working with
the Red Cross over the last few days, to increase that tariff to £100,000 per fatality.

Sian Berry AM: Then people hospitalised for a week or more, £30,000. That is also higher than usual?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): It is the same now - it takes us back to our parity point,
- as with the four terror sites. We have managed to get parity there. Across all five incidents, if you had been
hospitalised for a week or longer, the payment level is £30,000.

Sian Berry AM: This money that has gone out to people, bereaved families, but also people who are injured,
did it go out in one go or have you added it in tranches?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): No, it did not. At the start, Gerald [Oppenheim]
described some of the complexity of not knowing either how much was coming in or ultimately the number of
people you are dealing with, and so that has been a management challenge and a communication challenge,
because at no point have we unfortunately been able to say to a bereaved family, “This is the sum that
ultimately you will get”. We began with clarity saying we know what an initial payment will look like and we
shared that information widely in the first few days and weeks. But, broadly speaking, over the last six or
seven months, we have increased the payment levels every month. We began, for example, in the case of
fatalities, we began in July, £20,000 per fatality, and that went up to £40,000 in August, £60,000 in
September, £90,000 in November, and will now be £100,000.

That has been challenging because it makes financial management difficult for those recipients. We
communicate generally with bereaved families through the police family liaison officers and the key workers
attached to them. We indicate that more money is likely. We give a rough sense of how much and when, but
we cannot unfortunately give specific details months in advance.

Sian Berry AM: That makes quite a lot of sense. Do you know how much in total has been given out in
these kinds of payments?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): Yes, we have given out just about £7 million now in
these kinds of payments. We gave a further £773,000 to survivors.

Sian Berry AM: | will get on to survivors in a minute; | just want to take these one by one if that is OK.
That is £7 million out of £20 million, nearly £21 million that has been distributed so far in those kinds of
payments.

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): To be clear, we had just a little over £8 million to

distribute to bereaved and injured at Grenfell. Most of that came from the Red Cross, but also, as you have
heard, from London Community Foundation and K&C Foundation.

Page 35



Sian Berry AM: OK, great. We have a table here of the distribution and trying to move on to the survivors.
| mean there is a crossover, some survivors were injured and hospitalised and some were not, but there are a
lot of people - | think it is 255 families - who were made homeless by the fire and those are the ones who,
certainly as an ex-representative, have taken up much of my time trying to work on the practicalities of that.
According to my table here - | am looking at Mark [Simms] from RPT - there are payments that have gone
out from your trust of cash to all of the families who were displaced, and it was not based on injury or
anything. Was that distributed equally to all families? How were you determining their need when you gave
out the payments?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): | can be very, very honest with you. We put a
call out to our donors. We wanted physical cash, so in those first few hours people turned up from right
across the borough and parts of London and tipping up their purses and stuff and we had over £100,000 and
it broadly went something like this, the conversation, because it was human-to-human, “How many people
are in your house and how much do you think you would need?” Some people said, “I think | need £5007,
and that is what we gave them. It was just that. We did not have criteria, we just worked with people broadly
based on their needs and said, because we knew most people were going to go to a hotel, we said, “We are
here tomorrow”. Because it is things like, if you are a size 3%z shoe and we only have 5s or 2s, you have no
shoes, it was that kind of stuff. We were really practical about it and worked with people on an individual
basis.

Sian Berry AM: That is really good. On this table, though, there are lines that come under you having
distributed it. There is a line that says, “£10,000 for every household from Grenfell Tower and Grenfell Walk
from the K&C Foundation fund, and further funds from Karalina Hardy’s Just Giving appeal”. You did that.
You gave that £10,000 to people?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): That came to us. In total, if it helps, we have
given out to individual households in the Tower just over £83,000 in total to each individual household as a
minimum, and to people from Grenfell Walk £30,000 as a minimum, and they are minimum figures because in
those early days after the fire some families had £2,000, some families had £400, some people managed to
get out, like we were offering people assistance and they said, “No, | have my bank cards and | can work and
that kind of stuff, | do not want any money”. It was individualised, but those are the broad figures. We were
doing distributions for the K&C Foundation, British Red Cross, and in the very early days after the fire the
Evening Standard Dispossessed Fund asked us to distribute £1,000 to every family, and then a couple of days
later another £1,000.

Sian Berry AM: You are confident that you had all the families on your list, | mean there were not any
missing people?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): We think we have, yes.

Sian Berry AM: Was that from the beginning that you had them all, because, as far as | understood it, there
were various different aid organisations, you managed to get a consolidated number together quite quickly?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): Oddly, since within a week of the fire, we think
we got about the right number and since then we have had two additional families that we have made
payments to, they were very individualised cases where people were getting divorced and stuff like that and
were not living with one family. But, yes, because the families themselves, the people from Grenfell Tower
worked with us and were coming to us every day, and within hours of the fire, what has now become Grenfell

Page 36



United, have quite a definitive list of the missing and who was in each flat, so we have reasonably reliable
data.

Sian Berry AM: OK, thank you. There is another line on the table that is a grant of £15,000 to each of the
households from the Tower and £8,000 to the Grenfell Walk households. That was on you as well. |s that
separate, or does that just happen to be on two lines?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): It is in with that £83,000. Those figures
amount to that. It is kind of like there is another line on there, sorry, from the Art for Grenfell, £1.9 million
that was something that they raised, they gave to us on the Thursday and we distributed that in its entirety
on the Friday.

Sian Berry AM: Was that given out as sort of cash payments to survivors as well?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): No, all of these larger figures were into bank
accounts and we helped the people who had survived the fire to get their bank accounts sorted out within a
few days.

Sian Berry AM: When | say cash | just mean money rather than cash.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): Yes, directly into bank accounts. We did
physically give cash but the larger amounts have all gone through banks for faster payments.

Sian Berry AM: OK and people who did not have bank accounts or had lost their stuff, you helped them set
up new accounts?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): We helped them to, yes.

Sian Berry AM: OK, thank you very much. Moving on to the next set of people, then there is the
community groups who were helping and you are one, you said you initially raised some of your own money
directly from people you already knew, then you started to receive money partly to distribute, partly to spend
on your own activities. There were lots of other community groups around the place doing work, looking
after people, there is a very diverse community there, there were groups from different cultures, different
types of community centres serving different populations. Were you also the people on the ground helping
to direct funds and practical things that were needed towards them? Because that seems to have been, when
| went to visit on the 19 and 20 June, and then later that month, those seem to have been the more
problematic things to try to get help for.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): We were talking to other people that we knew
but in the immediate days after the fire people facilitated really human response, neighbour to neighbour,
person to person, and set up little groups of their own and were working with quite defined groups of people
or indeed with the broader community doing different things. Our role, right from day one, was that we said
our focus was going to be supporting survivors, so we were not doing community infrastructure stuff. We
were not working with people from the broader Lancaster Estate. We have a staff group of 20 people and we
were keeping our building open just about not short of 20 hours a day with staff and volunteers. The
survivors wanted somewhere safe, where they knew there was going to be no press and, forgive me, they
knew there was going to be no politicians, and they knew there was going to be no sort of hypersensitive

Page 37



media attention. We said, “This is your building, we will work with you”. We did not need to ask for ID and
all that kind of stuff, it became their base, we worked with survivors exclusively.

Sian Berry AM: OK, so you were not really doing any distribution to other groups around the area. My
question to the rest of the panel is: how did they get support? Certainly, | think, when | visited, there were
identified needs emerging, notably for counselling in the wider community, for support for children’s activities
who had been disrupted with school and things like that, and really translation was an issue that | found very
difficult to get sorted out. | tried to liaise via the Red Cross people on the ground, just thinking they seemed
to be the right people, | tried to notify the Mayor’s Office. In the end, a small group of people who were
worried that the official information that was going out, and we all know the rumour mill that there was and
the difficulties, people without English as their first language needed to see the official information, the legal
advice from Inquest and the information from the Red Cross in their own languages. In the end that group, |
helped them get a tiny grant from another funder that | know who is not related to any of you and they did
manage to do that. They had a lot of volunteer translators but they needed to fill the gaps in. But they did
that themselves. | cannot see on this table much support going out to the wider community outside of RBT.

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): Most of the work to wider communities is not detailed
in this; it was funded through co-ordinated efforts through people like London Funders and other trusts and
foundations. Most of that money - in fact | do not think any came from what was raised - came from
institutional funders.

Sian Berry AM: The £20 million has primarily gone to survivors and families. Moving on, there was a grant
fund set up by London Funders. Can you tell us about that?

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): Yes, so on that point, | mean there was an early
awareness that what was being given out to individuals, there were a lot of organisations whose day job was
totally put on one side to respond to the immediate emergency. There were early conversations, which
involved London Funders, the then director of London Funders, and also conversations with DCLG, through
Gold Command, to try to get some resource in, in a simple way, to be accessed by those organisations. There
is a lot of detail on that. | am not sure whether you want that today or we can get it to you. | thought that
was being considered later in one of your sessions. In terms of the independent funding community coming
together, with some statutory money to get money out and working together, there was significant work
done by London Funders, but also with John Lyon’s Charitable Trust, on the ground, particularly on the
children focus. A list, which again we could get to you, in terms of different foundations working together
through a single point of entry and then linking with people on the ground in terms of accessing that money.

Sian Berry AM: When was that fund set up?

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): Again, | do not know the exact date, but | can get that
to you. There was £1 million that the DCLG made available to distribute through that initial central pot and |
think, from memory - again, | can confirm the exact dates - there were four tranches of payments made out
to organisations through an infrastructure fund, and then there were separate collaborative funding efforts
particularly focused on children and a couple of other aspects. There is a whole raft of information on that,
which is easier to document and more readily available, but, again, that was something that I think, in terms
of future planning, could be anticipated. It was something that emerged rather than it being triggered by the
structural piece.

Page 38



Sian Berry AM: We have things like support for Moroccan women, Arabic speaking women, there is a centre
that | visited a couple of months later, they had not received any grants, they had not really had any
information on how they could get grants and the Deputy Mayor gave them some information on how they
might do that. But they had been running, all their staff had been doing overtime, they had been running on
volunteer time, they had really pulled out all the stops, but these organisations --

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): Is that the Moroccan Women’s Centre?
Sian Berry AM: Yes.

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): They did get a grant.

Sian Berry AM: They did, | think in the end they did. But it was hard to keep your staffing up.

Susan Dolton (Director, Kensington and Chelsea Foundation): It was pretty early on. The funding for
community organisations, | cannot remember the timing either, but certainly for young people’s activities,
those were during the summer holidays, which, by definition, are mid-July, so it happened pretty quickly, the
community funding.

Sian Berry AM: That is good. | would like to see a report on that because | think that is something we
could have planned better for, and | do not know if Zoe [Abrams] has a view on this, people giving to the
fund, the charitable funds, may have imagined that money was going to go towards the healing of the
community and support of the community, the humanitarian support, more than it might have been going
into grants to the individuals.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): You can
only use the money for what you say on the front of your appeal it is being raised for, and | guess we will be
limited by that in regard to how it got set up. Just a few points that | would make as well, which is that in
that phone conversation that happened on the Thursday between the Chief Executive of the British Red Cross
and the Chief Executive of the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, the Red Cross did offer to
distribute cash and that was not taken up. That is something that we do in an international context.

Sian Berry AM: Distribute cash to local groups?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): No, to
people, to survivors, to people in humanitarian need essentially. In terms of communications as well, several
of my team went to gold on the Saturday when it was moved to there and started proactively taking on what
was an auxiliary communications role and that was particularly in terms of social media in regard to sharing
information about how you could access support, including advertising our support line, and again that is
somewhere where members of the public, those affected, survivors, could get in contact and find out
information.

The other thing that | would like to say as well is that part of the role that the British Red Cross has played
has been in reuniting families. That is something we have strong expertise in as the largest provider of
services to refugees in the country, so we put £100,000 into bringing families over for funerals or to be in
touch with people who have been affected by this tragedy.

Page 39



Sian Berry AM: Really good. You are saying that the fact that the appeal said, “For the victims”,
essentially, we will give the money to them, that restricted in charitable terms what the money could be used
for, it could not be used for the wider support that was supporting the victims but was not the victims
themselves.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): That is
my understanding of how Charity Law works, | am sure Gerald [Oppenheim] can confirm that exactly. What is
also interesting as well in regard to this is when we have been thinking about this latest distribution we had a
conversation with Grenfell United, who are an organisation, a self-mobilising organisation of survivors, about
whether or not they wanted us to, for example, focus the next distribution on children who had been affected
directly and they were ambiguous about that. We have attempted to have conversations with the community,
the community are diverse and are not as one necessarily. Making decisions is complex, in regard to how to
best steward this money that the public have given.

Sian Berry AM: GCerald, can | ask you a bit more about that because | think potentially all the LET, there are
aspects of this emergency that were perhaps not covered by the immediate fundraising effort, is that
something you might change in the future and how do you respond to criticisms that some of the aid
reaching people was a bit slow potentially?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): As we have said, our role was very clear, it is to
support the next of kin and the injured through making charitable gifts. As we have said, the British Red
Cross, the K&C Foundation, London Community Foundation, and a few other small contributions, is the
primary source for that. The trustees view there is that we stick to what we are good at there. We did make
some money available through RBT to get to survivors and that was again as a part of the discussion that was
going on with the Red Cross, with RBT as the distribution arm for that. But we have a clear view that is where
our remit is.

We do not have a view at all about the use that individuals who get the money, we do not have a view about
how they use it, it is up to them. It is a charitable gift, pure and simple, and we act within our objects to do
that, within our charitable objects, so that is absolutely clear.

In terms of the speed of distribution, as Rob was saying earlier on, this is complicated. What we learned as a
result of 7/7 is that families, particularly where there has been loss of life, next of kin, particularly in cases
where people are more seriously injured, the money is not the first thought. It comes along of course and it is
helpful and welcome, particularly because the way we do it, it is a gift, we do not mind what you use it for,
not our call. It is there to support you and we are the vehicle that helps express public generosity to people
in severe distress and need. That is the way we look at it.

Certainly, at Grenfell some of the money - and again Rob [Bell] can add to this in a second - some of the
money went out fairly speedily, we built it up over time, but there have been a significant number of cases,
which were very, very complicated. For example, where the next of kin was a minor and what you are talking
about here is putting money into trust so that they can draw it as they achieve their majority. There are cases
where there may be questions over the capacity of the person who is next of kin, so very, very complicated
arrangements to have to put in place. Working with people who might, for example, have to be named as
guardians for the person you are putting the money in trust for, engaging with different family circumstances,
very large dispersed families, not all necessarily in the UK either, in other European countries or in North
Africa typically where Grenfell is concerned. Where sadly in some cases, as colleagues have mentioned,
families had broken up and you had different legal advisers representing different parts of the same overall

Page 40



family where we have had to broker arrangements. That of course takes time and sometimes that makes it
appear that money is moving slowly when there are very, very clear cases why not.

As we were saying earlier, there was a perception that we were not distributing all the money we had, but that
was because we were providing for a greater number of fatalities, in particular, than were known early on and

that only became clear at the end of the year. As soon as we knew that the number was 71, we could release

money into the system. We could always be better at communicating all of that, those are not easy messages
to get over, but that is what we sought to do and | think that is a good lesson learned.

Sian Berry AM: | appreciate that you needed to be thorough, but also that the speed did seem to be rather
slow, the headline figure that came out in August | think was released by the Charity Commission was that
only 15% had been distributed. Even if you are thinking about the uncertainty you are talking about, it
seems rather low.

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): But what we are doing where next of kin are
concerned in particular and where people are in hospital, we do, in order to act responsibly and fulfil our
duties as trustees, we do have to have some evidence for that and, as we have referred earlier, some of the
data to do that was very slow in coming and did not help any of us get the money out as quickly as we would
have liked. Where you are dealing with next of kin, you need some basic evidence that the person that you
are going to assist is indeed the next of kin. We follow the Intestacy Act 1925 as the key bit of UK law to
underpin that. That sets out a hierarchy of relationship where it is not immediately clear. But, because of
particular family circumstance sometimes, you couple that with trustee discretion about what the best thing
to do in the circumstances is, and it does take a time sometimes to establish that. It may appear slow but we
were moving at the pace of families, on the one hand, and at the pace of the data and the evidence that we
needed to support the awards on the other. Do you want to add to that, Rob?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): That is very comprehensive and it reflects our
experience on the ground. My main concern for the first fortnight was whether in the cacophony around the
money available and the noise and information and misinformation, would we be able to communicate with
those who were bereaved or injured so they knew they could apply? But we were paying out within three
weeks to bereaved families and we were doing that by working with the police, with the key workers, making
sure that they all knew and were sharing that information face-to-face, which incidentally was in my
experience a much more effective way of communicating in that context. We were passing out written
material that was disseminated in other ways, but we felt that the relationship-based flow of information was
much more reliable. Within a few weeks, we had a high volume of applications, we were beginning to pay
out, and then, as Gerald says, we were trying to go at the pace of the family and the police and doing the
work. There were very few cases that stalled because we could not track down documents, very few.

Sian Berry AM: That is fair enough. Quite a lot of this seems to stem from the fact that you are treating
these payments more like bequests than aid. Mark, you put your hand up; you were just giving out money?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): We would have been able to do more, but (1)
we had not been asked and (2) we did not think it was our role and (3) we were quite reticent about it
because of all the noise around mistrust and so on and we were part of the community. But within a couple
of weeks people like the K&C Foundation, Evening Standard Dispossessed Fund, were saying, “Could you
give £10,000?” We did not have a grants team. We had youth workers and volunteers, and RPT is a local
charity that is also part of a larger national charity that is based up in Derbyshire. We merged ten years ago
but RBT remains intact. Within a week or so of this we started to think we might have to, and then we went

Page 41



to a meeting with the Charity Commission. It told us in late July [2017] that it would like us to be the single
distribution point and, “Can you go away and build a grants team”. That is what we did. There was a slight
complication in that the LET has dispensation that if it makes a gift it does not affect people’s welfare
benefits, pensions, tax and so on. We were not part of that and we very quickly made sure that we were. We
were dealing with those practical issues. There was this issue about, “If | get this money, does it mean | am
not going to get a house? If | get this money, does it mean the borough are off the hook?” and all that kind
of stuff.

Sian Berry AM: We have down here that it took until 4 August [2017] for the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) to confirm that payments would not affect people’s benefits. You can see that that was a
problem.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): That is right. You will see after 4 August that
payments escalated and we became the single distributor. We had a very straightforward way of doing that,
we did not require any further identification and all that kind of stuff.

Sian Berry AM: We have an awful lot of money that has been donated by the Red Cross that is a
humanitarian disaster relief organisation providing things on the ground. We are all very familiar with its work
abroad, for example. That is the kind of work that was needed for very many displaced people. However, we
have the LET that is by necessity, because of the objectives you have written down, giving out essentially
insurance type and bequest type payments only. That might be an issue. Did you say the LET was essentially
set up under the Mayor’s jurisdiction but is now independent? Is there something the Mayor’s Office could
do to change the remit so more of the money donated after events could go to humanitarian assistance?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): No, the Mayor’s involvement back in 2005,
after 7/7 happened and the shock of that day, was to launch what initially for just a few days was referred to
as the Mayor’s Fund, but when set up in law it very quickly became the LBRCF with independent trustees
because that is what charity law requires. From that moment LBRCF - and then LET, when it was set up -
were completely independent charities, with their own trustees and their own decision making. However, of
course, we work in concert with all the others who have involvement, as we have been explaining this
morning.

Sian Berry AM: You were distributing funds collected by these other bodies as well. Your restricted remit
limited what could happen?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): Indeed, that is based on what was done in
2005, the historic experience of that and the evaluation of it at the time. Also - as David [Farnsworth]
referred to earlier on - a ten-year look back in 2015 at what worked and why in 2005 it worked really, really
well compared to other similar sorts of funds around the world responding to disasters that often have ended
up in legal horrors, which thankfully we never have and have not to this day. We have that model and it
works. It can always be better, of course, it can. Perfection takes longer.

Sian Berry AM: This is not a criticism of how well you work according to your original remit.
Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): No, | understand the question.

Sian Berry AM: Can | ask Emma? One of the things we have talked about is the likelihood of other things
happening in London. This was a fire. We have had terrorist attacks. There have been floods due to burst

Page 42



water mains and there are other types of floods that could happen in London due to severe weather events.
There are many things that might not cause death and injury but might cause displacement and humanitarian
need. Is there a case for the Mayor to do something different and has that been looked at by the Mayor’s
Office?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): What is really
important is that the Mayor’s role is to be that voice for London, to reassure people and to talk to them. The
local resilience arrangements around housing and all those kinds of things rightfully fall to the boroughs
because in this building we cannot provide that practical support.

Sian Berry AM: No, it is the fundraising | am talking about. The LET is basically the only vehicle we have
for London-wide fundraising and distributing. That is something potentially that is the Mayor’s remit.

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): One of the other
things that happened around Grenfell was that the Regeneration Team, which is led by Debbie Jackson
[Assistant Director of Regeneration, GLA], set up a fund to support businesses that had been impacted by the
events of the fire, for example if their customers could not get to them. We did that this time as well. We
would look to using those kinds of models again, if appropriate, as how we can provide support. That is the
first one that springs to mind.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): From a
British Red Cross perspective, we are very live to some of the tensions you describe. As an executive team,
we have had a lot of conversations about it. In fact, we published this report last week, Harnessing the Power
of Kindness for Communities in Crisis so we have done a lot of thinking about it.

The point we have come to is that people should expect the British Red Cross to take that right to initiate in
future and, in the immediate aftermath of an emergency, that would include us distributing cash ourselves.
We would still want to work with distributing bodies on the distribution that requires case work, which is what
LET has particular expertise in. However, we feel we have a duty to be there more quickly and to be the
organisation that people expect us to be which, as you say, is a humanitarian aid organisation.

Sian Berry AM: In the future there would be no blockage and you would give out cash. You would have a
blanket reassurance - presumably from people like DWP - that this would not affect benefits and other things
people might need to get from their local authorities.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): That
would be ideal. That is only one conversation that has gone on. We also were having a conversation with the
Home Office about people who were worried about their immigration status, them being given space to be
able to have their humanitarian needs met first and foremost - for them to be seen as people first - and then
worry about their immigration status in the fullness of time.

Sian Berry AM: We had that conversation at our last review. It took a long time to get that reassurance.

Page 43



Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Yes.

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): It is worth adding - amongst those important
points that Zoe made just now - that last Friday the Charity Commission got all of us, and others, together
because the experience that has been gathered through 2017 has been in London and in Manchester but,
obviously, an incident could take place in any other town or city. The question as well is how we collectively -
and this inquiry is very clearly part of that and all the better for it - take all that collective experience into
Government nationally to say when something happens - that is the age we live in, sadly - there is a proper
response that recognises where the skills lie and where the ability to mobilise quickly lies, whether it is the
BRC’s team of volunteers from Lands End northwards. There has to be a better response.

There is also an issue we have raised quite publicly with officials and Ministers, when we have had the chance,
about the Government’s own support for what has gone on, just not in the capital city because people who
get caught up in these come from wherever they come from when they are here. In Grenfell, those were
people who lived there but with families and next of kin in other places. There is a whole range of really
complicated issues that we need to work out to bring all of this together in a better way for the future.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Even though you have ongoing work to do, was there a debriefing on learning the
lessons around this particular exercise? Around that table were even smaller groups involved in that
conversation?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): Yes, to both of those. Certainly not just
Mark [Simms] for RBT on the ground, there were also people there from Muslim Aid and people from local
Muslim communities contributing their experience to that discussion in a really, really important way.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): When do you think that document will be available for the public?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): It is going to take a little while because that
was a first meeting. There must have been 30 - 35 of us around that table on Friday morning last week and
there will be a smaller group producing the report that pulls our direct collective experiences together. There
were people there from the Local Government Association (LGA) around the table as well, because of the
national perspective.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): We have already submitted some evidence to the various public inquiries on the
issues around the post-recovery response of the local government family. We would be very keen to have -
even if there was a summary - an indication of some of the issues and processes. | get the issue. It is very
clearly about regional and national organisations working with local organisations. That makes sense and |
see it internationally as well. It is how quickly you build that relationship up. | am getting a picture around
communication. | am getting a picture that people want to do something but sometimes their efforts are not
necessarily the right efforts. They rush in, giving you stuff you do not really need. It is important you deal
with it but it takes you away from the core bits you need to do in the immediate tragedy as you build up on
other issues. A picture is developing. We are obviously going to look at the transcript.

We have a few more questions to raise that start picking up some of those issues. Were all those things part
of the conversation you had around the table? Also, the end recipient of any support, how did they feel and
what was it like for them? It is always going to be difficult, but what it was like for the end person receiving
something.

Page 44



Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): The meeting was very much about the charity
response to this and the role that charities - whatever they may be and whatever their skills and expertise may
be - pull together to support first responders and to support the immediate aftermath. You are absolutely
right; there is a whole host of other things that sit with that.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Somehow, we have to get through that personal data issue that you mentioned
earlier on.

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): Very much so.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): In these circumstances how do we do that? Once we have that evidence we can
move on.

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): On data - it may be bit of a folk memory now
12 or 13 years on - but in 2005 access to data was not difficult. We knew who to give money to through the
then Gold Command and through the London teaching hospitals that took the injured. It took much longer
this time and | do not really understand why that should be.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): For the Assembly Members present, when we come to wrap this up we should not
lose sight of some of these issues that are emerging. We might be able to lend our voice to yours in terms of
moving some of those issues forward.

Let us move on to section 5. Section 5 is really concentrating on the Mayor’s role. Assembly Member Bacon?

Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman): Thank you, Chairman. Emma, this is all going to be aimed at you.
Could the Mayor take a direct fundraising role? As a result of Grenfell, you put the donations button on the
London.gov.uk website. How long did it take to set that up and how long did it stay on?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): | would not
consider it as a direct fundraising role. What we did with that was signpost the Red Cross’s fund. The reason
why we did that was that we were in a situation that was effectively an emergency. We were receiving calls in
from both the media and the public asking where the right place was to donate. That felt the right way to
provide that information to people. That was effectively a hyperlink that drives to that place. That is
semantics, but just to be clear on what that does. | would have to check the dates when it went up and how
long it was there for. | do not have that information to hand.

Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman): | was interested in how quickly that was set up.
Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): From a technical
perspective it does not take us long. | cannot remember when we decided that would be the right thing to do

and when it went live. | do not know. | would have to check.

Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman): Do you have any data showing how many people clicked through
that to the Red Cross site?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): Again, | am sorry, |
do not know. | can check.

Page 45



Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman): Perhaps that can be circulated a bit later on. Are there any other
examples of city mayors - probably not in this country, because obviously there are only a few, but maybe
overseas - acting in a similar way in response to similar circumstances?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): It has happened in
London on different occasions. We have talked about the bombings and the relief fund in 2005. There is a
place in the digital world for more direction from city mayors. Because of the digital world there are so many
different ways to donate and so many different options for that in terms of crowd funding and how these
things work. Personally, I think the modern-day age has made that role more important. The digital world
means it is easier for people who have less good intentions to establish sites and things so providing direction
to what is a legitimate fund is really important.

Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman): Completely reasonable. In the event of another - hopefully there
will not be - emergency such as this, is there anything that has been learned from the Grenfell process that
the Mayor would do differently next time?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): We informally
connected as a group here in a good way very early on. | checked my emails when we were talking earlier and
Gerald [Oppenheim] and | were in conversation at 8.38am on the morning after the fire broke out that
evening. Those relationships for us are really good and positive. We should keep having those discussions.
Using the Mayor, his voice and his reach from a communications perspective is really important going
forward.

Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman): Not going to wash up on specific lessons learned?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): One of the things
that we are looking to do is to ensure we can provide support to LET. One of the very important things is
that all of the money that is donated goes to the victims and is not used for administrative costs. One of the
things we are working on currently is putting some money in place that LET can use to cover things, like legal
fees, and the costs it needs to cover to run its operation. | am speaking for Gerald [Oppenheim] now, but
corporate donations have come in to help do that, but the idea is that we put an amount of funding in which
means Gerald and his colleagues can focus on the proper job. It can rely on that small pot of funding to cover
those base costs, and not have to rush out to corporate funders and think about how they are going to cover
legal fees, for example, in those early days. That is one of the things we are actively working on now.

Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman): In terms of the signposting, everyone has their own memories of
the Grenfell fire. The following day everyone wakes up, sees the appalling pictures on the television and that
obviously drives people to want to do something about it. They are looking to contribute. It makes perfect
sense for the GLA website to be used to direct people. How quickly was it established who the right people
to signpost people to were? How quickly was that done? | suppose that is a supplementary question to the
one | asked you earlier on about setting up the button on the website.

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): We were working
with the British Red Cross very early on in this process and had been in the events prior to that, with all of the
other disasters. We had a very strong working relationship with them. We also had worked previously with
the Evening Standard and its funds. It seemed that the Red Cross was a natural and trusted partner for this
piece.

Page 46



Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman): More or less instantaneously, OK.
Len Duvall AM (Chair): . Navin Shah?

Navin Shah AM: Thank you. Rob, you commented earlier on that some victims lost practically everything
and also touched upon financial management related aspects. If | can ask you and Gerald [Oppenheim], what
legal advice has been offered to recipients of donations to help them manage their funds, both long and
short term?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): There are two main things we have been involved in.
Earlier on we began conversations with other funders and with central Government officials about the need
for recipients of charitable donations to have access to free high-quality advice to help them with financial
management. There did not seem to be a very strong need expressed by the people we were dealing with but
we could see that if the distribution continued at the same pace some individuals could have substantial
amounts of money they were not used to dealing with. | am glad to say that at the end of last year there was
grant funding put into Kensington and Chelsea Citizens Advice Bureau that now offers that service to all
charitable recipients. If you are a bereaved family you can go to the Family and Friends Assistance Centre, sit
down with someone and get information about how you manage that.

Gerald talked about some of the more complex cases we are dealing with. We have just a small number now
where we are supporting families to set up legal trusts for a number of reasons, including children who are
minors. We work closely with a law firm that is offering their specialist services pro bono. This is a very
expensive area of legal activity for people normally. We have a very high-quality firm that will come down
and work with families to explain what this is, find a solution that works for them and a solution that gives the
trustees confidence that we can make a payment into that trust and it will benefit in the medium and long
term the child and the child’s family. These are the main two areas we are involved in.

Navin Shah AM: That is a totally free service for recipients?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): It is totally free. Where there is an unknown is where
there is a complex family situation where a professional trustee may be required. We have not got to that
point yet but it is a possibility. In that case we may need to ask someone to put in a considerable amount of
time over a number of years pro bono, or we may need to look at ways of paying for that.

Navin Shah AM: You can assure this Committee that you are satisfied there is adequate legal provision in
terms of advice to those victims who are the recipients of various levels of donations?

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): Certainly, in respect of the donations LET has been
giving out, there are - as others have commented on - two particular groups, yes, we think there is support.
It remains to be seen whether people use it and, to be frank, what their feedback is on that. Certainly, they
are on the table. | am less clear about what is available for the households who have received money from
other means. However, they can access the Citizens Advice support. A lot of families we are dealing with
now have law firms offering pro bono support to them generally. My experience is they tend to sweep up a
number of legal issues and have a point person with the family, then their colleagues support them on issues
like housing, finances, immigration and so on.

Navin Shah AM: There is an adequate mechanism to check this process working and, if it is not, immediate
measures to be put in place?

Page 47



Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): Probably the first point will be that Citizens Advice will
need to account for its activity with the Government department that funds it, which is the Department for
Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS). It will need to account for that and provide some data on that.
Certainly, once we know we are at the end of distribution to our particular subset we can go back to them,
make contact and ask them about their experiences.

Navin Shah AM: Monitoring is critical. You can have the best system in place but if it does not work on the
ground that needs to be picked up so it is fit for purpose in the end.

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): We have a relatively small number of cases, 71 bereaved
cases. We work very closely with those, day-to-day contact with the families, to make sure if there are issues
coming up like that we can point them in the right direction.

Navin Shah AM: | have a question for Zoe. Is there a way to better educate the public about how to give in
disaster situations, both in terms of gifts as well as cash donations?

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Indeed.
Of the eight points our reports make, two of them are about harnessing kindness following a major incident,

“People should know how best to give financial support in an emergency and be supported to do so.
They should be assured their donations will go to people affected quickly, simply and equitably;” and

“People should be supported to give in ways that will help the most the vulnerable.”

That is about co-ordination between national, local and regional bodies, between the authorities and
charities. It is about giving people clarity. We have all worked really hard together to try to give that to
people in crisis and to the public. It has been a rich source of learning. We have to do better if, and when, a
terrible tragedy like this ever happens again.

Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): Can | make one further softer point but that is often
overlooked? Although families may have access to sound financial advice, in actual fact in every family at
Grenfell - like any other family - there are tensions and conflicts between people. When you put money in
the mix it sometimes exacerbates those issues. My experience is that families have fewer options of a place
to go to get help resolving that at present. They are very reliant on the key worker to do some of that. They
are very complex issues. Most have very close relationships with the police family liaison officers but that is
well outside of their remit and scope. This is a very real issue for people who have been through trauma, are
bereft, have got through the access to money part and then, in some cases, there are challenging family
dynamics. We would do well to think about that support being available to people. It is difficult for families
to go and ask for that, but having it on offer would be extremely helpful from our point of view.

Navin Shah AM: Thank you for that. | have a broad question for the panel. How can civil actions, like
volunteering and gifts in kind, be better co-ordinated around emergencies, particular the infrastructure it
requires?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): It is quite difficult to come up with a solution

that works in that way. What you highlight in the question is very real and very pertinent. What our
collective experience - for all of us, whether fundraisers, distributors or service providers - is that when

Page 48



something happens people are incredibly generous. You can look at pretty well any incident, large or small,
that has happened anywhere in country and people galvanise, get stuck in and want to help. You can take a
completely different example to everything we have talked about this morning and look at the floods in
Cumbria that are in recent memory. The local community foundation was the focus of a lot of that,
harnessing not only donors and going out after other money but also acting as the focal point for local people
and local organisations to help in those circumstances. It is hugely impressive. Some of that is also
galvanised by British Red Cross volunteers on the ground and British Red Cross itself. There are the makings
of that infrastructure.

We need to be careful not to put too much in the way of individuals” generosity and wanting to help.
However, there also needs to be some mechanism to channel that in the right way. Certainly, as far as
fundraising is concerned - when people want to open up a JustGiving page, let us say - who would want to
stand in the way of doing that? Our responsibility - and, again, | am thinking of my day job rather than my
LET trustee role here - is to make sure we, the Fundraising Regulator and the Charity Commission, provide
simple and straightforward advice to say, “If you want to open up a JustGiving page or use one of the other
platforms this is what you do, this is how it works and these are the things to bear in mind when you do it”.
For example, “Specify as well as you can who the beneficiary of the money you want to raise is to be because
if you do not it will cause delay in the money getting to where you want it to go”. It is very simple messages
like that, although they are quite complicated underneath. There is a bit of work to do there. | think that
also reflects everyone’s collective learning.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): There is something about co-ordinating
volunteering. However, in the immediate aftermath of Grenfell, it was people who stood up and did whatever
needed to be done. In some ways, we expected and paid for a co-ordinated response from local government,
from regional Government, from national Government and it was absent. That space was occupied by
volunteers. We do not need to ask people’s permission for them to help. We need to allow them to have
their own agency and occupy that space when they need to and in some way, support them. A lot of that is
still going on, on the ground, in Grenfell. There are lots of people who are still volunteering who have never
volunteered before but still see there is a job to be done.

The issue of co-ordinating volunteers in terms of a civil emergency and how they can be an auxiliary to
Government is a really important question. However, you should not be giving people permission to
volunteer. It is their absolute right to help one another.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Can | just take that point up? | do not think it is permission. | am very much taken
with your points about this tragedy. It is about how to help people channel their efforts in the right way.
That is the really difficult bit, is it not? They think they are doing it in the right way. You ending up with a
street full of nappies is an interesting example of that. It was well-meant and well-intended but that was not
the right bit. Is there a case for trying to say, “Look, this is where it is at”? Immediately a disaster happens,
“This is what we think our immediate response is and we are going to try to carry on with that”. Is that
possible? Is that unrealistic?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): It is, except there was a vacuum. That is what
occupied the vacuum. It is people standing up and doing what they think they can and are able to do. There
was no messaging. There was no, “There is a fire. We want you to stay away from the area. We are after
people with these skills in this kind of thing. This needs to happen” and so on. There was nothing, so people
occupied that vacuum themselves.

Page 49



Len Duvall AM (Chair): We have had that conversation on the pace of recovery issue. We fully concur with
that on a number of levels.

Andrew Boff AM: Very quickly, | shall try to ask the same question a different way. Fools seldom differ.
For the future, is more clarity required as to who is co-ordinating or was the clarity there and they just did not
co-ordinate? Do you understand the subtlety of the question?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): | am no expert in this. | can only talk about my
experience.

Andrew Boff AM: From your experience, that is exactly what we want to hear.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): From our experience, nothing happened. If
someone was supposed to have done it, they did not.

Andrew Boff AM: You were not aware of who was supposed to be doing it?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): We were told to call the BEC. We had to work
out what the BEC was; it is the Borough Emergency Command Centre. | am still, to this day, waiting for
somebody to ring me back. That was all the information we were given until people started to show up;
people like the Red Cross and Susan and her team saying, “How can we help?” and our friends and
neighbours saying, “We have heard from ClementJames that someone is there from Hammersmith and
Fulham”. It was that build up. There was no co-ordination, or it certainly did not feel like it for a couple of
days.

Andrew Boff AM: The boroughs and the GLA spend a long time getting together a plan for this kind of
eventuality. You did not know who was in charge. That is what | am trying to get at. Is there a similar view
from the others?

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): Look at Team
London Volunteering. It is great at stuff. Not only does it provide brilliant volunteers but it also provides
people to co-ordinate those volunteers. If there has been an issue and you go out on social media and say
you need volunteers, hundreds of people will turn up but then they do not know what to do and you do not
know what to do with them. There is something about that co-ordination point. For me, there is something
around how we equip as many organisations as possible with the knowledge that there are resources out
there that can help them and how we tell them that when we are not in the middle of an emergency situation.
For example, how do we ensure all the boroughs know that Team London volunteers are trained in resilience
and can be called on? How do they know that?

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): They have to be around for a while. What you
do not want is re-traumatising people by getting them to tell their story to 55 different people because

volunteers are there short term.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Indeed,
yes. That is absolutely true.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Is that not a question about where we align ourselves? If things were working
post-recovery - although it takes many forms and day 1 will be different from day 15 - and everyone was

Page 50



doing their bit, things would happen much more quickly and you would be able to do what you need to do.
That is the very point from a survivor’s perspective of, “I am talking to about four different people and, quite
frankly, my head is spinning because of what | have just suffered, never mind other people offering me help”.
| think there was a failure of that post-recovery response on a number of levels. We have to try to get to
grips with that because, unfortunately, as Gerald [Oppenheim] said, there will be other situations.

We are interested in learning from those experiences and we are also interested in learning about what you
think works. | am interested in putting them into processes so people are clear. In a sense, what happened
informally, when you were asked to turn up the expertise and many others trying to grapple with the plans,
did not happen. People were trying to put it in because they realised it was important enough to try to do
something on that Saturday, never mind in terms of the operational response, and for it all to go in very
clearly the next time. We should not be having this conversation again around the table about some of the
circumstances we find ourselves in.

Zoe Abrams (Executive Director for Communications and Engagement, British Red Cross): Many of
us here had a meeting with [The Rt Honourable] Tracey Crouch, the Minister for Sport and Civil Society.
Mark made a suggestion at that which | thought was really good, that there should be a clear lead for the
voluntary sector in Gold, with that being a formal role.

Again, many of us were in a meeting with Grenfell United quite soon after the incident. What the people in
the room asked for was for a single fund. It was after that meeting that the Charity Commission started
publishing the updates. That is what people in crisis were saying, they wanted a single fund. Whilst |
completely agree we want diversity in the sector, we want diversity of generosity and we want diversity of
kindness. People who are in crisis are asking for a co-ordination of that as well. A single fund and a single
lead - or a largely predominant fund and a single lead in Gold - for the voluntary sector right from the get go,
carrying on to when John Barradell OBE [Chief Executive, City of London Corporation] got involved, would be
some of our recommendations.

Emma Strain (Assistant Director of External Affairs, Greater London Authority): Very briefly, this
has come back to this leadership point. Who is in charge? Who is taking control? It is very difficult for lots
of organisations to do everything by committee in a really quick period of time. My reflection on it now is
that everybody did a fantastic job of moving as quickly as was possible in a slight leadership vacuum.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): In some ways, in that leadership vacuum, but we can do better. You are all telling
me we can do better. We are coming to the conclusion, on the evidence we have heard even before you
walked into the room, we can do better. Some of that is clarifying who that leadership is in different roles. It
is also about a place at the table and a place in the structures.

From what you are telling us today there is this issue about the community-led sector/voluntary sector bit
and then there is the survivor/next of kin bit and other dependents. We need to bring forward both because
they need to go forward post-recovery. It might be at different timescales but we have to try to speed up
that process for getting some money out to people in real need and supporting those people in terms of some
of the things they are faced with. | have very much taken that back about one of your best practices may be
keeping money back for some of those extra supports that we did not envisage and that we might, in terms
of a future disaster, need. It is a question about how you divvy up the pot and some of those issues. | am
minded to take on that.

Page 51



Rob Bell (Director, London Emergencies Trust): We have heard a lot about the quality of relationships
being really important here, especially in a low-trust environment. Mark has described how RPT had that in
spades. We had it with families we dealt with very quietly in the background with the police. We were
frustrated by the rotation of key personnel who were there to give advice and information and were
responsible for communications. That is not a comment on them as individuals, they were seconded or
volunteered to come and get stuck in. However, you would just build up a relationship. You would think this
person understands what financial support is available and then they would be off again. There was one
week - | think it was week 2 or 3 - when | went to Westway. | walked around and went to the financial
assistance desk and asked them what they did. They were delighted. They said, “LET, we have sort of heard
about you. What do you do?” Essentially, they were there just to point people towards a helpline. It was not
that complicated a funding picture at that time. There were several main funders with clear routes in. At that
level people had been in the job two days. There had been some sort of handover but they did not know.
People on the ground experienced that repeatedly and it built up irritation about the whole thing. It
compounded the view that things were a shambles. There is a principle in there that is, as much as you can,
invest in stability and do not rotate people out because it is really important. That is why the charities there
do so well, because they are there, they are permanent and know people.

David Farnsworth (Director, City Bridge Trust): | gave notice that | have to leave for a Board meeting
shortly but have a couple of points to make. In terms of the learning for this Committee and the co-
ordination with about four or five other pieces of work going on, it would be really great if this Committee
could proactively link in with those pieces. It would be helpful within certain Government departments to
help them join up.

In terms of what exists now and in terms of any response to this, it is being very clear about the different
tapestries that exist across the UK in the community voluntary sector and some of the infrastructure which is
of differing levels of expertise and strength across the country. There is a lot already through that and also
through the independent funder networks. It is thinking about what is there, getting an accurate picture and
then sometimes sourcing that rather than a parallel universe that could come out of this. Forgive me having
to leave slightly early.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Please do, thank you very much for your contribution.
Now, Navin, do you want to finish off? | think this is our last set of questions.

Navin Shah AM: Obviously it is gratifying we had very generous donations and lots of funds raised and
distributed. However, given some of the difficulties we have discussed, are there any reviews taking place on
this charitable giving aspect or is there any need for a radical overhaul of what has happened?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): There are more reviews going on than anybody
might know. There is this one, there is the gathering we were all at on Friday of the Charity Commission. OK,
that was looking towards what a national response might be in the future but it is also about reviewing what
we have all done. Individually we have looked at our own performance, coming to a view about what we
could do better. | know inside LET we want to get an independent look at what we did, how we did it and
when we did it across all five incidents we have been working on, as well as the support we were able to give
to Manchester colleagues. Yes, that is going on. | am certain that pretty well every Government department
involved in Whitehall is looking at what happened. We expect, any moment, to be asked to contribute in a
very similar way to this which we are happy to do because it is about learning. However, | do hope that all

Page 52



the different inquiries come out with similar conclusions otherwise it is going to get even more complicated
than it is now.

Navin Shah AM: s it ensuring direction in terms of a radical overhaul?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): | would not necessarily say it was a radical
overhaul. We certainly need to understand what we all did, how it happened and evolve what we do so where
there are areas of expertise that exist, either in individual charities or more widely in the public sector, it is
clear what they are and how they are to be drawn on if there is a repeat. If | take LET, what we know about is
support, next of kin and the injured. Our role would be to spread that knowledge and information. We tried
to do it in 2005 but with the march of time it got lost. We must not make that mistake again. It needs to
evolve and it needs to get better. Without wanting to appear self-satisfied or smug in any way about this, we
did do the best job we could in the circumstances we found. It was probably a good job in the end but it may
not have felt like that as it was being done. We need to build on that, learn where we did not get it as good
as we could have done but also make clear that this worked and other people can do this in future.

Mark Simms (Chief Executive, Rugby Portobello Trust): There is one other review going on that is
being funded by the Muslim Aid Foundation. That is working entirely from a local perspective about what
happened with the local organisations and how they responded so they will be more co-ordinated to speak to
a national response. That is going on now.

Navin Shah AM: One final, very pertinent question, to you, Gerald, as Head of Policy at the Fundraising
Regulator. There was one incident that was reported on 1 October about a fraudulent website. That is
always a worry. Who is collecting donations? Was that properly dealt with? Have you had any further
incidents like that? Is there a mechanism whereby that can be curbed entirely or be dealt with more
effectively for this as well as any other fundraising activities that may occur?

Gerald Oppenheim (Chair, London Emergencies Trust): Thankfully, as far as we are all aware, there has
been very little fraud. RBT spotted a couple of cases very early on and dealt with them in absolutely the right
way. It is a criminal matter. It goes straight to the police and/or Action Fraud where that is spotted.

The fundraising platforms, where the greatest vulnerability lies here, have a lot of very sophisticated
algorithms that they use so when somebody opens up a page for the first time there are all sorts of
background checks. We know that at Westminster very quickly - | cannot remember whether it was
GoFundMe or JustGiving but one of those two - spotted that somebody opening a page had just served time
in prison for fraud. That page was quarantined straightaway. We are on this. If the public has any worries
about it then the place to go is either us where it is fundraising and/or the Charity Commission. We talk to
each other all the time and we take action as best we can in the circumstances. My message is, if anybody
thinks there is a fraud going on, go straight to the police, that is the quickest way to get it dealt with, as well
as telling the organisations concerned who might be affected.

Navin Shah AM: Thank you, that is reassuring.

Len Duvall AM (Chair): Can |, on behalf of the Committee, thank you for the way you answered our
questions. Our intention has always been not to try to duplicate other areas of work. We chose this area of
work because we thought we needed to shine a light on it. Because of the nature of the tragedy you were
dealing with, and are still dealing with, we thought we might lend our voice to some of those issues. That has
been very useful for us. We have asked for some information from various people and we will follow that up.

Page 53



Finally - because | do not think we do this enough or in an appropriate form, and | hope people have already
said this to you and to your colleagues who are not around this table - thank you for the work you have done.
It is very difficult. It is very complex. Yes, there were problems but hopefully everyone will seek to reduce
those problems in the future as and when they happen. | want to thank you for the work you have done. We
are constantly in awe of some of the work that goes on behind the scenes. The media does not get it unless
there is a sensationalism part of it or something like a bad news story. In some ways, you have helped victims
and their families a little bit further in this terrible tragedy. Thank you for that and your ongoing work.
Thank you.

Page 54



Agenda Item 4

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Summary List of Actions

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 1 March 2018

This report will be considered in public

1. Summary

1.1 This report updates the Committee on the progress made on actions arising from previous meetings
of the GLA Oversight Committee.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee notes the completed and outstanding actions arising from previous
meetings of the GLA Oversight Committee, as listed below.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 55




Action Arising from the Meeting held on 31 January 2018

to those organisations working on the ground
who responded to the immediate emergency
in addition to their other duties.

e The Director will also provide details of
conversations with London Funders and the
Department of Communities and Local
Government, through Gold Command,
regarding the provision of funding for these
organisations and other collaborative funding
for the wider community affected by the fire.

e The Director undertook to provide a list of
different foundations that worked on the
ground in the aftermath of the fire.

e The Assistant Director, External Affairs, GLA,
provide data regarding when the button
directing the public to the Red Cross
fundraising site through london.gov.uk was
first established and how many clicks the
button had received.

The button went
live on Friday

15 June 2017

It was taken down
on Monday 18
December 2017
During that time, it
received 1,880
clicks through to
the British Red
Cross page

Item | Topic Action Action by
5 The Charitable Response to the Grenfell Fire,
Terror Attacks and other events in London

e The Director, Kensington and Chelsea In progress Executive
Foundation, to provide a profile of donations Director of
to victims of the Grenfell Tower fire over Secretariat
time.

e The Executive Director for Communications Executive
and Engagement, British Red Cross, to In progress Director of
provide details of when the Royal Borough of Secretariat
Kensington and Chelsea asked the Red Cross
to become involved in the relief effort;

e The Executive Director also to provide details
regarding how quickly donations came in to
the Red Cross for people affected by the fire
and when they started to taper off;

e The Director, City Bridge Trust, is to provide Executive
the date when the funds were made available In progress Director of

Secretariat

Assistant
Director, External
Affairs

Page 56




Action Arising from the Meeting held on 14 December 2017

(as amended), the Committee required the
attendance of The Rt Hon Boris Johnson, as former
Mayor of London, at the meeting of the GLA
Oversight Committee meeting on 22 February 2018,
to answer questions in relation to the Garden Bridge
project (meeting rescheduled to 1 March 2018)

Item | Topic Action Action By
10(b) Summons
Under the provisions of Section 61(1), 61(5)(c) and Completed. Executive
Section 61 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 Director of

Secretariat

Action Arising from the Meeting held on 23 November 2017

Add the review of the London Local Authority Gold
arrangements to the Committee’s work programme.

Item | Topic Action Action By
5 Response of London Resilience to the Grenfell
Tower Fire
The Chair will write to the Mayor of London in In progress E>§ecutive
relation to the issue of whether to create a ‘Chief Director of
Resilience Officer role. Secretariat
8 Work Programme for the GLA Oversight In progress Executive
Committee Director of

Secretariat

Page 57




Action Arising from the Meeting Held on 11 October 2017

The Chair requested that:

e The Committee might wish to scrutinise the
Greater London Land and Property (GLAP)
investment fund once in operation in order to
examine whether the new governance
procedures are sufficiently robust; and

e Officers examine the investment fund,
scrutinising any other historical development
deals, possibly in conjunction with the
Assembly’s Housing Committee.

Item | Topic Action Action By
5 Independent Review of the Garden Bridge
and Lessons Learnt In progress Executive
Director of

Secretariat

Action Arising from the Meeting Held on 30 March 2017

Item | Topic Action Action By
8 Proposed Changes to the GLA Establishment
The Assistant Director of External Relations agreed to | Completed. Assistant
team and some indication on the market rates for the | Appendix 1 Relations
posts that were being proposed.
3. Legal Implications
3.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.
4, Financial Implications
4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Page 58




List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1-Proposed Changes to GLA Establishment

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager
Telephone: 020 7983 4425
Email: lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

Page 59


mailto:lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Appendix 1

Oversight Committee action in response to Proposed Changes to the GLA
Establishment — External Relations - 30 March 2017:

The Assistant Director of External Relations agreed to provide a summary of the work
conducted by the team and some indication on the market rates for the posts that
were being proposed.

Following the GLA Oversight meeting on 30 March 2017, | am pleased to provide a
summary of the work conducted by the External Relations digital-focused teams.

Digital transformation

The Digital teams’ key role is to manage and continue to develop London.gov.uk and other
digital products to increase engagement with Londoners and the work we do at City Hall.
While we now have a single ‘shop window’ through London.gov.uk, there are a variety of
different digital products in the background which enable us to deliver all of the services and
functionality required by the Mayor and London Assembly, for example, PLU’s
correspondence system and a chatbot (automated online system) for answering New Year’s
Eve guestions.

The Digital team leads on digital transformation at City Hall working closely with all of the
policy teams and with the London Assembly to create new functionality and to modernise the
tools we use, processes we follow and ways that we work.

Recent examples of work delivered:

o Integrated the separate Talk London website into London.gov.uk

o Development of new functionality to support policy team delivery e.g. cleaner vehicle
checker and the new London Plan consultation tool

o Continue to improve content on London.gov.uk - launched campaign pages for the
Mayor

e Provide regular training to Assembly staff and respond to Assembly Member
requests for new content and functionality

e Organise digital leadership training for senior managers

Over the coming months, the team is integrating Healthy Schools and Healthy Early Years
websites into London.gov.uk and is also working on the integration of Team London’s
volunteering websites into London.gov.uk.

In the past, roles that contribute towards digital work may have been contracted or brought in
on a temporary basis. However, there is clear commitment from the building to engage
Londoners in what we do at City Hall, while offering value for money. Digital solutions help to
achieve this and the work is ongoing.

Therefore, we have opted to save money and invest in staff that will offer permanent skills
and knowledge. This is as opposed to, for example. paying £500-£800 per day for a
consultant Business Analyst to come in for a six-month project, or £250-£350 per day for a
freelance Content Editor to deliver some short-term work. As part of the proposed changes
we conducted market research and compared roles with those in similar organisations, such
as the Government Digital Service, this ensured we offer fair market rates.

Page 61


https://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s63051/Proposed%20Changes%20to%20the%20GLA%20Establishment%20March%202017%20External%20Relations%20FINAL%20004.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s63051/Proposed%20Changes%20to%20the%20GLA%20Establishment%20March%202017%20External%20Relations%20FINAL%20004.pdf

Digital marketing

The Marketing team leads strategic, integrated campaigns for the Mayor of London from
high-profile campaigns, such as London Needs You Alive (knife crime prevention) to

supporting the introduction of the T-charge and the New Year’s Eve fireworks to smaller
cultural events and celebrations, including Black History Month and Chinese New Year.

Digital aspects include paid advertising, such as digital out of home, display advertising on
websites, paid search and social media advertising. The team is also responsible for
managing the Mayor’s and London Gov social media and visual channels across Twitter,
Facebook, Instagram and YouTube. The team also manages the email programme, with
regular ‘Mail from the Mayor’ e-newsletters to subscribers as well as topic-specific e-
newsletters based on what Londoners have signed up to receive.

Recent examples:
e #LondonlsOpen and #LondonlsOpen for summer campaigns
e London Needs You Alive (knife crime prevention) campaign, currently live
o Day to day management of Mayor of London and London Gov social media channels
o Joint project with London & Partners and City of London on messaging for promoting
London at home and abroad

Creative

The Creative team looks after the Mayor of London/London Assembly brands. We have
developed brand and editorial guidelines to ensure our public facing design work has a
consistent look and feel and tone of voice.

As an in-house agency, we work closely with the Marketing team, directly with policy teams
as well as the Digital team coming up with creative solutions for public facing campaigns,
across digital and print channels (including Facebook and Twitter cards, posters, exhibition
boards, wireframing and website design, event branding and publications).

We also offer copywriting, editing and proofreading services, in-house photography services,
advice on logo usage, Mayor of London/London Assembly logo requests.

Recent examples:
o Design and layout of draft consultation strategies and corresponding social media
campaigns
e Photography and design of People’s Question Time campaign materials
e Producing artwork for Africa Day and Diwali promotion and event branding on the
day

Digital transformation of the Public Liaison Unit

Our aim is to ensure that the PLU team deliver a service which is in line with Sadiq’s
manifesto commitment:

"I'm determined to lead the most transparent, engaged and accessible administration... and

to represent every single community, and every single part of our city, as Mayor for all
Londoners.”

Page 62


http://intranet.london.gov.uk/pages/creative-services#logo%20requests

The Public Liaison Unit manage all incoming enquiries for the Mayor of London and the
Greater London Authority, which are received by phone, email or letter. We also manage
and direct enquiries for MOPAC, TfL and OPDC.

PLU are transforming several key processes and systems, helping us engage more with
Londoners, as well as save time and money. We are looking to replace our outdated
correspondence system, have been piloting responding via social media and are looking at
how automated chatbots, online chat and website triage systems could help improve
response times and knowledge of what we do at City Hall. This work follows research with
Londoners to understand how they want to engage with us.

Recent examples:

e Managing campaigns such as Uber, London Bridge attack, Westminster attack and
the Grenfell Tower tragedy, including composing replies and keeping the public
updated

e Proactively encourage and meet with policy teams to help them prioritise enquiries
and respond at their earliest convenience

e Owning the social media response pilot, ensuring it is successful and continues to
improve the way we engage with the public

All of External Relations work closely together to ensure we deliver good value, engaging,
informative, useful and clear digital content, campaigns, website functions and systems. Our
work ensures more Londoners understand and engage with what we all do here at City Hall.

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



Agenda Item 5

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

Subject: The Garden Bridge - Holding the
Previous Mayor to Account

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 1 March 2018

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

33

Summary

This report provides background information to the GLA Oversight Committee in putting questions
to Rt Hon Boris Johnson MP about the Garden Bridge project.

Recommendation

That the Committee notes the report and the discussion with the Rt Hon Boris Johnson
MP.

Background

The Assembly has conducted extensive scrutiny work into the procurement of the Garden Bridge
design contract since September 2015.

This has included question and answer sessions in 2015 and 2016 with; Boris Johnson, then Mayor
of London, Mike Brown, Commissioner, Transport for London, Richard De Cani, then Director of
Strategy and Policy, at Transport for London (TfL), Will Hurst, Deputy Editor of Architect’s Journal,
Walter Menteth, of Walter Menteth Architects; Clive Walker, Director of Internal Audit, TfL and Keith
Williams, then Chair TfL Audit and Assurance Committee. Following the publication of her
independent review into the project, the GLA Oversight Committee also questioned the

Rt Hon Margaret Hodge MP in October 2017, alongside Mike Brown and David Bellamy — Chief of
Staff, GLA.

Details, including transcripts and further supporting correspondence can be found at
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-publications /garden-
bridge-design-procurement.

Page 65


https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-publications/garden-bridge-design-procurement
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-assembly-publications/garden-bridge-design-procurement

4.1

5.1

6.1

Issues for Consideration

This meeting provides the GLA Oversight Committee with the opportunity to question the Rt Hon
Boris Johnson MP about his decisions regarding the Garden Bridge project when he was Mayor of
London.

Legal Implications

The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report.

List of appendices to this report: None

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Katie Smith, Head of Scrutiny and Investigations
Telephone: 020 7983 4423
E-mail: katie.smith@london.gov.uk

Page 66



mailto:katie.smith@london.gov.uk

Agenda Item 6

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

Subject: Chief Officer-Recruitment Process

Report to: Oversight Committee

Report of: Assistant Director, Human Resource and Date: 1 March 2018

Organisational Development

This report will be considered in public

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

Summary

The current Head of Paid Service (HoPS), Jeff Jacobs, recently announced his retirement.

Recruitment is currently underway to fill the position and it is the purpose of this paper to update
the Committee on the process and progress to date, and seek approval to establish an advisory panel
to undertake shortlisting and interviews for the Chief Officer role, concurrently with the Mayor’s
representative(s). The panel will, then make a recommendation to the Mayor and Assembly
regarding an appointment to that role.

Recommendations

That the process being followed to recruit a Chief Officer and progress to date be noted;
and

That, in accordance with the Protocol for the Appointment of Statutory Officers, an
advisory panel with the membership set out at paragraph 4.8 of this report be established
to undertake, concurrently with the Mayor’s representative(s), shortlisting and interviews
for the Chief Officer role and make a recommendation to the Mayor and Assembly
regarding an appointment to that role.

Background
Jeff Jacobs announced his retirement on 8 January 2018.

The Assistant Director, Human Resources and Organisational Development (HR and OD) was asked
to commence a consultation process with Assembly Members and the Mayor’s Chief of Staff seeking
views on the role and on the recruitment process to be followed, noting that the appointment is
made jointly by the Mayor and the Assembly.

These consultations were informed by the Protocol for Appointment of Statutory Officers
(Appendix 1).

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 67




34

35

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The Assistant Director met with the Chair of the Assembly, Group Leaders and the Mayor’s Chief of
Staff. A further meeting was held with this group at which it was agreed that an external
competition would be launched and an executive search firm would be engaged to support the
recruitment process.

Assembly Members and the Mayor agreed that the title of the position going forward should be
Chief Officer, rather than Head of Paid Service, as this has more resonance across stakeholders and
partners.

Issues for Consideration

Gatenby Sanderson has been engaged to support the recruitment process and a job profile has been
approved (Appendix 2).

A job advertisement has also been approved and is at Appendix 3.

The position was to be advertised on 18 February 2018 in the Sunday Times, in print and on-line;
the Guardian Society on 21 February 2018, online; and the Municipal Journal in print on 22
February and 1 March 2018 in print. The closing date will be 9 March 2018.

Gatenby Sanderson together with the Assistant Director, HR and OD, will then conduct first round
interviews.

The GLA’s Protocol for the Appointment of Statutory Officers provides that, where a statutory
officer post is advertised, the Mayor and the Assembly (through its staffing committee) shall
approve the arrangements for the selection of a shortlist of qualified applicants to be interviewed
and that the staffing committee will establish an advisory panel to undertake the interviews,
concurrently with a mayoral representative(s), and make a recommendation regarding appointment,
noting that appointments to statutory officer posts are joint decisions of the Mayor and full
Assembly.

The Protocol envisages that the advisory panel established by the Assembly’s staffing committee will
be politically proportional in terms of its membership. However, advisory panels are not required to
be politically proportional, and indeed the Assembly has agreed to disapply strict proportionality to
its committee structure for the 2017/18 year.

The GLA Oversight Committee is the London Assembly’s designated staffing committee and its
terms of reference include, at section A3:

“Noting that it is a joint decision with the Mayor, to make recommendations to the London
Assembly on appointments to the posts of the three statutory officers (Head of Paid Service,
Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer) and on the terms and conditions of employment
for those posts.”

The Committee is therefore now asked, in accordance with the Protocol, to establish an advisory
panel to undertake, concurrently with the Mayor’s representative(s), shortlisting and interviews for
Chief Officer and to then make a recommendation regarding an appointment to that role to the

Page 68



4.9

410

5.1

6.1

Mayor and full Assembly. Assembly Groups have indicated informally that they would not wish the
membership of the panel to be politically proportional, but instead to comprise: all Assembly Group
leaders, the Chair of the Assembly and Caroline Pidgeon AM, to ensure that the panel has a broad
membership. The Committee is therefore now asked to endorse that proposal.

It is proposed that interview reports will be compiled and shared with the Advisory Panel who will
meet on 22 March 2018 to confirm the shortlist with interviews to be conducted in mid April 2018.

The appointment will require a decision at a full Assembly meeting and a Mayoral Decision in order
to confirm the successful candidate.

Legal Implications

The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications for the purposes of this report.

List of appendices to this report:

Appendix 1 — Protocol for Appointment of Statutory Officers
Appendix 2 — Chief Officer Job Profile
Appendix 3 — Chief Officer Job Advertisement

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers:

None

Contact Officer: Charmaine DeSouza, Assistant Director, Human Resources and Organisational
Development

Telephone: 020 7983 4194

E-mail: charmaine.DeSouza@l|ondon.gov.uk

Page 69



mailto:charmaine.DeSouza@london.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



Appendix 1

Statutory Officers — Staffing Protocol

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

The Statutory Officers

Under the GLA Act 1999 (as amended)’ the Authority is required to have “statutory officers”
mentioned in paragraph 1.2 below. References in this document to the “staffing committee” are to
the Assembly’s Oversight Committee unless the Assembly authorises another committee to exercise
those functions.

These are the:
e Head of Paid Service’;
e Chief Finance Officer®; and

e Monitoring Officer*.

The statutory functions exercisable by these officers are listed in Part | of Appendix 1 to this
document. Statutory functions exercisable by officers other than the statutory officers are listed in
Part Il of Appendix 1.

Appointment (Designation) without an external recruitment and selection process

The Mayor and the Assembly acting jointly may attribute the function/role of a statutory officer to an
existing post occupied by an existing member of staff (and therefore designate that postholder as a
statutory officer), without following an external recruitment and selection process (in which case
sections 3 and 4 of this protocol do not need to be followed)”.

However, in these circumstances, the Assistant Director of Human Resources and Organisational
Development should, where appropriate, seek expressions of interest from appropriately senior and
experienced officers/postholders as to their posts being attributed with the function of statutory
officer, and in the event that there is:

0] Only one suitable expression of interest, the that postholder may be permanently designated
as a statutory officer if the Mayor and the Assembly agree to the designation and its terms and
conditions; or

(i) More than one suitable expression of interest, an appropriate selection and appointment
process shall be determined by the Mayor and the Assembly’s staffing committee acting
jointly®.

' All references to the GLA Act 1999 (as amended) are references to the 1999 Act as amended by the GLA Act 2007.

2 Required under the GLA Act 1999 (as amended) s 72(1)

3 Required under the GLA Act 1999 (as amended) s 127 and 127A

4 Required under the GLA Act 1999 (as amended) s 73 (1)

> This is provided for in the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 1993/202

® Note that, whilst the Assembly’s staffing committee can determine this, the full Assembly must take any decision to appoint,
and any decision relating to the terms and conditions of the appointment.

Page 71



3.1

3.2

33

4.1

External Recruitment and Shortlisting of the Statutory Officers

Where it is not proposed or possible to designate a statutory officer in accordance with 2.1 above, a
recruitment and selection process must be followed and the Assistant Director of Human Resources
and Organisational Development shall’:

a. Draw up a job description and person specification which sets out:
(i) The duties and accountabilities of the officer concerned; and
@ii) Any qualifications, skills and experience required;

b. Make arrangements for a copy of the documents mentioned at (a) above to be sent to any
person on request; and

c. Make arrangements for the post to be brought to the attention of persons who are qualified to
apply for it (i.e. through an advertising and/ or search process).

Where a post has been advertised as set out in 3.1 above, the Mayor and the Assembly (through its
staffing committee) shall approve the arrangements for the selection of a shortlist of such qualified
applicants to be interviewed in accordance with section 4 of this protocol below.

Where no qualified person has applied, the Assistant Director of Human Resources and Organisational
Development shall make further arrangements for advertisement in accordance with paragraph 3.1
above.

Appointment of the Statutory Officers

The Mayor and Assembly are required to make appointments to these statutory officer posts acting
jointly.

4.2 Subject to any express decision of the Mayor® and/or the Assembly to the contrary, the interviews for a

43

vacant statutory officer post should be conducted by the Mayor and Assembly acting together as one
panel and taking a joint decision through the use of one of the following options (to be determined by
the Mayor® and Assembly as necessary):

A. the Mayor, and a representative of his staff appointed under s 67(1) of the GLA Act acting as an
adviser to the Mayor, and a sub-committee of the Assembly’s staffing committee, with such
membership being politically proportional as per the usual rules as to proportionality; or

B. up to two representatives of the Mayor, who must be staff appointed under s 67(1) of the GLA
Act, and a sub-committee of the Assembly’s staffing committee (with membership as set out in A.
above)

WITH

formal decisions being taken subsequent to the conclusion of the interview process by the Mayor
taking his decision on appointment and terms and conditions via a Mayoral Decision form (following a
recommendation from one of his appointees if under option b), and the Assembly’s staffing sub-
committee making a recommendation to the full Assembly to appoint a candidate upon recommended
terms and conditions. (In these circumstances, any offer of employment will need to be made
conditional upon and subject to the formal approval of the Mayor and the Assembly).

The Head of Paid Service will participate in the interviews of candidates for the posts of Monitoring
Officer and Chief Finance Officer (in an advisory capacity).

” The following provisions incorporate the requirements of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) Regulations 1993/202
8 In respect of the matters relating to the Mayor within this protocol
% With a formal written delegation being made to one of his appointees where this is required by any of the options below

Page 72



4.4

45

4.6

5.1

5.2

53

54

55

5.6

5.7

6.1

7.1

7.2

The Mayor and Assembly (through its staffing committee) may jointly agree to invite any external
persons to provide expert, independent advice to them (concurrently) during the recruitment process
and/or at the interviews.

Other than in exceptional circumstances, the composition of those conducting the interviews should
remain the same for all candidates in all rounds of interviews for a statutory officer vacancy.

Any proposed appointment will be subject to references and the Authority’s usual pre-employment
checks.

Terms and Conditions

The Mayor and Assembly are required, acting jointly, to determine the terms and conditions of the
statutory officers.

The full Assembly must decide any changes to the statutory officers” terms and conditions.

By adopting this document the Mayor and Assembly jointly agree that, as a matter of principle, terms
and conditions that apply to all staff appointed by the Head of Paid Service '°, should normally also
apply to the statutory officers.

To this end, when the Head of Paid Service (HOPS) consults with Mayor and the Assembly’s staffing
committee upon proposed changes to terms and conditions of employment that apply to staff
appointed by the HOPS,'" the Mayor should be asked, and the Assembly’s staffing committee should
also be asked to recommend to the full Assembly, whether or not (upon the HOPS agreeing to the
proposed changes) to apply the proposed change to terms and conditions in respect of the statutory
officers.

In some circumstances, however, and due to the nature of their offices, the statutory officers do need
to have terms and conditions of employment that are different to those that apply to all staff
appointed by the HOPS.

Such terms and conditions must be approved by the Mayor and the Assembly acting jointly, and have
been so approved as attached at Appendices 2-3 to this document.

Before any proposals to change the terms and conditions of the statutory officers are submitted to the
Mayor and the Assembly, the statutory officers themselves must be consulted on the proposals.
Disciplinary action and investigations

This is dealt with at Appendix 2 to this document.

Dismissal
The statutory officers may only be dismissed by the Mayor and the Assembly acting jointly.

Detailed procedures in respect of how the statutory officers may be dismissed as a result of
probationary, disciplinary or capability (excluding ill health) action are contained in Appendix 2.

1% “Terms and conditions” here includes any employment protocols or policies that confer contractual rights upon all staff
appointed by the HOPS.
" Or proposed changes to employment protocols or policies that confer contractual rights upon all staff appointed by the HOPS.

Page 73



Appendix 3 modifies the GLA’s sickness policy and sets out a procedure in respect of how the
statutory officers may be dismissed as a result of ill health.

Page 74



APPENDIX 1 to
Protocol

PART |

STATUTORY OFFICERS - STATUTORY FUNCTIONS

A. The Head of Paid Service

Functions of the proper officer of the Authority for the purposes of Parts | and Il of the Greater
London Authority Act 1999 (as amended), other than those relating to:
The functions of the Greater London Returning Officer;
Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972 (access to information) as applied to the Assembly
by Section 58 of the GLA Act 1999 (Openness) (see below)

Functions of the Authority’s head of paid service under the Greater London Authority Act 1999.

Functions of proper officer of the Authority for the purposes of Part Ill of the Local Government
Act 1974 (local government administration) as applied to the Authority by Section 74 of the GLA
Act 1999.

Functions of the proper officer of the Authority for the purposes of Sections 225 (deposit of
documents) and 228 (inspection of documents) of the Local Government Act 1972 as applied to
the Authority by Section 75 of the GLA Act 1999.

Functions of head of paid service under Part | of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989
generally, including under Section 4 (designation and reports of head of paid service) as applied to
the Authority by Section 72 of the GLA Act 1999.

Functions of the proper officer under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 generally.

The functions under any other enactment (whenever passed) of a proper officer or responsible
officer (or other designation used in the enactment) as regards areas not falling within paragraphs
2(d) and 3(d) below.

The functions of consulting with the Mayor and the Assembly and appointing staff under s 67(2)

of the GLA Act, and determining such staffs” terms and conditions of employment under s 70(2) of
the GLA Act.

Page 75



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

B. The Chief Finance Officer

Functions of the chief finance officer responsible for the proper administration of the financial
affairs of the authority under Section 127(1) of the Greater London Authority Act 1999.

Functions of the responsible officer under Local Government Finance Act 1988.
Functions of the proper officer under the Local Government Finance Act 1988.

Functions under any other enactment (whenever passed) of a chief finance officer, proper officer or
responsible officer (or other designation used in the enactment) concerning the Authority’s
accounting practices, audit arrangements or its financial affairs and arrangements.

C. The Monitoring Officer

Functions of the monitoring officer for the Authority under Section 5 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

Functions of the monitoring officer under Part Ill of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended)
including the GLA Code of Conduct, and the Standards Committee (England) Regulations
2008/1085, and any rules as to the investigation and determination of alleged breaches of that
Code.

Functions of the proper officer of the Authority under Sections 229 (photographic copies of
documents) and 234 (authentication of documents) of the Local Government Act 1972 as applied to
the Authority by Section 75 of the GLA Act 1999.

The functions under any other enactment (whenever passed) of a monitoring officer, proper officer

or responsible officer (or other designation used in the enactment) concerning the Authority’s legal
affairs and arrangements, including compliance with the law.

Page 76



22.

23.

PART Il

OTHER OFFICERS - STATUTORY FUNCTIONS

D. The Executive Director of Secretariat

Functions of proper officer of the authority for the purposes of Part VA (Access to Meetings and
Documents of Certain Authorities, Committees and Sub-Committees) of the Local Government Act
1972 as applied to the Assembly by Section 58 (openness) of the GLA Act 1999.

Functions of the proper officer under Sections 15 to 17 (political balance on committees etc.) of the

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 including under the Local Government (Committees and
Political Groups) Regulations 1990.

Page 77



APPENDIX 2 to
Protocol

Statutory Officers — Performance, Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure

Only the Mayor and the Assembly acting jointly can authorise action being taken against a statutory
officer on grounds of capability or misconduct.

A. Action short of dismissal

Action short of dismissal may only be taken in respect of:
a) misconduct, after the GLA’s Disciplinary Procedure has been complied with;
b) capability, after the GLA’s Capability Procedure has been complied with.

In applying the above procedures, the Head of Paid Service shall usually exercise management
responsibilities in respect of the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer (although, at any
time, the Mayor and Assembly acting jointly, in such manner as they agree, may undertake these
responsibilities).

The Mayor and Assembly acting jointly (in such manner as they agree) shall exercise management
responsibilities under the above procedures in respect of the Head of Paid Service.

A decision to take disciplinary action, short of dismissal, against any of the statutory officers in
connection with their role as a statutory officer must be taken by the Mayor and Assembly acting
jointly.

B. Statutory Officers’ Dismissal Procedure

This procedure applies where a GLA employee who has been designated as a statutory officer may
be dismissed for reasons of poor performance (capability) or misconduct'?, whether in probationary
period or otherwise.

C. Procedure

Where there is an allegation of poor performance or misconduct which, if proven, could result in the

dismissal of a statutory officer, the matter must be referred to and considered by a concurrent

meeting of the following (subject to any express decision of the Mayor and/or the Assembly to the

contrary) (“The Panel”):

a) the Mayor and, if the Mayor so chooses, one of his/her staff appointed under section 67(1) of
the GLA Act, and

b) an advisory sub-committee of the Assembly which is politically proportionate as per the usual
rules as to proportionality.

c) two Independent Persons", who will not have voting rights.

12 The Regulations apply to disciplinary action, which is defined as including “any proposal for dismissal of a member of staff
for any reason other than redundancy, permanent ill-health or infirmity of body or mind, but does not include failure to renew
a contract of employment for a fixed term unless the authority has undertaken to renew such a contract.”

3 An Independent Person appointed under section 28(7) of the Localism Act (see: the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)
(England) Regulations 2015/881 Schedule 3 paragraph 1). Independent Persons must be appointed to the sub-committee in the
following priority order: an independent person who has been appointed by the GLA and who is an elector within Greater
London; any other independent person appointed by the GLA,; or an Independent Person who has been appointed by another
authority. Any remuneration, allowances or fees paid by the Authority to an Independent Person appointed to the Panel must
not exceed the level of remuneration, allowances or fees paid to that person in respect of that person’s role as an independent
person in relation to the standards regime under Part 1 Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.

Page 78



10.

11.

12.

13.

The Head of Paid Service should attend and participate (in an advisory non-voting capacity) in any
meeting of the Panel considering allegations concerning the Chief Finance Officer or the Monitoring
Officer.

Meetings of the Panel must be convened and conducted in accordance with legal advice. The Panel
may resolve to conduct its meeting in private if it considers confidential or exempt information (as
defined in Part 5A of the Local Government Act 1972) is likely to be disclosed.

The Panel must decide whether or not to appoint someone to investigate the allegation(s) and, if so,
whom; and whether or not to permit the statutory officer to attend a meeting of the Panel and make
representations.

The Panel must produce a report (“the Report”) containing the Panel’s advice, views and
recommendations to the Authority on the allegations, and whether or not the statutory officer
should be dismissed.

At the next appropriate time, providing it is least twenty working days after the Panel’s last meeting,
the Authority must consider the Report; the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed
dismissal; any representations from the relevant officer, and decide whether or not the statutory
officer should be dismissed.

The Authority must do what is set out in paragraph 10 above by a concurrent meeting of the Mayor
and the Assembly, to be convened and conducted in accordance with legal advice. The Mayor and
the Assembly may resolve to conduct this meeting in private if they consider confidential or exempt
information (as defined in Part 5A of the Local Government Act 1972) is likely to be disclosed.

The Authority may only decide to dismiss a statutory officer if the Mayor and a majority of the
Assembly both agree to this.

If the Authority decides to dismiss a statutory officer, notice of dismissal must be given in
accordance with their terms and conditions of employment.

Page 79



APPENDIX 3 to
Protocol

Statutory Officers — Sickness Policy

The GLA’s sickness policy applies to the statutory officers but with the following modifications:

All the statutory officers shall report their sickness absence to their line manager.

Usually, the Head of Paid Service shall exercise management responsibilities under the procedure in
respect of the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Finance Officer (unless the Mayor and the Assembly
acting jointly decide to exercise their powers in this regard).

The Mayor and the Assembly acting jointly (in such a manner as they agree) shall exercise
management responsibilities under the procedure in respect of the Head of Paid Service.

Final formal interviews under the sickness policy should only be conducted in respect of the
statutory officers strictly in relation to their ill health (otherwise, for matters of capability and
conduct, Appendix 2 above applies). Prior to any final formal interviews, the Authority should
consider appointing an independent medical adviser (at its own cost), where the medical opinion of
the statutory officer's medical adviser and the Authority’s medical adviser are not in agreement. The
Mayor and Assembly acting jointly (in such a manner as they agree) will conduct and determine all
final formal interviews, and appeals against dismissal, under the sickness policy in respect of all the
statutory officers.

Page 80



GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY Appendix 2

Role Description

Job title: Chief Officer
Grade: Spot salary
Job purpose

1. As the Head of the GLA's corporate leadership team, this role assumes responsibility as Head of
Paid Service (statutory role) for the strategic management of GLA activity and functions.

2. Provide leadership to ensure the smooth and effective delivery of the Mayor’s priorities.

3. Provide strategic expertise to the London Assembly to ensure it achieves its objectives of holding
the Mayor to account and champion the role that the Assembly plays in relation to scrutiny.

4. Manage the GLA resources effectively, ensuring a high quality diverse workforce which provides
world class policy and delivery advice to the Mayor and Assembly.

Principal accountabilities
1. Be accountable for a high quality, responsive and diverse workforce providing unparalleled
policy advice to the Mayor, his/her advisers and London Assembly Members; driving

outstanding operational delivery whilst managing complex risk.

2. Provide strong leadership in promoting the role and the work of the London Assembly both
internally and externally.

3. Develop strong and collaborative relationships across central government and its agencies
and the London Boroughs which ensure all tiers of government work together for the good
of London.

4, Champion the role of the GLA in realising the benefits of London's diversity by promoting the

diverse needs and aspirations of London's communities and ensuring the GLA is
representative of the communities it serves at all levels.

5. Play a lead role in the development and maintenance of effective GLA corporate policy,
acting as a conduit between the London Assembly and the wider GLA.

6. Lead and motivate the Executive Director team and other senior colleagues, set management
objectives and allocate resources that reflect the Mayor’s priorities and ambitions for London.

7. Overall leadership of the GLA workforce ensuring the organisation, structures and
performance management systems in place reflect a modern and innovative culture.

8. Develop and maintain effective internal and external relationships with staff, colleagues, the
Mayor and London Assembly Members and key stakeholders, both within and outside
London.

9. Manage the GLA workforce and resources in accordance with the Authority’s policies and

Code of Ethics and Standards

Page 81



GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY

Accountable to: The Mayor of London and London Assembly.
Accountable for: Performance of the Executive Director Leadership team.
Principal contacts: London Assembly Members, the Mayor and Mayoral Advisors,

Executive Directors, wider GLA Group organisations, central
government and London Boroughs and partner organisations.

Additional information
e This job is “politically restricted” under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989
e Subject to approval of the Mayor, act as Greater London Authority Returning Officer for the
GLA
PERSON SPECIFICATION
Technical requirements/experience/qualifications
1. Extensive experience and proven track record at senior management level, within a local
authority, government department or other political organisation with comparable scope,

responsibilities, budget and resources.

2. Significant experience of working with politicians and other senior stakeholders and proven
ability to successfully negotiate with and influence stakeholders and partners.

3. Proven ability of operating in highly pressurised environment and management of conflicting
priorities, along with experience of managing effective operational performance culture
across an organisation.

4. Clear achievement in promoting diversity, equality and inclusion with a track record of
successfully improving workforce diversity.

5. Understanding of financial management including budget formulation and financial
monitoring
6. Experience of developing and delivering the strategic direction of a complex and multi-

disciplined organisation within a sub-regional context.
7. Experience of developing and supporting a highly motivated and skilled, diverse workforce
8. Understanding of election processes (desirable).
BEHAVIOURAL COMPETENCIES
Stakeholder Focus

... is consulting with, listening to and understanding the needs of those our work impacts and using
this knowledge to shape what we do and manage others” expectations.

Page 82



GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY

Level 4 indicators of effective performance
e Adapts objectives and the GLA’s public facing position based on the
e context behind stakeholder needs and requests

e Builds the GLA’s reputation as an organisation committed to meeting the needs of
Londoners

e Manages partner organisations” and Londoners’ expectations of the GLA by anticipating and
influencing changing priorities
e Instils a culture that encourages GLA staff to think about meeting Londoners’ needs first

e Builds the confidence of staff, partner organisations and Londoners by ensuring the GLA
delivers quality work

Building and Managing Relationships
... is developing rapport and working effectively with a diverse range of people, sharing knowledge
and skills to deliver shared goals.

Level 4 indicators of effective performance

e Identifies and engages a diverse range of influential contacts within stakeholder and
community groups, and partner organisations

e Builds alliances to establish mutually beneficial working arrangements, openly sharing
knowledge and insights

e Actively challenges and addresses “silo attitudes” to encourage effective relationship
building inside and outside the GLA

e Understands the complexities of political dynamics and uses this to manage relationships
and resolve conflict effectively

e |dentifies clear win-win situations with external partners

Communicating and Influencing
. is presenting information and arguments clearly and convincingly so that others see us as
credible and articulate, and engage with us.

Level 4 indicators of effective performance
e Articulates self with credibility and conviction, encouraging buy-in to corporate position

e Influences the thinking of other organisations, encouraging them to deliver in line with the
GLA

e Ensures that the organisation communicates inclusively with staff and external stakeholders
e Acts as a credible and convincing spokesperson and negotiator for the GLA
e Instils a corporate commitment to accessible communication

Strategic Thinking
...is using an understanding of the bigger picture to uncover potential challenges and opportunities
for the long term and turning these into a compelling vision for action.

Level 4 indicators of effective performance

e Develops a positive and compelling vision of London’s future potential, demonstrating
confidence in the strategic direction of the GLA

e Translates an understanding of the complex and diverse threats and issues facing London
into positive action

e Proactively involves partners in strategic thinking, incorporating their views into plans and
working with them to align strategic priorities

e Sets organisational priorities by identifying where time and investment is needed most

Page 83



GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY

e Generates and leads strategic initiatives that reflect the GLA’s position as a regional
authority

Managing and Developing Performance
.. is setting high standards for oneself and others, guiding, motivating and developing them, to
achieve high performance and meet the GLA’s objectives and statutory obligations.

Level 4 indicators of effective performance
e (reates an organisation that learns from experience

e Sets clear organisational objectives, cascading challenging yet achievable deliverables to
directorates

e Identifies strategic level performance indicators and communicates these clearly
e Leads and sets an example for desired behaviour and performance for GLA staff

e Instils a culture of high performance and outstanding results where staff are encouraged to
perform to their best

Decision Making
. is forming sound, evidence-based judgements, making choices, assessing risks to delivery, and
taking accountability for results.

Level 4 indicators of effective performance

e Makes difficult decisions for the long term benefit of the organisation
Presents and instills confidence in strategic decision-making
Consults stakeholders early in critical organisation-wide decisions
Stands by the decisions and actions of the GLA
Accepts and promotes accountability for the GLA’s decision making

Ensures the organisation balances effective risk management with the need for timely
actions

Problem Solving
... is analysing and interpreting situations from a variety of viewpoints and finding creative, workable
and timely solutions.

Level 4 indicators of effective performance
e Seeks multiple perspectives to understand the breadth and depth of complex issues
e Produces strategies to solve organisation-wide problems, considering the practical and
political concerns associated with the implementation of solutions
e Enables the GLA to continuously improve and innovate in the long term
e Problem solves jointly with others to stimulate innovation
e Turns ambiguous or difficult situations into opportunities

Responsible Use of Resources
. is taking personal responsibility for using and managing resources effectively, efficiently and
sustainably.

Level 4 indicators of effective performance
e Explores different options for funding and income generation
e Sets budgets, understanding current costs and challenging teams to deliver greater efficiency

Page 84



GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY

e Monitors resource allocation across the organisation, ensuring the GLA works within budget
and resources

e Ensures the GLA procures and uses resources fairly and responsibly and with regard for
environmental efficiencies

e Leads initiatives to identify and deliver efficiencies across the GLA Group and through
partnership working

Organisational Awareness
... is understanding and being sensitive to organisational dynamics, culture and politics across and
beyond the GLA and shaping our approach accordingly.

Level 4 indicators of effective performance

e Focuses on the needs of Londoners, promoting organisational awareness of how they impact
GLA priorities

e Anticipates and responds appropriately and professionally to political pressure, inspiring
confidence and trust from politicians

e Shapes senior stakeholders” perceptions of the GLA, using their influence to support the GLA
agenda

e Influences Londoners” perceptions of the GLA, using the Media where appropriate

e Leads the organisation by setting the highest standard in upholding integrity and ethical
behaviour

Responding to Pressure and Change
... is being flexible and adapting positively, to sustain performance when the situation changes,
workload increases, tensions rise or priorities shift

Level 4 indicators of effective performance

e Demonstrates resilience in the face of challenge from staff, media and partner organisations
Promotes the GLA as a flexible organisation, responding to the changing needs of Londoners
Shows positivity in the face of external pressure, minimising negative impact
Drives a culture of continuous improvement

Sets the direction for organisational development and ensures effective communication of
change initiatives

Reasonable adjustment

Reasonable adjustment will be made to working arrangements to accommodate a person with a
disability who otherwise would be prevented from undertaking the work

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY™™

P

Chief Officer « Greater London Authority « Competitive salary package

The Greater London Authority (GLA) is home to the Mayor and London Assembly. The Mayor is responsible for making London a better place for everyone who visits, lives and works in the
capital. The London Assembly holds the Mayor to account on behalf of Londoners.

The Chief Officer is a critical role which operates at the heart of London government, leading the Authority's staff and supporting the Mayor, his advisers and the London Assembly. You will
have the unique opportunity to influence across London government and make real changes that affect the capital.

Central to your success will be outstanding relationship management skills at all levels. You will take a leading role in developing partnerships and working with key stakeholders and
communities with the ability to engage political stakeholders. This means anticipating emerging issues and influencing the culture of City Hall to ensure it s truly representative of the
communities it serves.

Your effectiveness at working across central and local government will ensure your credibility at the most senior levels and you will impress with your ability to assimilate complex policy and
oversee effective operational delivery. You will bring a highly successful track record of operating in politically sensitive settings and of working closely with senior officials and politicians.
Above all, you must be a highly experienced and inspirational leader with a passion for maintaining London’s status as the greatest City in the world.

We are seeking candidates from a broad range of backgrounds. London's diversity is its biggest asset and we strive to ensure our workforce reflects London's diversity at all levels.

Fora confidential discussion, please contact Penny Ransley or Mark Turner on 020 7426 3962 or visit www.gatenbysanderson.com for further information and to apply online.

The closing date for applications: Friday 09 March 2018.

MAYOR OF LONDON LONDONASSEMBLY  GatenbySanderson

Job no: GSe40633_GLA ST Date: 15.02.18
Client: Gatenby / Greater London Authority

Size: 120x170 Media: Sundy Times

Insertion date: 18.02.18

Account Handler: Claire Operator (Set by): Martin

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



Agenda Item 7

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Proposed changes to the GLA
Establishment - Finance and Governance

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Resources Date: 1 March 2018

This report will be considered in public

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.1

Summary

This paper sets out proposals for changes to the Greater London Authority (GLA) Establishment
relating to the Authority’s Finance and Governance functions spanning three current units: Financial
Services, Governance & Performance and Group Finance.

It is proposed that there is some streamlining of existing activities and that the first two of these
units (Financial Services and Governance & Performance) merge to form one new unit: Finance &
Governance.

Financial savings in the order of £120,000 per annum are expected to arise from the proposed
changes.

Recommendation

That the Committee responds to the Head of Paid Service’s consultation on the proposed
changes to the GLA Establishment relating to the Authority’s Finance and Governance
functions.

Background and proposed changes

The proposals fall into the following categories:

e Financial Services and Governance & Performance — Senior Management;

Financial Services — Apprentices;

e Financial Services — Technical Team;

e Financial Services — Housing & Development Team;

e Corporate Governance and Corporate Performance Functions;

e Group Finance — Group Budget Team; and

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 89




3.2

3.3

34

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

e Group Finance — Treasury Team.

It should be noted that no changes are planned in the following areas:
e Financial Services — Corporate Team; and

e Information Governance Function.

The following structure charts are appended to this paper, noting that all grades quoted for the
proposed future structure are indicative at this stage:

e Appendix 1: Proposed Senior Management Structure for Finance & Governance;
e Appendix 2: Current Financial Services Unit Structure;

e Appendix 3: Current Governance & Performance Unit Structure;

e Appendix 4: Proposed Governance Team Structure;

e Appendix 5: Current Group Budget Team Structure; and

e Appendix 6: Current Treasury Team Structure.

Financial Services and Governance & Performance — Senior Management

For the last two years, under a temporary arrangement, the senior management of the Financial
Services and Governance Units has rested under a single temporary established role — the Head of
Finance & Governance — rather than two different roles — the Head of Financial Services and the
Head of Governance & Performance.

The temporary arrangements are viewed to have worked well as a result of the synergies between
the work programmes of the two units, specifically in the following areas:

e Decision making

e Risk management

e (Corporate assurance in areas such as anti-fraud measures

e Freedom of information requests relating to financial matters;

and in the case of performance reporting, these restructuring proposals are viewed as providing
enhanced arrangements for the future.

As a result, the following changes to the Establishment are proposed:
e That a Head of Finance & Governance post be created at Grade 15; and

e That the Head of Financial Services (Grade 14) and the Head of Governance & Performance
posts (Grade 14) be deleted.

This proposal has the additional benefit of creating a financial saving for the Authority in the order
of £72,000 per annum. It would also create a combined Finance & Governance Unit, replacing the
existing Financial Services and Governance & Performance Units.

Financial Services — Apprentices

There have been two cohorts of two apprentices working in the Financial Services Unit over recent
years on one-year contracts under the employment of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA). Following changes brought in principally via the Apprenticeship Levy,
employment of apprentices in future will be via the GLA directly rather than via CIPFA.

Page 90



39

3.10

3.11

3.12

The Financial Services Unit and Human Resources & Organisational Development Unit (HR&OD)
have jointly worked up a new scheme which will see apprentices study for the Association of
Accounting Technicians (AAT) qualification on an 18-month contract at Grade 2 (level three
apprenticeship) with the possibility of an 18-month extension at Grade 4 (level four apprenticeship).
It is hoped that the scheme will develop individuals who can build a career in the team at Grade 6
and above.

As a result, the following changes to the Establishment are proposed:

e That two Finance Apprenticeship posts be created at Grade 4, noting that the funding will
coming from the existing Financial Services budget set aside for this purpose.

Financial Services — Technical Team

Developments in accounting standards will make the work of the Technical Team more complex,
specifically:

e |FRS 9 - Financial Instruments — this standard has changed how the Authority and GLA Land and
Property Limited (GLAP) classify and measure financial assets and has changed the timing and
measurement of the impairment of financial assets. This is effective from 2018/19 but will
require restatement of 31 March 2018 balances. This requires a comprehensive review of all
financial instruments and consideration any changes in classification will have on the general
fund/retained earnings; and the preparation of expected credit losses models to calculate
impairment and an assessment of the resultant impact on reserves;

e |FRS 16 — Leases — this standard changes the classification and accounting of operating leases
for lessees, operating leases will be recognised on the balance sheet. This will require a review of
all operating leases in GLA and GLAP, the need to obtain valuations, and to the account for the
resultant assets and lease liability on the balance sheet. This is effective from 2019/20 but the
review has to take place in 2018/19 to ensure that we are compliant in 2019/20; and

e |FRS 15 — Revenue Recognition — this mainly impacts on GLAP and changes how and when
GLAP will recognise revenue as well as requiring new disclosures. The standard provides a single,
principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers. A review is
required of GLAP income sources to ensure that income is recognised in accordance with the
new standard and that disclosures are compliant. This is effective from 2018/19.

In addition, the Technical Team will be assuming some additional responsibilities:

e Consolidation of Accounts — the Consolidation of Accounts will be extended to include:
o From 2017-18, SME Wholesale Finance London Limited (SMEWFL, trading as “Funding
London”) which has been acquired by the GLA — please see MD2146
o From 2018-19, the London Fire Commissioner (the body replacing the London Fire and
Emergency Planning Authority — LFEPA) which will be under Mayoral control;

e Posting Treasury transactions — to ensure an appropriate division of duties between teams, it is
proposed that the Technical Team, rather than the Treasury Team, posts Treasury transactions —
this follows on from a recommendation made by Link which has conducted an independent
review of the GLA’s Treasury Function (see Treasury section below for further details); and

e Provision of a shared service to the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation (OPDC)
covering technical accounting services, specifically:
o Preparation of the following reconciliations:
= Bank Reconciliation
= Accounts Payable Reconciliation
= Accounts Receivable Reconciliation
o VAT Returns - preparation and submission

Page 91



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

o Running the following reports and fielding queries:
= Parked Invoice Report
» Aged Debtors Report
* GRIR (good-receipt/invoice-receipt) Report
=  Open Purchase Orders Report
Sales Invoice processing
Expenses processing
Payroll submission — staff loans, expenses, UNISON and GAYE
SAP Substitutions — running the report to check that substitutions have an end date, are
in line with OPDC Financial Regulations
Running RE9T Reports at year end
o Running accruals transaction listings at year end.

O O O O

o

As a result, the following changes to the Establishment are proposed:

e That the Chief Accountant post be upgraded from Grade 12 to Grade 13 to reflect the additional
responsibilities taken on by the Technical Team and the increased complexity of the Team’s work
for which the Chief Accountant is responsible and at a cost of £12,000 per annum;

e That a new Grade 8 Accountant post be created with Treasury transactional responsibilities and
with the cost covered by Treasury income; and

e That a new Grade 6 Senior Finance Officer post be created to undertake the new OPDC shared
service responsibilities — the shared service agreement between the GLA and the OPDC will be
updated accordingly with the cost of the new post to be met by the OPDC.

Financial Services — Housing & Development Team

A new Housing & Development Team was created within the Financial Services Unit in 2017. Its
focus is threefold:

e To oversee all capital budgeting issues arising for the Authority, including the production of the
Authority’s annual Capital Spending Plan;

e To provide a “one stop shop”, covering both revenue and capital budgets, for the Housing &
Land Directorate; and

e To maintain GLAP financial forecasts, both in terms of capital receipts and expenses incurred.

With the transfer of the responsibility for financial advice relating to the capital element of the
Regeneration Unit’s budget from the Corporate Team to Housing & Development Team, and also
noting the increased workload on the financial side arising from the Regeneration Team’s Good
Growth Fund (which is predominantly capital rather than revenue) and from year end capital
accounting tasks primarily relating to land valuations, it is proposed that additional resource is
provided to the Housing & Development Team.

This seems reasonable in the light of this Team having responsibility for providing financial advice to
a range of complex and significant grant and loan arrangements in Housing & Land and
Regeneration and in the context of the Team currently comprising only four FTEs in total.

As a result, the following change to the Establishment is proposed:

e That a new Accountant post be created at Grade 8 in the Housing & Development Team,
reporting to the Senior Accountant and at a cost of £51,000 per annum.

Page 92



3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

Corporate Governance and Corporate Performance Functions

The Governance & Performance Unit was created in 2012 to provide the additional programme and
project monitoring arrangements necessitated by the devolution to the GLA of the housing and
regeneration functions formerly carried out by:

e The London region of the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA);
e The London Development Agency (LDA); and
e The London Thames Gateway Development Corporation (LTGDC).

The Unit also has responsibility for the Information Governance Function but that area of work is
unaffected by this set of proposed changes to the Establishment.

The staffing arrangements in the Unit (outside of Information Governance) were initially created by
utilising existing posts engaged in these areas of work in 2012 and have not been subject to any
structural change in the period since 2012.

After a period of six years without structural change, and with a new administration setting out its
own arrangements for the reporting of corporate performance, now is the right time to set out a
revised structure for this part of the Unit.

In terms of management of the Corporate Governance and Corporate Performance Functions, it is
proposed to create a new Senior Governance Manager post at Grade 12 (distinct from the current
post which happens to share that title) reporting to the new Head of Finance & Governance post.
The new Senior Governance Manager post would oversee three areas of work:

e The Corporate Governance Function (see below);
e The Corporate Performance Function (see below); and

e The Information Governance Function (unchanged by these proposals).

A single post overseeing these three Functions would appear to be a logical streamlining of current
management arrangements, where there are three posts (all of which are proposed for deletion):

e The Olympic Park Legacy Manager post at Grade 12;
e The current Senior Governance Manager post at Grade 11; and

e The Senior Performance Manager post at Grade 11.

In terms of the Olympic Park Legacy Manager post, which provided the GLA with oversight of the
London Legacy Development Corporation’s (LLDC) operations, that function has become more
financially focused — given the challenges faced by LLDC — and is now primarily provided by Group
Finance. A small amount of support for decision making and catch up meetings is provided through
the Corporate Governance Function. The Olympic Park Legacy Manager post holder has been
undertaking other duties in the interim.

In terms of the Corporate Governance Function, it is envisaged that the new Senior Governance
Manager post holder will need a dedicated member of staff who can provide day-to-day oversight of
the Authority’s corporate governance arrangements. The principal tasks for the proposed new
Corporate Governance Manager (Grade 9) post holder will be:

e Reviewing decision forms and enhancing their content;
e Supporting the work of the Governance Steering Group chaired by the Executive Director of

Resources;

Page 93



3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

e Providing decision making advice and updating and administering the Scheme of Delegation;
e Supporting the GLA’s oversight of LLDC, OPDC and the London Fire Commissioner (LFC); and

e Revising the corporate risk register and related tasks.

In terms of the Corporate Performance Function, there are currently two posts in addition to the
Senior Performance Manager— one at Grade 8 (Performance Officer) and one at Grade 6
(Performance Support Officer). It is proposed to consolidate these two posts into one new posts — a
Corporate Performance Manager at Grade 9, mirroring the arrangement proposed for Corporate
Governance and providing day-to-day oversight of the corporate performance function, specifically:

e Developing and monitoring progress against the emerging set of outcome targets;
e Quarterly monitoring at programme and project level; and

e Regular monitoring of Mayoral commitments.

In both cases — Corporate Governance and Corporate Performance — it is envisaged that a middle
management grade of Grade 9 is appropriate for the post holders given the responsibilities of the
roles, i.e. providing day-to-day oversight of a corporate function.

Finally, it is proposed — without affecting the Establishment — that the duties of the Executive
Support Officer (Grade 6) are modified to reflect a streamlining of responsibilities agreed elsewhere
in the GLA structure. The Committee Services Team will assume responsibility for administering GLA
decisions (i.e. Mayoral Decisions — MDs, Director Decisions — DDs, Assistant Director Decisions —
ADDs and Greater London Returning Officer Decisions — GLROs). This shift in responsibility fits well
with the Committee Services Team having existing responsibility for clerking the Corporate
Investment Board (CIB).

The focus of the modified responsibilities for the Executive Support Officer would be:

e Providing administrative support to the Head of Finance & Governance and to the tier of
managers reporting directly to the Head of Finance & Governance (i.e. the Chief Accountant,
two Finance Managers and the new Senior Governance Manager post);

e Co-ordination of input to decision forms across Finance & Governance; and

e (Co-ordination of answers to Mayor’s Questions and other corporate tasks.

As a result, the following changes to the Establishment are proposed:

e That the following posts be created:
o A Senior Governance Manager post at Grade 12
o A Corporate Governance Manager post at Grade 9
o A Corporate Governance Manager post at Grade 9; and

e That the following posts be deleted:
o The Olympic Park Legacy Manager post at Grade 12
o The Senior Governance Manager post at Grade 11
o The Senior Performance Manager post at Grade 11
o The Performance Officer post at Grade 8
o The Performance Support Officer post at Grade 6.
This set of proposals has the additional benefit of creating a financial saving for the Authority in the
order of £111,000 per annum.

Page 94



3.32

3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

3.37

3.38

3.39

3.40

Group Finance — Group Budget Team

The Team has the key responsibility for managing the Mayor’s annual £16bn budget and maximising
and accounting for the GLA’s three largest revenue sources — retained business rates, council tax
and the Crossrail business rate supplement, which between them will generate over £4bn this year
for the GLA Group. It also leads on a number of key projects including managing the financial
aspects of the four designated areas/enterprise zones in London, supporting work on the
development of the Crossrail 2 funding package and the provision of financial oversight of the
functional bodies, including the Mayoral Development Corporations (MDCs).

The responsibilities of the Team have expanded in recent months as a result of preparation for the
introduction of a London wide business rates pool from April 2018 which will create additional
reporting, administrative and accounting challenges, necessitating an enhanced level of joint
working with London’s 33 local authorities and their umbrella body, London Councils, and requiring
new governance arrangements in relation to the application of the £3.1bn in revenues which the
GLA will receive via the pool.

These changes will place additional responsibilities on both the Finance Manager, who will assume a
greater workload in relation to external funding, enterprise zones and business rates, and the Senior
Financial Analyst, who will assume a greater workload in relation to managing the annual budget
setting process.

As a result, the following changes to the Establishment are proposed:

e That the Finance Manager post be upgraded from Grade 12 to Grade 13, which is to be funded
by existing budget provision available to the Group Finance Unit; and

e That the Senior Financial Analyst be upgraded from Grade 10 to Grade 11, which is to be funded
by existing budget provision available to the Group Finance Unit.
Group Finance — Treasury Team

A review of the GLA’s Treasury Function has been undertaken by the Authority’s Treasurer Advisor,
Link, in view of:

e The scale of existing and proposed Treasury activity, which has involved a considerable increase
in the pool of monies for investment over the last five years;

e Anincrease in complexity due to new types of financial transactions (e.g. loans and recoverable
grants forming part of the Housing Zones programme); and

e Associated regulatory and accountancy requirements, including enabling GLA investment activity
to be carried out in a Financial Services Market Act (FSMA) authorised manner.

Link has advised that the future Treasury operation should be organised on a front/middle/back
office approach and makes the case for a greater segregation of duties. Controls need to be
enhanced to reflect the scale and complexity of Treasury activities. There should be a separate
compliance function which should have no role in the management/operation function.

So as to ensure that this segregation of duties is achieved, it is proposed that Treasury transactions
are posted by the Technical Team (see above).

The Senior Group Treasury Officer — Reporting and Control role covers both: (i) compliance; and
(i) Treasury reporting to the Group Investment Syndicate (GIS).

On compliance, in order to secure a compliance function which meets the exacting compliance
requirements expected by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), compliance arrangements will be

Page 95



3.41

3.42

4.1

4.2

4.2

5.1

52

53

54

55

established at the first available opportunity with an external provider which has the independence,
expertise and degree of specialism required. This is being proposed on the basis of professional
advice provided by Link and would not be able to be achieved by continuing with an internal staff
resource. There will also be an enhanced role for Internal Audit in compliance. These revised
arrangements will establish the level of assurance expected by the GLA and its partner bodies in the
GIS. Value for money will be an important consideration in any new externally provided function.

On reporting, it is proposed that these tasks be incorporated into the mainstream Treasury function,
rather than being distinct and separate from it. There is capacity within the Treasury Team currently
to undertake the reporting tasks.

As a result, the following change to the Establishment is proposed:

e That the Senior Group Treasury Officer — Reporting and Control post be deleted, with the
savings created being used to fund the external compliance resource being sought.

Consultation

A consultation with staff and Unison in respect of these proposals commenced on 20 February 2018.
Staff and Unison are being offered the opportunity to submit comments in writing.

One-to-one meetings with the individuals affected are taking place. They will have priority
consideration for posts in the new structure as part of a ring-fenced interview process. They will also
have priority for other posts in the organisation and, where possible, will be redeployed elsewhere in
the organisation to avoid redundancy.

In accordance with the GLA's Staffing Protocol, formal consultation with the Mayor and the
Assembly is required for this proposal as more than five posts are affected. The Assembly has
delegated its consultation response to its GLA Oversight Committee.

Legal Implications

Under section 67(2) of the GLA Act 1999 (as amended) the Head of Paid Service has the power,
after consulting the Mayor and the Assembly, to appoint such staff as he considers necessary for the
proper discharge of the functions of the Authority, having regard to the resources available and the
priorities of the Authority.

Under section 70(2), the Head of Paid Service has the power to employ staff appointed under
section 67(2) on such terms as he thinks fit, after consultation with the Mayor and the Assembly.

Under section 54 of the GLA Act 1999 (as amended) the Assembly has delegated its powers of
consultation on staffing matters to the GLA Oversight Committee.

The Head of Paid Service staffing protocol, agreed by the Mayor and Assembly in November 2009,
sets out the Authority’s agreed approach as to how the Head of Paid Service will discharge his staff
powers contained in sections 67(2) and 70(2) above.

Paragraph 5.1 of that Protocol states that there is a requirement to consult with the GLA Oversight

Committee and the Mayor on any “major restructure”, namely the creation or deletion of more than
five posts within any one unit. Paragraph 5.2 states that there is a requirement to inform the Mayor

Page 96



5.6

5.7

5.8

59

5.10

6.1

and to consult the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Assembly on restructures involving five or less
posts before taking a decision on them.

This proposal falls under the category of a “major restructure” and therefore requires consultation
with the Mayor and the Assembly. This paper seeks to consult with the Assembly regarding the
proposals in order to comply with its obligations to consult. Any comments made will be taken into
consideration by the Head of Paid Service prior to making a final decision on the proposals.

In respect of the posts which are proposed to be deleted, the GLA should follow its Management of
Change Policy in respect of the deletion of these posts. In recruiting to vacant posts, the GLA should
follow its Recruitment Policy and Equal Opportunities Policy.

The GLA should be aware that fixed term employees have the right to be treated no less favourably
than permanent employees due to their fixed term employee status. Once the post holder has been
in post beyond two years, he/she will have the same statutory right as a permanent employee not to
be unfairly dismissed.

After two years of service, the post holder may also be eligible to receive a redundancy payment
should the post come to an end. Any fair dismissal of the employee at the end of the fixed term will
necessitate a fair reason and a fair procedure. This will involve considering suitable alternative
employment before confirming that their employment is terminated.

If the funding continues after the end of their fixed term contract, it may be difficult to dismiss for
redundancy (one of the fair reasons) if in fact there is further work to be carried out after the end of
the contract. If the employee has been employed on a series of successive fixed-term contracts, then
he/she will be considered to be a permanent employee after four years of service.

Financial Implications

The financial implications are set out in the table below. Financial savings in the order of £120,000
per annum are expected to arise.

Area Annual Saving £000

Financial Services and Governance & Performance — Senior Management /2

Financial Services — Apprentices -

Financial Services — Technical Team (12)
Financial Services — Housing & Development Team (51)
Corporate Governance and Corporate Performance Functions 111

Group Finance — Group Budget Team -

Group Finance — Treasury Team -

Total 120

Page 97



6.2

6.3

An analysis by full-time equivalent (FTE) is shown in the table below.

Area Upgraded Created Deleted Net posts
posts FTEs | posts FTEs | posts FTEs FTEs

Financial Services and Governance & - 1 2 m

Performance — Senior Management

Financial Services — Apprentices* - 2 - 2

Financial Services — Technical Team 1 2 - 2

Financial Services — Housing & Development - 1 - 1

Team

Corporate Governance and Corporate - 3 (5) (2)

Performance Functions

Group Finance — Group Budget Team 2 - - -

Group Finance — Treasury Team - - ) )

Total 3 9 (8) 1

*formerly employed by CIPFA

Any redundancy costs arising from these proposals will be met from within existing budgets.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1: Proposed Senior Management Structure for Finance & Governance

Appendix 2: Current Financial Services Unit Structure

Appendix 3: Current Governance & Performance Unit Structure
Appendix 4: Proposed Governance Team Structure
Appendix 5: Current Group Budget Team Structure
Appendix 6: Current Treasury Team Structure

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

List of Background Papers: None.

Contact Officer: Martin Clarke, Executive Director — Resources
Telephone: 020 7983 4959
E-mail: martin.clarke@london.gov.uk

Page 98



mailto:martin.clarke@london.gov.uk

Appendix 1: Proposed Senior Management Structure for Finance & Governance

Head of Finance &
Governance

[G15]

Executive Support
Officer
[G6]

Chief Accountant
[G13]

Finance Manager
(Corporate)
[G12]

Finance Manager
(Housing &
Development) [G12]

Senior Governance
Manager
[G12]

Page 99




Appendix 2: Current Financial Services Unit Structure

Head of Financial
Services [G14]
| |
Finance Manager Finance Manager ;
(Corporate) (Housing & Chief A(:f]cguntant
[G12] Development) [G12] [ ]
|| Senior Accountant | || Senior Accountant | |} Senior Accountant
[GT10] [GT10] [G10]
|| 6x Accountants | 2x Accountant || Accountant
[G10] [G8] [G8]
2x Senior Finance 3x Senior Finance
— Officers — Officers
[G6] [G6]

Page 100



Appendix 3: Current Governance & Performance Unit Structure

Head of
Governance &
Performance G14

Olympic Park Senior
Legacy Manager Performance
G12 Manager G11

Senior Governace
Manager G11

Information
Governance
Manager G9

Performance
Officer G8

Performance
= Support Officer
G6

Information
Governance
Officer G6

Information

Executive Support
Officer G6

Governance
Officer G6

Page 101



Appendix 4: Proposed Governance Team Structure

Senior Governance
Manager G12

Information
Governance Manager
G9

Corporate Performance Corporate Governance
Manager G9 Manager G9

Information
Governance Officer G6

Information
Governance Officer G6

Page 102



Appendix 5: Current Group Budget Team Structure

AD Group
Finance G15

Senior Finance Finance
Manager G13 Manager G12

Senior Financial
Analyst G10

Financial Analyst
G9

Page 103



Appendix 6: Current Treasury Team Structure

AD Group Finance
G15

Chief Investment

Officer (Spot)

Senior Group
Treasury Officer -
Reporting & Control
G10

Senior Group
Treasury Officer -
Operations G10

Group Treasury
Officer G8

Group Treasury
Officer G8

Group Treasury
Trainee Officer
G4-G8

Group Treasury
Trainee Officer
G4-G8

Page 104



Agenda Item 8

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

Subject: Work Programme for the
GLA Oversight Committee

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 1 March 2018

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

Summary

This report provides details of the proposed work for the meetings of the Committee in this
Assembly Year (2017-18).

Recommendation

That the Committee notes its work programme for the remainder of the 2017-18
Assembly Year, as set out in this report, and identifies any additional issues it wishes to
consider at future meetings.

Background

The GLA Oversight Committee has the following overall functions:

o Management and administration of the budget of the Assembly and Secretariat, and
overseeing the Assembly’s scrutiny work programme;

o Having oversight, on behalf of the London Assembly, of the Greater London
Authority’s (GLA) corporate governance policies and activities;

o Maintaining a watching brief in respect of the activities of the senior officers appointed by
the Mayor; and

o Responding to consultations from the Head of Paid Service and scrutinising the Head of Paid
Service function.

Additionally, it was agreed at the Assembly’s Annual Meeting of 11 May 2012 that the

GLA Oversight Committee’s terms of reference include provision to scrutinise any actions or
decisions taken by the Mayor on matters relating to education. The Committee can also scrutinise
civil contingency arrangements in London, the provision of services to the public and the
performance of utilities in London.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 105




4.1

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Issues for Consideration
The main work areas of the Committee are summarised below.

Assembly Budget and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Committee allocates the Assembly’s budget and receives a report in March each year on that
subject (following the approval of the overall amount of the budget and in advance of the start of
the financial year in question).

The Committee receives quarterly monitoring reports from the Secretariat, scheduled for the
Committee meetings in June, September, November and January.

The Committee approves individual proposals for non-routine expenditure from the scrutiny
programme budget which are referred to the Committee by the subject-related committees during
the year. The timing of these reports depends upon when the subject-related committees approve
projects and refer proposals for expenditure.

The Committee approves proposals for rapporteurships referred from subject-related committees
during the course of the year.

The Committee also has the power to consider any issue which does not fall into the remit of one of
the subject-related committees (for instance, cross-cutting equalities and governance issues).

Staffing Consultations and Appointments

The Committee will be invited to respond to consultations from the Head of Paid Service (HoPS)
from time to time during the year. The Committee’s role in relation to these consultations is reactive
and therefore the work programme does not predict what reports will be presented and when.

The Assembly has a role in appointing the statutory officers to the Authority, and this Committee
has delegated authority to fulfil that role as and when the need arises. At its meeting of

22 May 2012, the GLA Oversight Committee agreed that the Head of Paid Service Performance
Review Panel be established as a working group, and this meets annually (with the most recent
meeting held on 25 January 2016).

Other Items for Consideration
At its meeting on 21 March 2013, the Committee asked that it be consulted formally on the annual
staff pay review.

At its meeting on 25 February 2014, the Committee agreed to receive details of the progress made

to address GLA workforce equalities issues, dealt with as part of the Committee’s regular Workforce
Monitoring Report and update.

Page 106



411

412

413

5.1

6.1

Scrutiny of the Head of Paid Service Function
The Committee usually receives reports on the following issues during the course of the year:

e Annual Workforce Monitoring Report, incorporating complaints monitoring (plus a
six-monthly update); and

e (Governance.

The Committee also receives a report on the Draft Annual Governance Statement (last dealt with by
the Committee at its meeting in July 2017).

Meeting Dates
The table set out below shows the Committee’s remaining meeting dates for the 2017/18 Assembly
year and agenda items. This timetable and agenda items are reviewed and updated as appropriate.

Date of meeting Main Agenda Items (subject to agreement)
March e HoPS Consultation Reports (if any)
(20 March 2018) e Assembly Annual Report
e Secretariat Quarterly Monitoring Report Q3
e Allocation of Assembly Budget
e Workforce Report (update)

Legal Implications
The Assembly has the power to establish committees to discharge its functions, and the GLA

Oversight Committee is one such committee. The work programme is in accordance with the GLA
Oversight Committee’s terms of reference.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications for the purposes of this report.

List of appendices to this report: None.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager
Telephone: 020 7983 4425

E-mail:

lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

Page 107



mailto:lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



Agenda Item 9

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Action Taken Under Delegated
Authority

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 1 March 2018

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

Summary

This report outlines recent action taken by the Chair of the GLA Oversight Committee in accordance
with his standing delegation to respond to consultations and other action taken by him recently,
following consultation with the Deputy Chairman and party Group Lead Members.

Recommendations

That the Committee notes the recent action taken by the Chair of the GLA Oversight
Committee under delegated authority, following consultation with the Education Panel,
Deputy Chairman and party Group Lead Members, namely to agree the response to the
Department of Education’s consultation on the devolution of the Adult Education Budget,
and notes the letter attached at Appendix 1 to the report.

That the Committee notes the action taken by the Chair of the GLA Oversight Committee,
following consultation with the Deputy Chairman and party Group Lead Members, namely
to send a letter to Sir Martin Moore-Bick, Chairman of the Grenfell Tower Inquiry, setting
out the findings from this Committee’s investigations regarding the Grenfell Tower fire,
and that the Committee notes the letter, attached at Appendix 2 to the report.

Background

At its Annual Meeting on 1 May 2013, the Assembly agreed to delegate a general authority to Chairs
of all ordinary committees and sub-committees to respond on the relevant committee or sub-
committee’s behalf, following consultation with the lead Members of the party Groups on the
committee or sub-committee, where it is consulted on issues by organisations and there is
insufficient time to consider the consultation at a committee meeting.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 109




3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

5.1

6.1

The Department of Education wrote to the London Assembly on 5 January 2018 regarding a
consultation on the proposed devolution of the Adult Education Budget in London to the Mayor.

The Chair consulted with the Education Panel, Deputy Chairman and party Group Leaders regarding
the proposed draft response.

Issues for Consideration

Consultation on Adult Education Budget

Following consultation with the Education Panel, Deputy Chairman and party Group Lead Members
the Chair wrote to the Department for Education on 9 February 2018 to respond to the consultation

on the proposed devolution of the Adult Education Budget in London to the Mayor.

The Committee is recommended to note the action taken by the Chair and the letter attached at
Appendix 1.

Grenfell Tower Inquiry
Following consultation with the Deputy Chairman and party Group Lead Members the Chair wrote to
the Chair of the Grenfell Tower Inquiry on 7 February 2018 detailing the Committee’s findings

regarding the Grenfell Tower fire.

The Committee is recommended to note the action taken by the Chair and the letter attached at
Appendix 2.

Legal Implications

The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in the report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

List of appendices to this report: None

Appendix 1-Letter to the Department for Education regarding the consultation on devolution of the adult

education budget

Appendix 2-Submission to the public inquiry into the Grenfell Tower fire

Page 110



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers:
MDA 907

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager
Telephone: 020 7983 4425
E-mail: lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

Page 111



mailto:lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



LONDONASSEME Appendix 1
Len Duvall AM, Chair of GLA Oversight Committee

City Hall

The Queen’s Walk

London SET 2AA
Switchboard: 020 7983 4000
Minicom: 020 7983 4458

Web: www.london.gov.uk
Dominic Hastings

Deputy Director

Further Education Funding

Higher and Further Education Directorate
Department for Education

(by email: dominic.hastings@education.gov.uk)

9 February 2018

Dear Dominic
Devolution of the Adult Education Budget to the Mayor
Thank you for your letter of 5 January 2018.

The London Assembly has long called for the devolution of the adult education budget (AEB)
to the GLA. There is a significant body of evidence that indicates that the current adult
education system is not providing those skills that are required by London employers. This is in
part because the London economy changes quickly and information flows between employers,
further education colleges, providers and universities are poor. Some colleges are not providing
the right courses to help people get the skills they need to access the jobs that the local
economy is generating. As employers can’t find job-ready local people they look further afield
to meet their needs.

Devolution of the adult education budget to the Mayor will enable a closer alignment of skills
training with the needs of employers, which should help support more Londoners into
employment, and support life-long learning to the benefit of in-work progression and the
general well-being of Londoners.

We therefore agree in principle to the devolution of the AEB to the GLA in 2019/20 (your
question 1).

In response to your question 2, we welcome your recognition of the Assembly’s scrutiny role in
holding the Mayor to account in his performance of delivering the AEB. The Mayor is
proposing to establish an Adult Education Programme Board to steer and advise the Mayor,
and the Assembly will ensure that the Board is held to account in a regular, open and
transparent fashion. We will do our work to ensure devolution is a success and would expect to
be included in any future stakeholder liaison or consultation.

Contact: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager, City Hall, Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Tel: 020 7983 4425; email: Igg&élioitg@london.gov.uk



LONDONASSEME

Devolution will not be without its challenges. New staffing structures and systems will be
needed. The GLA is working hard to deepen its understanding of the sector. Our
understanding is that London’s adult skills provision is delivered by 410 prime providers, of
which 292 were grant funded and 118 had contracts for services. It is vital that the
Department supports the GLA’s transition work by providing all the data necessary for the GLA
to be ready to run these contracts from 2019.

There are many opportunities for skills funding to be more effective in supporting Londoners
into work, boosting productivity and supporting economic activity. In particular, there are
strong arguments for shifting to a more outcomes-focussed funding regime and this will
require strengthening links between the GLA, providers and businesses.

The GLA will also want to encourage providers to think creatively about how to engage with
Londoners and about how they provide courses in an increasingly digital environment. Courses
in English for speakers of other languages, for supporting the work and life chances of people
with special education needs and disabilities, for those running small business (or looking to
set them up) and for people looking to re-train are all specific areas where we would expect
the sector to innovate. Business as usual is not an option given the challenges our residents
face in a rapidly changing labour market.

Yours Sincerely,

Len Duvall AM
Chair of the GLA Oversight Committee

Contact: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager, City Hall, Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Tel: 020 7983 4425; email: @é@éafiﬁa@london.gov.uk



LONDONASSEMBLY Appendix 2
Len Duvall AM, Chair of GLA Oversight Committee

City Hall

The Queen’s Walk

London SE1 2AA
Switchboard: 020 7983 4000
Minicom: 020 7983 4458
Web:_ www.london.gov.uk

Sir Martin Moore-Bick
Grenfell Tower Inquiry
Holborn Bars

138-142 Holborn
London

ECIN 2 NQ
7 February 2018

Dear Sir Martin Moore-Bick

Oversight Committee: London Resilience’s response to the Grenfell Fire

The London Assembly’s GLA Oversight Committee is tasked, among other matters, to
scrutinise the Mayor’s functions as they relate to civil contingency arrangements in London.

The Committee has reviewed the response of London Resilience?! to the Grenfell Tower Fire
on 14 June 2017.2 Our focus is on the strategic coordinating function of the London
Resilience Group as part of the Greater London Authority (GLA) and the role of London Local
Authority Gold in the immediate aftermath of the fire.?

Drawing on this material, we are making the following contribution to the public inquiry in
relation to two of the stated issues to be investigated, namely:

12 (d): What actions were taken on the night of 14 June 2017 to fight the fire, including: (i)
First calls and responses; (ii) Assembly of strategy, command and control

13 (b) What was the response of the Tenant Management Organisation, central and local
government by way of the provision of emergency relief in the days immediately following
the fire?

! London Resilience is an umbrella term used to describe the linked bodies within the Greater London Authority with
responsibilities for resilience. This is set out in more detail in Appendix 1.

2 The committee held two public meetings with Steve Hamm (Head of Programmes, London Resilience), John Barradell OBE
(Town Clerk and Chief Executive, City of London Corporation and Chair of the Local Authority Panel), Dr Barry Quirk CBE (Chief
Executive, RBKC), Doug Patterson (Chief Executive, London Borough of Bromley) and Eleanor Kelly (Chief Executive, London
Borough of Southwark).

3 The transcripts from our meetings are available here: https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/london-assembly/london-
assembly-committees/gla-oversight-committee

Page 115



LONDONASSE Y
Len Duvall AM, Chair of GLA Oversight Committee

The questions we wish the Public Inquiry to pursue are:

e the timing of and the way in which the need for humanitarian assistance was
managed within the Strategic Coordinating Group (SGC);

e the failing of the London Local Authority Gold to intervene and provide mutual aid in
the immediate aftermath of the fire despite mounting evidence that such help was
needed; and

e whether the current legislation and resilience arrangements would have allowed for
a more proactive role for the Mayor in addressing the humanitarian need.

Background

The GLA’s competency with respect to London’s resilience is largely about preparation,
although it also has a limited role in the response phase following a serious incident, and
then into the recovery phase.

After the abolition of the Government Office for London (GOL) in 2010, the GLA gained
responsibility for a number of the key functions for protecting London in the case of
emergencies, as set out in the guidance to the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and its
regulations:
e ensuring there is a risk register for London, that the various risks, threats, and
hazards from the National Risk Register are combined with local risks
e providing the Secretariat to the London Resilience Forum (LRF),*
e back-office work in developing emergency plans that will then be deployed when
those risks, previously identified, are realised.

The London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA) has a duty under the Civil
Contingencies Act to provide a co-ordinating and support function for the London boroughs
in emergency planning. This role is unique in the context of the Civil Contingencies Act and
was created because of the complexity of the local authority structure in London. The other
large metropolitan areas do not have borough-level resilience forums, as in London, and
there is therefore no need for a coordinating body such as LFEPA.

Following the abolition of GOL, the London Resilience team was established in the GLA and
then in 2015 was transferred to LFEPA, where it has been integrated with the London Fire
Brigade (LFB) resilience team. The function within LFB is largely about producing the London
Resilience programme, which is authorised by the London Resilience Forum (LRF).

The types of outputs that come from the London Resilience programme are documents,
protocols, and plans. They tend to focus on the multi-agency approach to managing

4 The London Resilience Forum (LRF) was established in response to the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 which introduced local
resilience forums, and is chaired by a Mayoral appointee. The Forum is a central part of the wider London Resilience Partnership
(LRP), providing a structure through which local agencies could come together to plan and prepare for localised incidents and
catastrophic emergencies, including terrorist incidents and natural disasters.

Page 116



LONDONASSE Y
Len Duvall AM, Chair of GLA Oversight Committee

emergencies in London. These plans are by their very nature of a generic application.
Regardless of the nature of the significant event it is the generic pre-determined plans that

are used by the agencies involved. The strategic co-ordination protocol (SCP) is the prime
document and it describes how the various agencies in London can come together and how
the London Resilience team can support them.

The response to the Grenfell Tower Fire

The Oversight Committee has reviewed the triggering of the strategic co-ordination protocol
(SCP) and the way it was used in the immediate hours after the London Resilience duty
officer was notified of the fire situation at Grenfell at 03.41 on 14 June. As part of our
evidence gathering we were provided with a timeline of the events as partner organisations
were contacted to take part in the first Strategic Co-ordination Group (SCG) [Correct this
throughout] meeting, which took place at 05:00, chaired by the London Fire Brigade.
Subsequent meetings were chaired by the Metropolitan Police (Met).

An area of particular concern for us has been the timing of and the way in which the need
for humanitarian assistance was managed within the SCG. We were told that within the
London Resilience suite of plans and protocols, there is one focusing on humanitarian
assistance: “it has a scope and it has a pre-determined methodology and structure that
could be stood up at a tactical level in an affected area.”® So, as we understand it, the SCG
has a humanitarian plan that includes the ability to provide shelter and accommodation.
However, different bodies are in charge of different aspects of this plan. While the SCG acts
in the immediate hours following a significant incident to develop and maintain a high-level
picture, the humanitarian plan would actually be initiated and led by the borough at the
locality of the incident unless they trigger a request for mutual aid through the London Local
Authority Gold (LLAG) network.

In respect of the response to the Grenfell Tower Fire, “Local Authorities” were represented
at the first, and then subsequent SCG meetings, according to the attendee list provided to
us.” However, we have been unable to determine who attended, how they communicated
with RBKC and indeed how humanitarian needs were assessed in the immediate hours
following the fire and what action plans were triggered in response. At our meeting the new
Chief Executive of RB Kensington and Chelsea was unable to provide this information.

We have requested copies of the minutes from those meetings but they have not been
released to us. We do, however, understand that they are being made available to the
public inquiry and would therefore recommend that this line of questioning is pursued

7 o"

within the scope of the inquiry’s “issues to be investigated”.

Given the role of the local authority, in this case RBKC, as the category 1 responder under
the Civil Contingencies Act, much of our questioning of the London resilience arrangements

> Letter to Andrew Boff from Jeff Jacobs — Attached as appendix 2
® Head of Programmes, London Resilience (page 7, 14 Sept meeting).
7 See appendix 3

Page 117



LONDON . |
Len Duvall AM, Chair of GLA Oversight Committee

has focused on the pan-London support available to the local authority and how it was
accessed.

There are broadly two levels of support available to a London local authority facing the
consequences of a significant incident. There are resources that can be accessed through a
formal arrangement that triggers mutual aid — which is set out in the London Local Gold
Resolution —and there are informal offers of support which might be requested by the local
authority itself or made by other local authorities who have officers with relevant
specialities. We heard of examples where other local authorities reached out to RBKC to
offer leadership and specialist support in the hours and days after the fire where they felt
that there was a need.

We also heard of London Borough Chief Executives, working through the London Local
Authority Gold (LLAG) network, who were in communication with each other as the scale of
the impact of the fire on the residents and wider local community became clearer,
anticipating that RBKC would make a formal request for help. As we learned during our
Committee hearings, the LLAG arrangements had ‘been stood up’, but RBKC did not trigger a
request for mutual aid until Thursday afternoon, some 36 hours after the first emergency
call was made. It was not until the Friday afternoon that, as we heard, the designated
London Gold officer (in this case John Barradell OBE, Chief Executive of the City of London)
took control of the situation.

It has become clear through our deliberations that the London Local Authority Gold
arrangements do not permit a forced intervention even if evidence is mounting that the
local authority can no longer cope and there is consensus among London government
practitioners that the quality and pace of the response is not adequate. It is our judgement
that the mutual aid processes were not invoked early enough, they should have been
invoked immediately. It is our contention that despite the mounting evidence of problems
on the ground officers stuck rigidly to the procedures which meant that there was no
override mechanism.

A review of the London Local Authority Gold arrangements, commissioned by London
Councils, is under way with a view to reporting in February. The Oversight Committee will
evaluate its findings once it has been published, but it is clear to us that such a situation
must never be allowed to recur and that London government, both local government and
the GLA as the strategic authority, itself must have a mechanism by which an intervention to
support humanitarian needs can be made.

The role of the Mayor of London

The Strategic Co-ordination Protocol sets out what the Mayor’s role is. The Mayor’s role is
to act as the voice of London, to provide information and reassurance to Londoners about
what is going on in relation to a significant incident and that it is being responded to by the
relevant agencies. The Mayor does not have a direct operational responsibility to respond,
although some of the agencies the Mayor has oversight and responsibility for - MPS, LFB
and TfL - do. Therefore, the role of the Mayor is to establish what is going on, to be able to

Page 118



LONDONASSE Y
Len Duvall AM, Chair of GLA Oversight Committee

communicate that appropriately to Londoners and represent London at Ministerial
meetings where appropriate.

The Mayor’s so-called Gold Cell is a purely internal group at the GLA that convenes in the
event of a serious incident to ensure the Mayor is fully briefed and that the operations of
the Mayor’s office and the GLA are co-ordinated so that the Mayor can carry out his role as
the voice of London and not concerned with any strategic decision making relating to the
aftermath of the incident. In the future, this will need to be carefully monitored so as not to
confuse external partners of the nature of its role.

In the aftermath of such a significant incident, Londoners naturally want to understand who
is in charge of the recovery process. The Government created the Grenfell Fire Response
Team, led by John Barradell OBE (London Local Authority Gold at the time), four days after
the fire to lead the recovery response. This team included London local authorities, the GLA,
central government, British Red Cross, the Metropolitan Police and the London Fire Brigade.
The involvement of this diverse mix of agencies created the potential for confusion about
accountability: was this a central government body reporting to a Minister or Secretary of
State or a local government body?

While the Greater London Authority did provide some human resource from its Housing
team, communications team and volunteers from Team London, it remains unclear as to
why the Mayor was not in a position to have established and overseen the work of the
response team himself. It may be that the current resilience arrangements do not permit a
more active role even if the Mayoralty wanted to. Alternatively, perhaps the Mayor was
content with the local authority led arrangements, albeit steered by central government.
Nevertheless, given the pre-existing conditions in the community and the poor relationship
between the community and its local authority, perhaps having a more direct Mayoral lead
on the response might have helped to address the lack of trust apparent in the community.

An important change to the structure of London governance comes in April 2018 with the
abolition of the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority when responsibility for
providing fire services passes to the Mayor and his appointees, while scrutiny arrangements
will become the responsibility of the London Assembly’s Fire and Emergency Planning
Committee.

As part of these changes, the new Deputy Mayor for Fire and Rescue will also be the
Mayoral Adviser on resilience. Furthermore, the Mayor has committed to the creation of a
new post of Chief Resilience Officer (CRO) for London who will report directly to the Adviser
and the Mayor. Priorities for both the Adviser and the CRO must be to pull together the
lessons learned from the different reviews that are being undertaken across different
organisations, such as the local authorities and the LFB, and to audit the resources available
across London to respond to a significant incident; and to review the roles of the London
Resilience Forum to ensure it has the clout to ensure effective resilience planning across
partner organisations and across London.

Page 119



LONDONASSEMBLY
Len Duvall AM, Chair of GLA Oversight Committee

A longer-term priority should be to develop a standard for city resilience which would be an
important step to create an assurance regime that goes beyond existing peer review.

These are issues we will press the Mayor on as the new arrangements come into force.

Your sincerely

Len Duvall AM
Chair of the GLA Oversight Committee

Page 120



LONDON
Len Duvall AM, Chair of GLA Oversight Committee Appendix 1

11

London Resilience is made up of a series of linked bodies:

The London Resilience Partnership (LRP) was formed in the aftermath of the 2001
World Trade Centre Attack, to plan and prepare for large scale emergencies and
potential crises. The first strategic, pan-London co-ordination body of its kind, the
LRP is made up of more than 170 organisations, including the emergency services,
local authorities, health organisations, the GLA, transport companies, utility
providers, the military, central government, business representatives and voluntary
organisations. The London Authorities are represented by a panel, which John
Barradell chairs, supported by Doug Patterson and Eleanor Kelly.

The London Resilience Forum (LRF) was established in response to the Civil
Contingencies Act 2004 which introduced local resilience forums. The Forum is a
central part of the wider LRP, providing a structure through which local agencies
could come together to plan and prepare for localised incidents and catastrophic
emergencies, including terrorist incidents and natural disasters. Under the
legislation, its duties are to “put in place emergency plans” and to “share
information with other local responders to enhance co-ordination and to co-operate
with other local responders to enhance co-ordination and efficiency”. Fiona
Twycross AM is the current Chair of the LRF.

The London Resilience Group supports the work of the London Resilience
Partnership and delivers the Mayor of London's responsibilities for resilience. The
London Resilience Team moved from the GLA to sit under the oversight of the
London Fire Brigade in 2015 and works alongside the boroughs’ resilience team
based in LFB and also the LFB’s own resilience team. In merging with the LFB
Emergency Planning team it became the LRG and works through a Strategic
Coordination Protocol which details the “escalating strategic coordination
arrangements for London’s response to a disruptive incident”.

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



Appendix 2
GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY

Andrew Boff Our ref: boff3108

Assembly Member

London Assembly
Date: 31 August 2017

Dear Andrew,

Thank you for your email dated 10 August with a number of questions about the Grenfell Tower
incident. | am sorry for the delay in replying but | have had to seek input from other colleagues,
which was necessarily impacted by the summer holiday season.

As you note, there is a full briefing on Landon Resilience planned for the GLA Oversight Committee
meeting and | understand this is to take place on 14 September. Given this and the wider briefing
below, you will understand that | will need to share the information below with the Committee
Secretariat.

Before addressing each of your questions, | thought it would be helpful to provide some
background about the London Resilience arrangements and the current activities in the GLA in
response to a major incident.

London Resilience legislative background

The purpose of London’s civil contingency arrangements is to ensure that appropriate
organisations and bodies have proper tested plans in place to prevent emergencies arising and to
ensure that they are able to respond to any emergencies that do arise. An emergency in this
context is an event or situation which threatens serious damage to human welfare or the
environment, or war or terrorism which threatens serious damage to national security.

The existing civil contingency arrangements in London are currently established and governed by:

e The Civil Contingencies Act 2004;

s The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 (Contingency Planning) Regulations 2005/2042 (as
amended);

e Statutory guidance, entitled Emergency Preparedness, which accompanies the legislation; and
¢ Various voluntary arrangements between organisations and bodies with civil contingency
responsibilities in London.

The legislation places civil protection respansibilities on bodies and organisations defined as
responders. Within the Greater London Authority (GLA) Group, the GLA itself, the Metropolitan
Police Service (MPS) and the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA) are all

City Hall, London, SE1 2aPagenki28.gov.uk + 020 7983 4000

Office telephone: 020 7983 4959 Email: jeff.jacobs@!london.gov.uk



categorised as category one responders which means that they have a range of statutory duties
including risk assessment and emergency planning. While these legal duties cannot be delegated,
the legislation does allow for responders to enter into practical arrangements with one another for
the delivery of those duties.

Transport for London (TfL) is a category two responder under the Act which means that it is
classified as one of co-operating bodies under the legislation. It is less likely to be involved in the
heart of planning work, but will be heavily invalved in incidents that affect the transport sector,

London Resilience arrangements
In the period immediately following the introduction of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, Whitehall
co-ordinated the London Resilience arrangements through the Government Office for London

(GoL).

As part of a package of devolution measures, responsibility for London Resilience passed from GOL
to the GLA in early 2011. As a consequence, the GLA became a category one responder and the
Mayor was given the role of appointing the chair of the London Resilience Forum (LRPF).

After a few years of functioning within GLA structures, the then Mayor took the view that there
would be benefit for the GLA's statutory role to be undertaken by LFEPA on the GLA’s behalf.
Following consultation with the LRF and the London Assembly in late 2014, and general
agreement among all interested parties that it was a beneficial proposal, the function transferred
from GLA to LFEPA structures in early 2015. The following benefits were identified:

* The efficiency and effectiveness gains arising from the London-wide and London borough
functions coming under the same management in the London Fire Brigade (LFB);

» The opportunity presented for an improved understanding of situational awareness;
* The additional capacity arising from a new senior level operational post; and

* A better synergy with Whitehall structures at a senior level.

London Resilience Forum

The LRF acts as the capital’s statutory resilience forum under the Civil Contingencies Act, has over
170 members and meets three times a year. The current chair is Fiona Twycross AM, who also
chairs LFEPA.

The LRF comprises the following sector groups:
e Government;

* Emergency services;
* Local authorities;
* Sub-regional resilience forums and borough resilience forums;

e Business;
¢ Health;

o Utilities;

* Voluntary;
¢ Faith; and
¢ Transport.

Page 124



The agreed strategy of the LRF is to ensure London is prepared to respond to, and recover, from
emergencies, reinforcing London’s position as a resilient city. Its activities are based on:

e Assessing risks to London’s resilience;

¢ Building resilience through prevention and mitigation;
s Working together to prepare, respond and recover; and
¢ Helping Londoners to be prepared.

The Mayor’s wider resilience role
The notion of a ‘resilient’ city covers a very wide range of policy areas ranging from issues such as
tackling cyber-crime to designing homes to minimise the threats posed by flooding.

The LRF assesses the risk of emergencies in London and defines what multi-agency capabilities are
needed to respond to these risks. The most serious risks in London are from pandemic flu and
flooding. Capabilities are documented in plans prepared by the Partnership then tested through
exercises. Areas cavered include co-ordination and information sharing, arrangements for
communicating with the public and specific guidance on how to respond to events such as
pandemic flu and flooding. A Recovery Protocol outlines how to manage the longer-term impacts
of an emergency. Exercises and regular training ensure that strong working relationships exist
between agencies in advance of an emergency.

Given the size of London and its status as the UK’s capital city — and the threats posed to it by
hostile groups — national government naturally retains a major role in overseeing resilience
arrangements. When significant incidents occur in London, or are threatened, Ministers chair
meetings of COBRA - the national crisis response committee — to assess how best to respond and
recover. The emergency services and lead public agencies are represented at COBRA and the Mayor
is also invited.

During an emergency

Co-ordination arrangements for responders in London are set out in the Partnership’s Strategic Co-
ordination Protocol and the London Emergency Service Liaison Panel (LESLP) Procedures. These
provide a framework for multi-agency co-ordination at the scene of an incident and across London.
A Strategic Coordination Group (SCG) is formed for the more serious incidents, typically convened
by the Metropolitan Police and often chaired by a senior police officer. The SCG includes senior
representatives from across the Partnership who agree a common strategy. The arrangements are
flexible and allow for the organisations participating and the structures employed to vary according
to the circumstances. |t reports to Government through a Government Liaison Officer.

In less serious incidents an SCG will meet via a teleconference and, in the most serious of
emergencies, will meet at a specially equipped police facility. It is possible that the GLA may, on
occasion, be expected to chair an SCG where there is no other appropriate agency.

Many issues arising are dealt with via routine information sharing within the Partnership.
After an emergency
The LRP has a Recovery Protocol which outlines how action to manage the longer-term impacts of

an emergency will be co-ordinated. This is normally led by local authorities. For major incidents
there will also be a lessons |earned exercise.

Page 125



The role of the Mayor
The role of the Mayor in such circumstances is to act as the “voice of London” to provide
information and reassurance to Londoners.

Given the heightened security in which London is now operating, a decision was taken in Summer
2016 to establish an internal group, the Mayor's Gold Cell. This group is chaired by the Mayor's
Chief of Staff and is made up of senior members of the Mayor’s team, the Head of Paid Service and
other GLA staff. Others attend as appropriate - so, for example, Fiona Twycross as Chair of the LRF
and LFEPA was a regular attendee during the Grenfell incident.

The Mayor of London’s Gold Cell is designed to ensure that the Mayor is well informed about any
major incident or rising-tide situation in London and so allow him to carry out his role effectively in
acting as the spokesperson for the capital as well as providing civic leadership and reassurance. It
also provides support in co-ordinating the other responsibilities of the Office of Mayor of London
during a crisis, e.g. establishing a Disaster Appeal Fund, and considering any impact of the incident
on the GLA itself.

The activation of the Mayor’s Gold Cell does not impact on the operational command and control
of the incident. It is primarily a communication conduit designed to ensure that the Mayor receives
relevant information and can relay agreed appropriate messages to the general public and COBRA.
Briefing material will generally originate from the Strategic Co-ordination Group, from the London
Resilience team or the police incident commander. It may also be relayed via the Press Bureau at
New Scotland Yard. The name ‘Gold Cell’ was adopted as this would be meaningful to partner
organisations.

The Mayor may also convene the Mayor’'s Advisory Group to ensure that the GLA Group and its
partner bodies are doing all they can to mitigate the effects of an ongoing incident or to prepare
for the impact of an incident. The Mayor's Advisory Group is comprised of Commissioners and
senior staff from across the GLA Group and other key agencies eg the London Ambulance Service
and Local Authority representation.

| hope this information is helpful in providing some context for a number of your questions.
Appendix 1 specific answers to the questions you raised. Individual roles rather than staff names
have been included where this is appropriate.

Yours sincerely,

Jeff Jacohs
Head of Paid Service

Page 126



Appendix 1

1. Who was the London Resilience Group Duty Manager?
At the time of the start of the incident the London Resilience Group Duty Manager was the
appropriate person as per the rota (name of individual available outside of public forum).

2. At what time and by whom, was the London Resilience Group Duty Manager
contacted?
The Duty Manager was contacted via pager message received at 03.41 from an Operational
Resilience Support Officer working in support of the Brigade Coordination Centre (BCC).

3. What information was passed to the London Resilience Group Duty Manager?
The pager message received at 03.41 requested that the Duty Officer contact an Operational
Resilience Support Officer working in support of the Brigade Coordination Centre (BCC). Upon
speaking, their conversation focussed on a request for a Structural Engineer from RBKC to
attend the incident.

4. Who was detailed as being on the London Resilience Group Duty Manager roster in
the 24 hours prior to the first contact regarding the Grenfell Tower incident.
The London Resilience Group Duty Manager was the appropriate person as per the rota (name
of individual available outside of public forum).

5. When did the London Resilience Group Duty Manager notify London Local
Authorities Gold?
04:38 by email then immediately followed up with phone calls.

6. When did the London Resilience Group meet?
The London Resilience Group is the name of the team hosted by LFB and jointly funded by
the GLA, London local authorities and LFEPA to help deliver the work to achieve the goals of
the London Resilience Partnership. This includes an emergency response role to provide a
point of contact for the Partnership, coordinate the development of situational awareness, and
provide the secretariat for the Strategic Coordinating Group in conjunction with the lead
response organisation for the given incident.

The London Resilience Group does not meet during the initial response to an incident (unless
staff happen to be together at the time of an incident notification during working hours).
Typically, as per procedure, the LR Duty Manager, Duty Strategic Advisor and/or Duty
Supervisor will speak to each other on the phone to consult and determine the course of
action by members of the duty team. In this instance, the Duty Manager and Supervisor first
spoke at 03.51. The Strategic Advisor and Supervisor first spoke at 04.17. The Strategic
Advisor and Duty Manager first spoke at 04.19.

7. When did the London Resilience Group complete their joint assessment?
The purpose of the initial joint assessment between LRG and the partner organisation raising
the issue to LRG (in this case LFB) is to inform a decision as to the appropriate strategic

Page 127



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

coordination option. The LRG's initial joint assessment of the incident was based on a number
of conversations with, and information feeds from, the London Fire Brigade and partner
organisations in advance of the first Strategic Coordinating Group (SCG) teleconference held
at 05.00. In this instance, the LFB duty Assistant Commissioner and LRG Duty Manager
agreed to hold an SCG teleconference {coordination level 5) at approx 04.09 and this course
of action was agreed - effectively completing this initial Joint assessment. A formal Partnership
situation assessment was completed as part of the 05.00 SCG.

Who were the members of the London Resilience Group?

The initial response was supported by the Duty Strategic Advisor, Duty Manager, Duty
Supervisor (all the appropriate persons as per the rota - names of individuals available outside
of public forum). Additional members of the duty / on-call team and other members of the
London Resilience Group responded later that morning.

Which partner organisations were engaged as a result of the first London Resilience
Group meeting?

As noted above, there is no such concept as a London Resilience Group meeting in this
context. Prior to the first Strategic Coordinating Group teleconference at 05.00, LRG Duty
Officers had engaged with a range of partners including LFB, RBKC, LAS, MPS, NHS England
(London), TfL, DCLG, GLA, London Local Authority Gold, Local Authority Chief Executive
Liaison Officer (Resilience). The membership of the first SCG teleconference has been
provided in response to question 19.

When did co-ordination level 1 get triggered?
Not applicable. Coordination levels are options rather than a sequence.

When did co-ordination level 2 get triggered?
As per Q10.

When did co-ordination level 3 get triggered?
As per Q10.

When did co-ordination level 4 get triggered?
As per Q10,

When did co-ordination level 5 get triggered?

Level 5 (SCG teleconference) commenced at 05:00 when the first Strategic Coordinating
Group teleconference was held. It was ‘triggered’ at 04.09 when this coordination option was
agreed between the LFB duty Assistant Commissioner and LRG Duty Manager.

Which activation options were chosen and when?

A number of phone calls were made to request participation in the 05.00 SCG teleconference.
At 04:37 an email and mass message alert notification was sent to the London Resilience
Partnership for attention and action by selected partners.

Page 128



16. Who requested the formation of the Strategic Coordinating Group?
London Fire Brigade duty Assistant Commissioner.

17. When was the first meeting of the Strategic Coordinating Group?
05.00 on Wednesday 14th June 2017.

18. Who was the chair of the Strategic Coordinating Group?
London Fire Brigade duty Assistant Commissioner.

19. Who were the members of the Strategic Coordinating Group at the time of the initial
response and subsequently?
See appendix 1 attached with list of members of each Strategic Coordinating Group meeting /
teleconference.

20. What was the strategy adopted at the first meeting of the Strategic Coordinating
Group?
A working strategy was discussed during the first meeting of the SCG at 05.00. A formal
strategy was then agreed during the second meeting of the SCG at 06.30. Details of these
meetings and the formal strategy are held on record (not considered suitable for release in a
public meeting).

21. Who was in the pan-London Tactical Coordinating Group?
Relevant partnership representatives took part in the Tactical Coordinating Group located at
MPS Special Operations Room. Details of participating organisations would need to be
requested from MPS.

22. Who were the tactical commanders?
As per answer to question 21.

23. When and by whom was the Recovery Management Protocol activated?
Recovery is a standing agenda item for the Strategic Coordinating Group and was therefore
considered from day one of the incident as part of the SCG meetings. The Grenfell Fire
Response Team, led by London Local Authority Gold effectively acted as the Recovery
Coordinating Group feeding into the Strategic Coordinating Group from Friday 16th June.

24. What was the content and scope of the Recovery Management Protocol?
The London Recovery Management Protocol is available on the GLA website at
https://www.london.gov,uk/about-us/organisations-we-work/london-prepared/planning-
emergencies-capital#acc-i-43125

Page 129



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Who was the London Local Authorities Gold at the time of the incident?

The Duty LLAG as per the duty rota. This duty handed over from one LA CEO to another at
05.00 on Wednesday 14th June as per the rota (LA CEQ’s are on-call for two weeks at a time
with the handover at 09.00 on Wednesday mornings). Names of individuals available outside
of public forum.

When did the Recovery Coordination Group come into existence?

As per question 23, the Grenfell Fire Response Team performed this function from Friday 16th
June. The handover of strategic coordination from the SCG to the RCG was agreed at the SCG
meeting held at 12.30 on 23rd June 2017. It was agreed that the handover would take effect
from 23:59 on 23rd June 2017.

Who chaired the Recovery Coordination Group?
London Local Authority Gold. Name of individual available outside of public forum.

When did the Recovery Coordination Group assume responsibility for multi -agency

coordination?
At 23.59 on 23rd June 2017,

Is the Recovery Management Group the same as the Recovery Coordination Group?
Yes.

When did the Mayoral Advisory Group meet?

The Mayor’s Advisory Group did not meet as the ongoing response to the incident was being
managed by London Local Authorities and not a member the GLA Croup, and any meeting
would have duplicated the Government’s ministerial meetings, which were attended by the
Mayor and/or his Chief of Staff as well as senior police officers and Grenfell Local Authority
Gold.

In terms of the immediate response (i.e. before it would be possible to convene a Mayor's
Advisory Group), the Mayor was briefed directly via a series of telephone calls and in person
by the Fire Commissioner and lead MPS officer on site at Grenfell Tower. The Mayor’s Chief of
Staff and other officers were also in frequent contact with the Mayor.

For information, the Mayors Advisory Group last met in May 2017, to brief the Mayor on
arrangements following the Government’s decision to change the international terror threat
level to “Critical’.

31. Who attended the Mayoral Advisory Group?

See answer to question 30.

32. What were the conclusions of the Mayoral Advisory Group?

See answer to question 30.

Page 130



Grenfell Fire — Strategic Coordination Group Meeting

Attendees

Date: 14" June 2017 Time:
05:00

Appendix 3

Organisation NETGLE

MPS

London Resilience Group

LFB

NHS England (London)

Local Authorities

HSE

LAS

Thames Water

DCLG Government Liaison Officer

GLA

TiL

Network Rail

Page 131



Date: 14" June 2017

Time: 06:30
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB
NHS England (London)

Local Authorities
HSE
LAS

Thames Water

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
GLA
TfL

Page 132



Date: 14" June 2017

Time: 08:30
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB

NHS England (London)
PHE

Her Majesties Coroner

Senior Identity Manager

UK DVI

Local Authorities
HSE
LAS

City of London Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
GLA
TfL

London Underground

British Red Cross

Faith Sector

Page 133



Date: 14" June 2017

Time: 19:30
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB

NHS England (London)
PHE

EA

Her Majesties Coroner

Local Authorities
HSE
LAS

City of London Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
GLA
TfL

London Underground

South East Railway
British Red Cross

UK Power Networks

Thames Water

Page 134



Date: 14" June 2017

Faith Sector

LRG

Page 135



th June 2017

Date: 15
Time: 11:00
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB

NHS England (London)
PHE

EA

Her Majesties Coroner

Local Authorities
HSE
LAS

City of London Police

British Transport Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
GLA

Military London District
TfL
British Red Cross

UK Power Networks

Thames Water

Faith Sector

LA Liaison Officer

Date: 16

Time: 11:00
Organisation Name
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB
NHS England (London)

Her Majesties Coroner

Page 136



th June 2017
Local Authorities

LAS

City of London Police

British Transport Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer

GLA

Military London District

UK Power Networks

Faith Sector

LA Liaison Officer

London Council’s

Date: 17
Time: 14:00
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB
NHS England (London)

Her Majesties Coroner

Local Authorities

LAS

City of London Police

British Transport Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer

GLA

UK Power Networks

Faith Sector

London Underground

HSE

Environment Agency

Page 137



th June 2017

Date: 18
Time: 13:30
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB
NHS England (London)

Her Majesties Coroner

Local Authorities
LAS

City of London Police

British Transport Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
GLA

London Underground
Red Cross

Military

Page 138



th June 2017

Date: 19
Time: 11:30
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB

NHS England (London)
PHE

HSE

Her Majesties Coroner

Local Authorities
LAS

City of London Police

British Transport Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
DMC

GLA

TfL

Red Cross

Date: 20
Time: 13:00

Organisation Name

MPS

London Resilience Group

LFB

NHS England (London)
PHE
HSE

Local Authorities

LAS

City of London Police

British Transport Police

Page 139



th June 2017

DCLG Government Liaison Officer

GLA

TfL

Military

Thames Water

Environment Agency

Page 140




Date: 21 June 2017 Time:

13:00
st
MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB

NHS England (London)
PHE

HSE

Local Authorities

LAS

British Transport Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
GLA
TfL

Thames Water

Environment Agency

Her Majesties Coroner
Met Office
LB K&C

nd

Organisation Name

MPS

London Resilience Group

LFB

NHS England (London)
PHE
HSE

Local Authorities

LAS

British Transport Police

Page 141



Date: 22 June 2017 Time:
13:00

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
GLA
TfL

Network Rail

Environment Agency

Her Majesties Coroner

City of London Police

Military

Communications

rd

Organisation Name

MPS

London Resilience Group
LFB

NHS England (London)
PHE

HSE

Local Authorities
LAS

British Transport Police

DCLG Government Liaison Officer
GLA
TfL

Network Rail

Environment Agency

City of London Police

Military

Communications

Faith Sector

Page 142



Date: 23 June 2017 Time:
13:00

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	03a-Transcript 31 January 2018

	4 Summary List of Actions
	Appendix 1-Proposed Changes to GLA Establishment

	5 The Garden Bridge - Holding the Previous Mayor to Account
	6 Chief Officer-Recruitment Update
	Appendix 1-Statutory Officers Protocol
	1.  The Statutory Officers
	1.3 The statutory functions exercisable by these officers are listed in Part I of Appendix 1 to this document. Statutory functions exercisable by officers other than the statutory officers are listed in Part II of Appendix 1.
	2. Appointment (Designation) without an external recruitment and selection process
	2.1 The Mayor and the Assembly acting jointly may attribute the function/role of a statutory officer to an existing post occupied by an existing member of staff (and therefore designate that postholder as a statutory officer), without following an ext...
	2.2 However, in these circumstances, the Assistant Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development should, where appropriate, seek expressions of interest from appropriately senior and experienced officers/postholders as to their posts bein...
	(i) Only one suitable expression of interest, the that postholder may be permanently designated as a statutory officer if the Mayor and the Assembly agree to the designation and its terms and conditions; or
	(ii) More than one suitable expression of interest, an appropriate selection and appointment process shall be determined by the Mayor and the Assembly’s staffing committee acting jointlyP5F P.
	3. External Recruitment and Shortlisting of the Statutory Officers
	5.  Terms and Conditions
	6. Disciplinary action and investigations
	6.1 This is dealt with at Appendix 2 to this document.
	7. Dismissal
	APPENDIX 1

	OTHER OFFICERS – STATUTORY FUNCTIONS
	23. Functions of the proper officer under Sections 15 to 17 (political balance on committees etc.) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 including under the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990.
	APPENDIX 2
	Statutory Officers – Performance, Disciplinary and Dismissal Procedure


	Appendix 2-JD Chief Officer
	Appendix 3 -Job Advertisement

	7 Proposed Changes to the GLA Establishment - Finance and Governance
	8 Work Programme for the GLA Oversight Committee
	9 Action Taken Under Delegated Authority
	Letter to Dept for Education devolution of AEB budget
	GLA Oversight submission to the Grenfell Fire Inquiry
	Appendix 1-Letter to Grenfell Tower Fire Inquiry
	Appendix 2- Letter to Public Inquiry
	Appendix 3-Grenfell Tower Fire Inquiry


